
Site Plan & Architectural 
Commission  

Agenda  
April 17, 2020  

Commission Members 

Jeff Bender, Chair 

Bill Chmelir, Vice Chair 

Jim Catt 

David Culbertson 

Bob Neathamer 

Marcy Pierce 

Jim Quinn 

Milo Smith 

 

 
 

City of Medford 

Council Chambers,  

Third Floor, City Hall 

411 W. 8th Street 

Medford, OR  97501 

(541) 774-2380 

Regular Commission meetings are held on 

the first and third Fridays of every month 

Beginning at 12:00 Noon 

1



   
  

   

Meeting locations are generally accessible to persons with disabilities. To request interpreters for hearing impaired or other 

accommodations for persons with disabilities, please contact the ADA Coordinator at (541) 774-2074 or 

ada@cityofmedford.org at least three business days prior to the meeting to ensure availability. For TTY, dial 711 or  

(800) 735-1232. 

 
April 17, 2020      

12:00 P.M.         

Zoom Virtual Webinar 
 

 
Virtual Meeting information 
To comply with Governor Brown’s stay at home order, public hearings will be conducted 
via the internet. WRITTEN COMMENTS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED. To join Webinar: 
https://zoom.us/j/422750584 , Meeting ID: 422-750-584. For telephone: US: +1 669 900 6833 
or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 929 205 6099 or +1 253 215 
8782. 

 
10. Roll Call 
  

20. Consent Calendar / Written Communications  

20.1 AC-20-012 Final Order for a gas station and convenience store, consisting of the 

construction of a 3,141 square foot convenience store and a 3,755 square foot gas 

canopy, to be located on a 0.89-acre portion of the South Medford Center, an existing 

commercial and retail center located at the intersection of Garfield Street and Center 

Drive in the Regional Commercial (C-R) zoning district (371W32B TL 3604). 

 
30. Approval or Correction of the Minutes.  

 30.1 Consideration for approval of minutes from the April 3, 2020, meeting. 

  

40. Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience 

COMMENTS WILL BE LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES PER INDIVIDUAL OR 5 MINUTES IF REPRESENTING A GROUP OR 

ORGANIZATION.   

 

50. Public Hearings 

COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO A TOTAL OF 10 MINUTES FOR APPLICANTS AND/OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVES.  YOU 

MAY REQUEST A 5-MINUTE REBUTTAL TIME.  ALL OTHERS WILL BE LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES PER INDIVIDUAL OR 5 

MINUTES IF REPRESENTING A GROUP OR ORGANIZATION.   

 Continuance Request. 

 50.1 AC-20-021 Consideration of a proposal for the construction of a 3,000 square foot office 

building within the existing foundation footprint located at 629 Franquette Street at the 

intersection of Franquette Street and Earhart Street within a C-H, Heavy Commercial zoning 

district (371W30DB TL 5500). Applicant/Agent: Oregon Architecture Inc; Planner: Liz Conner.  

The applicant has requested that this item be continued to the May 15, 2020, meeting. 

SITE PLAN & ARCHITECTURAL 
COMMISSION AGENDA 

2

mailto:ada@cityofmedford.org
https://zoom.us/j/422750584


Site Plan & Architectural Commission Agenda 
April 17, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 2  
 

 New Business. 

 50.2 AC-20-010/E-20-11 Consideration of a proposal for the construction of an approximately 

3,500 square foot restaurant and 12 multiple family dwelling units on two parcels totaling 0.98 

acres, located at 2217 & 2301 E Barnett Road within the C-S/P (Service Commercial & 

Professional Offices) and MFR-20 (Multiple Family Residential – 15 to 20 dwelling units per 

gross acre) and including an Exception request to the parking standards for multiple family 

residential dwellings (371W29DC9700 & 9800). Applicant, Hong (Kevin) Wu; Agent, Richard 

Stevens & Associates, Inc.; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt.  

 50.3 AC-20-037 Consideration of a proposal for the construction of a 33,600 square foot metal 

commercial storage and office facility on a single 2.04 acre parcel located at 1170 Knutson 

Avenue in the I-G (General Industrial) zoning district (371W18BB TL 2600). Applicant, Nansen 

Investment Group; Agent, Todd Powell; Planner, Liz Conner. 

 50.4 AC-20-038 Consideration of a proposal for an approximately 7,500 square foot single 

story warehouse on a 6.54 acre parcel located at 1525 N Central Avenue in the General 

Industrial (I-G) zoning district (372W24701); Applicant & Agent, JB Steel Inc.; Planner, Steffen 

Roennfeldt. 

60. Written Communications None. 

  

70. Unfinished Business  None. 

 

80. New Business  None. 

 

90. Report from the Planning Department  

 
100. Messages and Papers from the Chair 
 

110. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission 
 

120. Adjournment  

3



 

 

 

BEFORE THE MEDFORD SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION 
STATE OF OREGON, CITY OF MEDFORD 

 
IN THE MATTER OF SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION   ) 
FILE AC-20-012 APPLICATION FOR PROJECT REVIEW SUBMITTED    ) ORDER 
BY DAR USA   ) 
 
ORDER granting approval of a request of File No. AC-20-012, as follows: 
 
Consideration of a proposal for a gas station and convenience store, consisting of the construction of a 3,867 
square foot convenience store and a 3,755 square foot gas canopy, to be located on a 0.89-acre portion—
designated as Pad D—of the South Medford Center, an existing commercial and retail center located at the 
intersection of Garfield Street and Center Drive in the Regional Commercial (C-R) zoning district (371W32B TL 
5000 / 371W32C TL 2401). 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The Site Plan and Architectural Commission has duly accepted the application filed in accordance with the 
Land Development Code, Section 10.200. 
 
2. The Site Plan and Architectural Commission has duly held a public hearing on the matter described above, 
with a public hearing a matter of record of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission on April 3, 2020. 
  
3.  At the public hearing on said application, evidence and recommendations were received and presented by 
the developer and Planning Department staff; and  
 
4. At the conclusion of said public hearing, after consideration and discussion, the Site Plan and Architectural 
Commission, upon a motion duly seconded, granted approval and directed staff to prepare a final order with 
all conditions and findings set forth for the granting of approval. 
 
THEREFORE LET IT BE HEREBY ORDERED that the application of DAR USA, stands approved subject to 
compliance with the conditions stated in the Commission Report dated April 3, 2020. 
 
AND LET IT FURTHER BE OF RECORD that the action of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission approving 
this application is hereafter supported by the findings referenced in the Commission Report dated April 3, 
2020. 

 
BASED UPON THE ABOVE, it is the finding of the Medford Site Plan and Architectural Commission that the 
project is in compliance with the criteria of Section 10.200(E) of the Land Development Code. 
 
Accepted and approved this 17th day of April, 2020. 
 

MEDFORD SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
                   Site Plan and Architectural Commission Chair 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary   

4



COMMISSION REPORT  
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: Site Plan & Architectural Review 

Project DAR USA – Family Mart 

 Applicant: DAR USA; Agent: Studio 3 Architecture, Inc. 

File no. AC-20-012 

Date April 3, 2020  

BACKGROUND 

Proposal  

Consideration of a proposal for a gas station and convenience store, consisting of the 

construction of a 3,141 square foot convenience store and a 3,755 square foot gas 

canopy, to be located on a 0.89-acre portion of the South Medford Center, an existing 

commercial and retail center located at the intersection of Garfield Street and Center 

Drive in the Regional Commercial (C-R) zoning district (371W32B TL 3604). 

Vicinity Map 

    

5



Subject Site Characteristics 

GLUP CM (Commercial) 

Zoning C-R 

Overlay R-Z (Restricted Zoning) (trip cap established per ZC-16-077)   

Use Commercial shopping plaza 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North   Zone:  SFR-00 (Single-Family Residential – 1 dwelling unit per existing 

lot) 

  Use(s): I-5, Bear Creek 

South   Zone:  SFR-00 

  Use(s):  vacant land 

East  Zone:  SFR-00 and C-R  

  Use(s):  vacant land 

West  Zone:  C-R 

Use(s): Marriot Hotel, Walmart, Rogue Credit Union 

Related Projects 

ZC-16-77 Zone Change 

AC-16-138 Site Plan approval 

AC-17-135 Site Plan approval 

LDP-17-131 Partition 

Applicable Criteria 

Medford Municipal Code §10. 200(E)(1) – Site Plan & Architectural Review Criteria 

The Site Plan and Architectural Commission shall approve a site plan and architec-

tural review application if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or 

can be made to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following 

criteria: 

(a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and developments that 

exist on adjacent land; and 

(b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all 

city ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved 

(an) exception(s) as provided in MLDC § 10.186.  

6



Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. The Site Plan & Architectural Commission is the 

approving authority under MLDC 10.108(1). 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Background 

History 

FILE # DATE DESCRIPTION 

ZC-16-77 
September 

2016 
Zone Change from SFR-00 to C-R 

AC-16-138 
January 

2017 
SPAC approval for Southside Center Phase I 

AC-17-135 
January 

2018 
SPAC approval for South Medford Center – Building B 

LDP-17-131 April 2019 South Center Partition (Final plat approved) 

AC-19-024 May 2019 SPAC approval for the Fairfield Inn hotel 

 

The subject site is located within the South 

Medford Center, an existing commercial 

shopping plaza originally approved as a phased 

development in January 2017.  The first phase of 

the South Medford Center (AC-16-138), included 

the approval of two buildings: a 9,113 square foot 

Cracker Barrel restaurant, and an 8,880 square 

foot multi-tenant commercial building (currently 

containing a MOD Pizza, Asante Walk-in Care, 

Sports Clips, and a Chipotle).  A second 7,200 

square foot building—Building B—was approved 

in January 2018 (AC-17-135), and currently 

contains a Five Guys restaurant, and two vacant 

spaces.  

 

 

 

7



 

 

The site plan for the South Medford Center identified two additional, future 

developments: An area located along the frontage of Center Drive identified as Pad 

C, proposed as a future fast food restaurant with a drive thru, and a 6,660 square foot 

building identified as Pad D. 

The subject request includes the portion of the South Medford Center previously 

identified as the Pad D area. 

Current proposal 

The applicant is now proposing to develop an approximate 38,495 square foot area 

located at the southeast corner of the South Medford Center—previously identified 

for Pad D—with a convenience store and a gas station.  The convenience store will be 

a 3,141 square foot Family Mart, and the gas station will be a Shell Gas station, 

consisting of a proposed 3,755 canopy covering four fuel pumps.   

8



Access to the subject site is proposed via two driveways off of the existing drive aisle, 

which currently serves the South Medford Center.  The site abuts the unimproved 

right-of-way of Belknap Road—classified as a Commercial street. The applicant’s 

original site plan showed this section of Belknap improved; however, Public Works 

staff explained to the applicant at the Land Development meeting that the 

improvement of Belknap was not required as long as they weren’t proposing to take 

access off of the street.  The applicant has since submitted a revised site plan 

removing the improvement of Belknap Road, along with the driveway access 

originally proposed to be constructed off of Belknap. 

 

 

Development Standards 

Commercial – Industrial Site Development Table (MLDC 10.721) 

C-R Zone Allowed/Required Proposed/Shown 

Height 
85 feet (35 feet if located within 

150 feet of a residential zone) 
17’ 6” 

Lot Coverage 40% 20.1% 

Setback (front) 10 feet 10 feet  

Setback  

(rear and side yards) 
none 11 feet 

 

9



As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the site’s 

proposed structures—convenience store, fueling station canopy, and trash 

enclosure—identified on the submitted site plan meet the bulk standards for the C-R 

zoning district as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development Code.   

Parking 

Parking Table (MLDC 10.743-751) 

 Required Proposed/Shown 

Vehicle Spaces 14 min. / 17 max. 20 

Handicap Spaces 1 2 

Bicycle Spaces 2 3 

 

The submitted site plan shows a total of 20 parking stalls (12 designated spaces in 

front of the convenience store, plus 8 spaces at the fueling stations), including 3 

handicap spaces, meeting the minimum, but exceeding the maximum permitted per 

MLDC 743-751.  The applicant’s original site plan showed the convenience store at 

3,867 square feet—requiring 17 min. / 21 max.  The applicant later submitted a 

revised site plan reducing the building size to 3,141 square feet; however, the 

proposed off-street parking shown on the revised plan was not altered accordingly.  

MLDC 10.743(3) 

 

Pursuant to MLDC 10.743(3) cited above, the applicant is formally requesting relief to 

exceed the maximum number of parking spaces allowed for the proposed use.  In an 

email received on March 20 (Exhibit X), the applicant stated, “the short term duration 

10



of parking stays suggests that the additional spaces will be needed to serve the 

Convenience Store during peak uses.” 

Staff is supportive of the applicant’s request for parking relief.  It is staff’s view that 

the applicant’s explanation, though limited in detail, is adequate to support the 

request.  Further, it is staff’s view that the granting of relief can be made in keeping 

with the intent and purpose of the off-street parking and loading requirements 

outlined in MLDC 10.741.   

Staff recommends the Commission grant the applicant relief to exceed the maximum 

number of parking spaces allowed for the site by a total of three spaces, pursuant to 

MLDC 10.743(3). 

 

Landscaping 

Frontage Landscaping (MLDC 10.797) 

Belknap Road Required Shown 

Trees 7 4 

Shrubs 45 45+ 

 

The applicant’s submitted landscape plan (Exhibit D) shows landscaping along the 

site’s frontage abutting the unimproved right-of-way of Belknap Road, as required per 

MLDC 10.797.  As shown above, the plan is short three trees required along the 

frontage of Belknap Road.  

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to submit an a revised 

landscape plan showing the site’s frontage along the right-of-way Belknap Road 

providing landscaping meeting the minimum requirements outlined in MLDC 10.797. 

Pedestrian Access (MLDC 10.772-776) 

The site plan shows pedestrian walkways connecting the proposed building to the 

abutting properties, consistent with the pedestrian connectivity standards found in 

MLDC 10.772-776.   

Concealments 

Trash Enclosure (MLDC 10.781) 

The applicant’s site plan shows a trash enclosure located to the south of the proposed 

building, and the submitted elevation plan (Exhibit L) shows the proposed trash 

enclosure constructed with materials consistent with the requirements outlined in 

MLDC 10.781.  

11



Roof Equipment (MLDC 10.782) 

The applicant’s roof plan (Exhibit H) shows mechanical equipment located on the 

rooftop of the building.  All mechanical roof-mounted equipment is required to be 

concealed using the architectural elements of the building (i.e., roof forms, parapets, 

wing walls, alcoves, etc.).  It is not clear from the applicant’s elevation and roof plans 

if the roof mounted equipment will be adequately concealed.   

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to submit additional 

elevation plans, demonstrating compliance with MLDC 10.782, prior to the issuance 

of building permits for vertical construction. 

Architecture 

The applicant’s submitted narrative (Exhibit O) describes the building’s proposed 

architecture and how it fits with and complements adjacent buildings, as the 

following: 

The building will be pre-engineered steel building with insulated Kingspan 

panels on the exterior. The design and color scheme is consistent with the 

Family Mart brand. The Kingspan Panels are a high end metal panel with 

foam insulation between the panels. The exterior look will compliment 

adjacent buildings in the same shopping center in that it will add value to the 

property and the brand recognition of shell gas stations will help drive more 

traffic into the area. 

 

 

 

12



Landscape Buffering 

Per MLDC 10.790, bufferyards are utilized in order to minimize potential conflicts 

caused by types and intensity of uses on adjacent properties.  The subject site abuts 

the SFR-00 zoning district along an approximate 110 foot stretch of its southerly 

boundary.  It should be noted that the site’s entire boundary is encircled by the 

property with a Commercial (CM) GLUP designation, and the subject site and all 

abutting property is under common ownership. 

                          Zoning Map       GLUP Map 

  

 

Per MLDC 10.790-1, a Type A bufferyard—consisting of a six-foot concrete or masonry 

wall and ten feet of landscaping—is required along the site’s boundary abutting the 

SFR-00 zoning district.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13



Adjustments to Bufferyards: 10.790(E)(6) 

 

Pursuant to MLDC 10.790(E)(6) cited above, the approving authority may approve 

adjustments to bufferyard requirements if it is determined that unusual 

circumstances exist.  

It is staff’s view that, pursuant to MLDC 10.790(E)(6), unusual circumstances exist with 

the subject development, warranting the granting of relief from the strict standards 

of the Code for bufferyards, and that adequate buffering will be provided to avoid 

significant adverse impacts to the adjoining properties, without the need for a Type A 

Bufferyard.  The unusual circumstances are as follows: 

 The abutting property along the subject 110-foot area has a Commercial (CM) 

GLUP designation, an area which will provide an approximate 40-foot buffer 

space between the subject development and any single-family residential 

development which may be constructed on the abutting property in the 

future.   

 The subject area is located where the right-of-way of Belknap Road has the 

potential to be extended in the future.  

 The applicant’s Landscape Plan (Exhibit D) shows trees and shrubs located 

along subject area, providing a buffering element. 

 The submitted Site Plans (Exhibit B) show the back of the proposed 

convenience store facing the residentially zoned property to the south, and 

located between the residential land to the south and the proposed fueling 

stations, serving as a buffer in place of a wall or fence.  

 

 

14



Other Agency Comments 

Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) (Exhibit U) 

The section of Garfield Street fronting the subject parcel is under the jurisdiction of 

ODOT.  As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to comply with all 

requirements of ODOT prior to the issuance of building permits for vertical 

construction.  

Rogue Valley International – Medford Airport (Exhibit T) 

Rogue Valley International Airport requests an Avigation, Noise and Hazard Easement 

to be required as part of the permit process. In the 2010 LUBA decision on Michelle 

Barnes vs. City of Hillsboro and the Port of Portland, Nollan/Dolan findings are 

required to support the request (LUBA No. 2010-011). None were provided; therefore, 

a condition requiring compliance with the airport’s request for an Avigation, Noise 

and Hazard Easement has not been included. 

RVSS (Exhibit S) 

The subject property is within RVSS service area.  There is an existing 8-inch sewer 

stubbed to the subject property. 

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to comply with the 

conditions of RVSS. 

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from committees such as BPAC.  

Other Comments 

On March 18, 2020, staff received a letter from Jay Harland of CSA Planning in 

objection to the subject application (Exhibit W). Mr. Harland represents the Kolln 

property located south of the subject property.  The letter included a request that the 

application be continued in order to provide an opportunity for all parties to meet 

and discuss the issues identified in the letter.  This request was honored at the March 

20, 2020 hearing, and City staff has since met with Mr. Harland as requested.  

In his letter, Mr. Harland raised three issues. 1.) He states the subject application does 

not adequately address the existing Belknap Road right-of-way, and expressed his 

client’s concern with the lack of a coherent circulation plan for the surrounding area.  

Inconsistencies between the various plans submitted by the applicant was also 

pointed out in the letter. 2.) Mr. Harland also stated his client’s concern with the 

subject site’s proposed access off of Center Drive in relation to its proximity to the 

15



access approved for the future KFC located on the opposite side of Center Drive, 

contending that the two drives could potentially have an adverse impact on the traffic 

circulation of Center Drive. 3.)  Finally, Mr. Harland identified the applicant’s failure to 

demonstrate compliance with the required trip cap as part of the subject application.  

Staff’s responses to Mr. Harland’s issues are as follows: 

1.) Belknap Road and the future circulation of the surrounding area:  As stated in 

the staff report, Belknap Road is not required to be improved with the subject 

application as the development is not proposing to take access off of the 

street.  In regards to circulation, though the subject application did not address 

issues concerning the future traffic circulation of the surrounding area, past 

applications involving the South Medford Center have done so, including a 

circulation plan submitted with the recent SPAC approval for the Fairfield Inn 

(AC-19-024) shown below.  In regards to the inconsistencies in the plans 

submitted by the applicant, the applicant has submitted updated plans with 

this revised report, correcting the previous inconsistencies. 

 

 
 

16



2.) Proposed access and proximity to approved access for KFC: The subject 

application does not propose the construction of a new access off of Center 

Drive; rather, the site plan shows the subject development taking access off of 

the existing driveway, an entry currently serving as an internal access drive for 

the entire South Medford Center.  Further, staff does not anticipate the South 

Medford Center’s existing access drive and its proximity to the future location 

of KFC’s driveway will pose any negative impacts on the future functionality of 

Center Drive.  Finally, the Commission can find that the two driveways meet all 

the Public Improvement standards as outlined in MLDC 10.421 to 10.668. 

 

 
 

3.) Failure to provide trip accounting with the subject application:   While staff 

does not disagree with Mr. Harland that a trip accounting provided with the 

subject application would be preferable, the condition establishing the trip cap 

as part of the property’s zone change in 2016 (ZC-16-077)—shown below—did 

not specify that the trip accounting be provided concurrent with the site’s 

future SPAC applications.  Accordingly, staff included a condition of approval 

with the subject application requiring that the applicant provide the trip 

accounting prior to the issuance of building permits for vertical construction—

a condition preventing any development from occurring at the subject site 

until compliance with the trip cap has been demonstrated. 

17



 

DECISION 

At the public hearing held on April 3, 2020, the Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the request, while adding into the record three new 
exhibits: 

 Exhibit CC: Trip accounting submitted by applicant and prepared by Southern 

Oregon Transportation Engineering.  

 Exhibit DD:  Revised Public Works report acknowledging the submitted trip ac-

counting.  

 Exhibit EE: Second letter submitted by Jay Harland of CSA, representing the 

Kolln Property.   

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 

exist on adjacent land;  

The Commission can find that there is sufficient evidence contained in the applicant’s 

findings and the Staff Report to determine that the proposal is compatible with the 

uses and development on adjacent land.  This criterion is satisfied.   

 

2. The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all city 

ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved (an) 

exception(s) as provided in MLDC § 10.253. 

The Commission can find that the proposal can be made to comply with the applica-

ble provisions of the Code with the imposition of conditions of approval contained in 

Exhibit A.   This criterion is satisfied.   

18



FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s findings and conclusions (Exhibit O) and 

recommends the Commission adopt the findings as recommended by staff. 

ACTION TAKEN 

Adopted the findings as recommended by staff and directed staff to prepare the final 

order for approval of AC-20-012 per the Commission Report dated April 3, 2020, 

including: 

 Exhibits A through EE. 

 The granting of relief from constructing a bufferyard along the approximate 

110-foot stretch of the subject site’s southerly property line.  

 The granting of relief to exceed the maximum number of parking spaces for 

the development.  

EXHIBITS 

A-1 Conditions of Approval – Revised, drafted March 27, 2020.  

B Site Plan, received March 25, 2020. 

C Utility and Grading Plan, received March 12, 2020 

D Landscape Plan, received March 27, 2020. 

E General Notes (2 of 2) received March 25, 2020. 

F Floor Plans for C–store (2 of 2), received March 25, 2020. 

G Floor Plans for canopy (2 of 2), received March 25, 2020. 

H Roof plan, received March 25, 2020. 

I  Reflected Ceiling Plans (2 of 2), received March 25, 2020. 

J Elevation Plans for C–store (2 of 2), received March 25, 2020. 

K Elevation Plans for Canopy (2 of 2), received March 25, 2020. 

L Elevations for trash enclosure, received March 25, 2020. 

M Wall types, received March 25, 2020. 

N Perspective views, received March 25, 2020. 

O Applicant’s Narrative, Questionnaire, and Findings of Fact, January 15, 2019. 

P Public Works staff report, received February 19, 2020. 

Q Medford Water Commission report & map, received February 19, 2020. 

R Medford Fire Department report, received  February 19, 2020. 

S RVSS report, received February 7, 2020. 

T Airport email, received February 13, 2020. 

U ODOT email, received February 13, 2020. 

V South Medford Center Site Plan (AC-17-135), received October 25, 2017. 

W Objection letter from CSA Planning, received March 18, 2020. 

19



X Email from applicant requesting parking relief, received March 20, 2020. 

Y Applicant’s continuance request, received March 20, 2020. 

Z Circulation Plan for the South Medford Center submitted with Fairfield Inn  

 application (AC-19-024), received April 12, 2019.  

AA Approved Site Plan for KFC, received May 2019. 

BB Public Works report (page 2 only), received August 8, 2016. 

CC Trip accounting prepared by Southern Oregon Transportation Engineering, 

prepared March 27, 2020. 

DD Revised Public Works report, received March 31, 2020. 

EE Second letter submitted by Jay Harland of CSA, received April 3, 2020. 

Vicinity map  

SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION: 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

JEFF BENDER, CHAIR  

 

SPAC AGENDA MARCH 27, 2020 
 APRIL 3, 2020 
 APRIL 10, 2020 
  
 

20



   
  

   

 

 

 
April 3, 2020      

12:00 P.M.        

Virtual Meeting 

 
The regular meeting of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission was called to order at 12:15 

p.m. in the Council Chambers on the above date with the following members and staff in 

attendance: 

Commissioners Present Staff Present 

Jeff Bender, Chair 

Bill Chmelir, Vice Chair 

Jim Catt 

David Culbertson 

Bob Neathamer  

Marcy Pierce 

Jim Quinn 

Milo Smith 

 

Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Katie Zerkel, Senior Assistant City Attorney 

Doug Burroughs, Public Works/Eng. Develop Svs. Mgr. 

Dustin Severs, Planner  

Debbie Strigle, Recording Secretary 

 

 

10. Roll Call 
  
20. Consent Calendar / Written Communications (voice vote) 

20.1 AC-19-063 Final Order for the construction of an approximately 13,600 square-foot repair shop and 

office building located at 4866 Helo Drive in the I-H (Heavy Industrial) zoning district (371W06AB302). 

Applicant, Vilas Truck & Trailer Services; Agent, Douglas Day; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt. 

Motion: Adopt the consent calendar. 

Moved by:  Commissioner Culbertson           Seconded by:  Commissioner Catt 

Voice Vote:  Motion passed, 8-0   

30. Approval or Correction of the Minutes 

30.1 The minutes from the March 6, 2020, meeting were approved as corrected. 

30.2 The minutes from the March 20, 2020, meeting were approved as submitted. 

40. Oral Requests and Communications from the Public.  None. 

50. Public Hearings 

Katie Zerkel, Senior Assistant City Attorney, read the rules governing the public hearings. 

Old Business. 

50.1 AC-20-012 Consideration of a proposal for a gas station and convenience store, consisting of the 

construction of a 3,867 square foot convenience store and a 3,755 square foot gas canopy, to be located 

on a 0.89-acre portion—designated as Pad D—of the South Medford Center, an existing commercial 

SITE PLAN & ARCHITECTURAL 
COMMISSION MINUTES 

21



Site Plan & Architectural Commission Minutes 
April 3, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 5  
 

and retail center located at the intersection of Garfield Street and Center Drive in the Regional Commer-

cial (C-R) zoning district (371W32B TL 5000 / 371W32C TL 2401); Applicant, DAR USA; Agent, Studio 3 

Architecture, Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs. 

Chair Bender asked for any potential conflicts of interest, ex-parte communications, or site visits.  There 

were none. 

Dustin Severs, Planner, gave a PowerPoint presentation of the March 27, 2020 Revised Staff Report. 

Staff recommended approval.    

Commissioner Catt wanted to know if there was sufficient room for larger vehicles to maneuver around 

within the site. Mr. Severs stated it had been reviewed by Public Works and it did meet all the require-

ments of the code.  

Commissioner Neathamer encouraged Public Works to make an effort to help with the circulation plan 

and bring something back to this commission on how it will be done.  

Doug Burroughs, Public Works, said there would be an effort on the part of the City to help facilitate 

some communication between the different property owners to come up with a circulation plan that 

works for everybody. 

The public hearing was opened and the following testimony was given: 

a)   Leonard Lodder, Studio 3 Architecture, 275 Court Street NE, Salem, Oregon, architect for the pro-

ject, noted that when they had shifted the trash enclosures to make them 10 feet from the property 

line, they had lost one of the extra parking spaces. They are now only asking for an extra two spaces 

instead of three. In regards to the requirement to add additional trees, he said there would not be a 

problem meeting that requirement.   

Chair Bender reserved rebuttal time for Mr. Lodder. 

b) James [no last name given], DAR USA, applicant, said he questioned the sidewalk along Belknap 

Drive that had been addressed in the Public Works Staff Report. He wanted to know if that condition 

would go away since they will not be using that as an access point. Mr. Burroughs stated if it’s not used 

as an access point there would be no condition. 

c) Jay Harland, CSA Planning, 4497 Brownridge Terrace, Medford, explained that his letter addressed 

what their issues were. He said he appreciated Commissioner Neathamer’s comments and Mr. Bur-

roughs’s follow-up to the circulation plan issue. He commented that it goes a long way to what needs to 

happen for that area. Whether it can get worked out or not, they still need to make an effort to try. Given 

the existing development and right-of-ways, Mr. Harland stated the City still needs to take a lead on it 

or at least coordinate it. He said he was pleased to see that it would happen and his clients have indi-

cated they will want to participate in that and are looking forward to it. 

Mr. Lodder had nothing further to add. 

The public hearing was closed. 

Motion: Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the final order for 

approval of AC-20-012 per the Revised Staff Report dated March 27, 2020, including Exhibits A through 

EE and the following: 

22



Site Plan & Architectural Commission Minutes 
April 3, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 5  
 

 Grant relief from constructing a bufferyard along the approximate 110-foot stretch of the sub-

ject site’s southerly property line 

 Approve the applicant’s request to exceed the maximum number of parking spaces 

Moved by:  Commissioner Neathamer         Seconded by:  Commissioner Culbertson 

Commissioner Catt questioned how he could vote in favor of this motion not knowing what the traffic 

circulation would be like.  

Commissioner Neathamer commented he did not think this commission had the authority to require 

that a traffic circulation be presented before this commission could approve this application. The will-

ingness from Public Works and Mr. Harland demonstrates that the possibility of finding a resolution is 

pretty high. Commissioner Neathamer felt the commission needed to stay with the motion and approve 

it.  

Chair Bender agreed with Commissioner Neathamer and added he thought the question of circulation 

are issues of future development as opposed to circulation within this site. He believed the commission 

had a clear way forward especially given the stated willingness of the surrounding land owners to dis-

cuss circulation issues. Chair Bender felt the motion should be approved.  

Roll Call Vote:  Motion passed, 8-0 

New Business. 

50.2 AC-20-021 Consideration of a proposal for the construction of a 3,000 square foot office building 

within the existing foundation footprint located at 629 Franquette Street at the intersection of Fran-

quette Street and Earhart Street within a C-H, Heavy Commercial zoning district (371W30DB TL 5500). 

Applicant/Agent: Oregon Architecture Inc.; Planner: Liz Conner 

Chair Bender asked for any potential conflicts of interest, ex-parte communications, or site visits. Com-

missioner Culbertson disclosed that he is a member of Rogue Valley Association of Realtors as well as 

Southern Oregon Multiple Listing Service (SOMLS). He stated he has a financial vested interest with 

SOMLS and would abstain from any voting on this application. 

Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director, gave a PowerPoint presentation of the March 27, 2020, Staff 

Report. Staff recommended approval. 

The public hearing was opened. 

a)   Mark McKechnie, applicant, stated they had no issues with the conditions. He said the landscap-

ers had already been planning on upgrading their landscaping and they can find a way to screen the 

trash enclosures. Mr. McKechnie said they would discuss the connection to Franquette with the land-

scape architect to see if there’s going to be any issue at how close it actually is going to be to the tree. 

The other building also has a connection to Franquette so there is a way to get to both buildings from 

Franquette Street. Part of this project was to put together a more efficient plan for the realtors as they 

move forward into the 21st century and try to solve some of the issues that are addressed in pretty much 

any brand new construction. One of those issues was accessible spaces for both sites and that’s why 

the crosswalk was created in the middle with some planters and accessible spaces to secure the access 

to both buildings.  

23



Site Plan & Architectural Commission Minutes 
April 3, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 4 of 5  
 

Mr. Burroughs referenced the legacy street standards section that was addressed in the Public Works 

Staff Report. He clarified that there had not been a legacy street conference with the City Engineer so 

they do not have any guidance as far as legacy street standards and how they might apply to Franquette 

and Earhart Streets. Without an exception request the 31.5 feet, half width right-of-way dedication 

would be required for both streets at this time. 

Mr. Burroughs also clarified that in their staff report under the improvement sections for Earhart Street 

it was noted that the sidewalk would be placed half a foot from the existing right-of-way. That was in 

anticipation that a legacy street conference would have happened. The sidewalk would need to be 

placed half a foot away from any right-of-way whether it’s existing or if there’s additional dedication it 

would be half a foot away from that right-of-way. 

Mr. McKechnie stated that he had requested the legacy street exception but they had not had a chance 

to coordinate that with Alex Georgevitch. He said they would like to make the request that this also be 

allowed to have legacy street status if appropriate. 

Mr. Burroughs responded that the problem with that is the legacy street conference is supposed to 

happen before the application is submitted. That way the memorandum can be a part of the record as 

far as what the requirements are going to be and if the applicant has any objections to what is being 

asked of them they would have the ability to provide findings addressing those requirements. He added 

he wasn’t sure if this commission had the authority to waive the 31.5 foot dedication. 

Mr. McKechnie commented they would have no objection if the commission were to keep the record 

open and move the final decision to the next meeting to allow time to get the memorandum put to-

gether. 

After reading the code, Ms. Evans explained that the City Engineer has the authority to make the deci-

sion whether the legacy street standards apply. This commission has no authority unless someone 

wants to object to the City Engineer’s decision. She suggested the commission continue this item to the 

next meeting so the issue can be resolved. 

Mr. Burroughs concurred that this item be continued to the next meeting. 

Motion:  Continue this item to the April 17, 2020, meeting. 

Moved by:  Commissioner Neathamer         Seconded by:  Commissioner Catt 

Roll Call Vote:  Motion passed, 8-0 

60. Written Communications None.  

70. Unfinished Business None. 

80. New Business None. 

90. Report from the Planning Department 

90.1 Ms. Evans announced that Commissioner Whitlock had resigned. Mr. Whitlock has accepted the 

position as City Attorney for the City of Medford. 

90.2 Ms. Evans stated there would be business scheduled for both the April 17th and May 1st meetings. 

24



Site Plan & Architectural Commission Minutes 
April 3, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 5 of 5  
 

100. Messages and Papers from the Chair  

110. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission  

110.0 Commissioner Catt said Commissioner Whitlock would be greatly missed on this commission. His 

work was very much appreciated. 

120.0 Commissioner Chmelir praised Chair Bender for the excellent job he’s doing managing the 

meetings. 

120. Adjournment 

120.1 The meeting was adjourned at approximately 1:18 p.m. The proceedings of this meeting were 

digitally recorded and are filed in the City Recorder's office. 

 

 
Submitted by: 

 

__________________________                                   ______________________________________________ 

Debbie Strigle                                                          Jeff Bender 

Recording Secretary                                               Site Plan and Architectural Commission Chair   

 

Approved:  April 17, 2020  

25



STAFF REPORT –  CONTINUANCE REQUEST 
for a Type-C quasi-judicial decision: Site Plan Review 

Project SOMLS Education Building  

 Applicant: Oregon Architecture, Inc.; Agent: Mark McKechnie 

File no. AC-20-021 

To Site Plan and Architectural Commission for 04/17/2020 hearing 

From Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date April 10, 2020 

BACKGROUND 

Proposal  

Consideration of a proposal for the construction of a 3,000 square foot office building 

within the existing foundation footprint located at 629 Franquette Street at the 

intersection of Franquette Street and Earhart Street within the C-H (Heavy 

Commercial) zoning district (371W30DB TL 5500).  

Request 

During the hearing, it came to the applicant’s attention that sidewalks are required to 

be constructed. The Commission does not have the authority to remove the code 

requirement outside the Exception process. In order for the Exception application to 

catch up, the applicant has requested that this item be continued to May 15, 2020. 

EXHIBITS 

A Continuance request received April 8, 2020 

Vicinity map  

SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION AGENDA: APRIL 3, 2020 
 APRIL 17, 2020 

 

 

26



1

Kelly Evans

From: Mark McKechnie <mark@oregonarchitecture.biz>

Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 3:00 PM

To: Kelly Evans; Liz A. Conner

Subject: RE: So OR Multiple Listing, AC20-021

<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**> 
 

Please. 

 

From: Kelly Evans <Kelly.Evans@cityofmedford.org>  

Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 2:59 PM 

To: 'Mark McKechnie' <mark@oregonarchitecture.biz>; Liz A. Conner <elizabeth.conner@cityofmedford.org> 

Subject: RE: So OR Multiple Listing, AC20-021 

 

Mark, if the application is complete the hearing will be May 15. Can we go ahead and continue it to that meeting? 

 

 

Kelly Evans | Assistant Planning Director 

City of Medford, Oregon | Planning Department 

Mailing address: 411 W 8th Street, Medford, Oregon 97501 

Office location: 200 S Ivy Street, Second Floor 

Ph: 541-774-2380 | F: 541-618-1708 

 

From: Mark McKechnie [mailto:mark@oregonarchitecture.biz]  

Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 2:51 PM 

To: Kelly Evans <Kelly.Evans@cityofmedford.org>; Liz A. Conner <Elizabeth.Conner@cityofmedford.org> 

Subject: RE: So OR Multiple Listing, AC20-021 

 

<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**> 
 

Kelly, 

 

Please continue the SPAC application for Southern Oregon Multiple Listing and let the Exception Application catch 

up.  Thank you. 

 

I expect to have the Application in shortly. 

 

Mark McKechnie, AIA 

Agent for the Applicant 

 

From: Kelly Evans <Kelly.Evans@cityofmedford.org>  

Sent: Wednesday, April 8, 2020 2:13 PM 

To: 'Mark McKechnie' <mark@oregonarchitecture.biz>; Liz A. Conner <elizabeth.conner@cityofmedford.org> 

Subject: RE: So OR Multiple Listing, AC20-021 

 

Mark – 

 

27

Mike Casper
Stamp



629 Franquette Street
New Commercial Building

1/24/2020

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

§̈¦5
E 12th St

Mayette
St

E 9th St

Tri
pp

 St

Franquette St

Arcadia
St

W 13th
St

Eads St

E 13th St

E 11th St

Earhart St

E 11th St

E 9th St

E 10th St

Commercial Ct

Spencer St

S Front St

PortlandAv e

S Fir St

Bear Creek Ln

Co
tta

ge
S t

E 12th St

E 10th St

Siskiyou Blvd
S Riverside Ave

S Central Ave

4

3

2

1

AC20-021
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 510255 Feet

Legend
Subject Area
Tax Lots s371W30DB TL 5500

28



STAFF REPORT 
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: Site Plan & Architectural Review & Exception 

Project Hong (Kevin) Wu 
Applicant: Hong (Kevin) Wu 
Agent: Richard Stevens & Associates 

File no. AC-20-010 & E-20-011 

To Site Plan and Architectural Commission for 4/17/2020 hearing 

From Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date April 8, 2020 

BACKGROUND 

Proposal 

Consideration of a proposal for the construction of an approximately 2,900 square 
foot restaurant and 12 multiple family dwelling units on two parcels totaling 0.98 
acres, located at 2217 & 2301 E Barnett Road within the C-S/P (Service Commercial & 
Professional Office) and MFR-20 (Multiple Family Residential – 15 to 20 dwelling units 
per gross acre) zoning districts, and including an Exception request to the parking 
standards for multiple family residential dwellings. (371W29DC9700 & 9800) 

Vicinity Map 

29



Subject Site Characteristics 

GLUP SC (Service Commercial) & UH (Urban High Density Residential) 

Zoning C-S/P (Service Commercial & Professional Office)

MFR-20 (Multiple Family Residential – 15 to 20 dwelling units per gross 
acre) 

Overlay None 

Use Vacant 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North Zone: SFR-10 (Single Family Residential – 6 to 10 dwelling units per 
gross acre) 

Use: Low density residential 

South Zone: MFR-30 (Multiple Family Residential – 20 to 30 dwelling units per 
gross acre) 

Use: Apartment Complex 

East  Zone: MFR-20 & SFR-6 (Single Family Residential – 4 to 6 dwelling units 
per gross acre) 

Use: Low density residential 

West Zone: MFR-20 & C-C (Community Commercial) 
Use: Medium density residential and commercial offices 

Related Projects 

AC-00-035 New Office Building 
GLUP-19-003 General Land Use Plan Map change from Urban High Density 

Residential to Service Commercial 
ZC-19-013  Zone change from MFR-20 to C-S/P 

Applicable Criteria 

Medford Municipal Code §10. 200(E)(1) & (2) – Site Plan & Architectural Review Criteria 

(E) Site Plan and Architectural Review Approval Criteria (Type II & III). 

(1) The Site Plan and Architectural Commission, SPAC – Type III Review, shall approve 
a site plan and architectural review application for a commercial or industrial 
development, if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or can be made 
to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following criteria: 

30



(a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 
exist on adjacent land, and 

(b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all 
city ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved 
(an) exception(s) as provided in Section 10.186. 

(2) The approving authority shall approve a site plan and architectural review 
application for a residential development if the proposed development complies with 
the applicable provisions of all city ordinances, or if the Site Plan and Architectural 
Commission has approved either of the following: 

(a) Any Exceptions, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.186, which resolve(s) 
any instances of non-compliance with those provisions. 

(b) Any Adjustments or Exceptions from the Special Development Standards 
for Multiple-Family Dwellings, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.715A 
through 10.717. 

(c) Any Adjustments or Exceptions from the Development Standards for a
Cottage Cluster Development, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.818A. 

Medford Municipal Code §10.186(B) – Criteria for Exception 

No exception, in the strict application of the provisions of this chapter, shall be 
granted by the approving authority having jurisdiction over the land use review unless 
it finds that all of the Chapter 10 Article II following criteria and standards are satisfied. 
The power to authorize an exception from the terms of this code shall be sparingly 
exercised. Findings must indicate that: 

(1) The granting of the exception shall be in harmony with the general purpose 
and intent of the regulations imposed by this code for the zoning district in 
which the exception request is located, and shall not be injurious to the 
general area or otherwise detrimental to the health, safety, and general 
welfare or adjacent natural resources. The approving authority shall have the 
authority to impose conditions to assure that this criterion is met. 

(2) The granting of an exception will not permit the establishment of a use 
which is not permitted in the zoning district within which the exception is 
located. 

(3) There are unique or unusual circumstances which apply to this site which 
do not typically apply elsewhere in the City, and that the strict application of 
the standard(s) for which an exception is being requested would result in 
peculiar, exceptional, and undue hardship on the owner. 

31



(4) The need for the exception is not the result of an illegal act nor can it be 
established on this basis by one who purchases the land or building with or 
without knowledge of the standards of this code. It must result from the 
application of this chapter, and it must be suffered directly by the property in 
question. It is not sufficient proof in granting an exception to show that greater 
profit would result. 

Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. The Site Plan & Architectural Commission is the 
approving authority under MLDC 10.108(1). 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Background 

The subject site is currently vacant. Both subject parcels contained single-family 
residences in the past. All structures were recently demolished.  

Taxlot 9800 to the west was recently rezoned from MFR-20 to C-S/P in order to be 
developed with a restaurant use as now proposed and multi-family residential units. 
Taxlot 9700 (east) is zoned MFR-20 which does allow for the proposed multi-family 
development. Taxlot 9900 was developed in the early 2000’s (AC-00-035) with a 
commercial structure which is currently being used as a dentistry. 

TL9800 

TL9900 

TL9700 

32



Current proposal 

The proposal will utilize the existing cur-cut, drive aisle, and parking serving dentistry 
on taxlot 9900 to the far west. The existing parking lot in front of the office building is 
proposed to connect to the new parking lot extension for the restaurant and for the 
proposed multi-family buildings.  

The proposed 12 multiple family units in two buildings (six per structure) do meet the 
minimum density requirements of six units per parcel. In addition, the proposed 
2,900 square foot restaurant is a permitted use within the C-S/P zoning district.  

33



Development Standards 

Site Development Table – Restaurant 

C-S/P Allowed/Required Proposed 

Height 35 feet 12 feet 

Setback (front) 10 feet 61+ feet 

Setback 
(rear and side 

yards) 
none 

10 feet (west) and 28 
feet (east) 

107 feet (rear) 

Site Development Table – MFR in C-S/P 

C-S/P Allowed/Required Proposed 

Height 35 feet 19.2 feet 

Setback (front) 10 feet 125 feet 

Setback 
(rear and side 

yards) 
none 

10 feet (west) and 40 
feet (east) 

19 feet (rear) 

Site Development Table – MFR in MFR-20 

MFR-20 Allowed/Required Proposed 

Height 35 feet 19.2 feet 

Setback (front) 10 feet 110 feet 

Setback 
(rear and side 

yards) 
6.5 feet 

10 feet (east) and 40 
feet (west) 

19 feet (rear) 

As shown in the Site Development Tables above, it can be found that the proposed 
buildings identified on the submitted site plan, meet the bulk standards for the C-S/P 
and MFR-20 zoning districts as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development 
Code. 

Parking 

A total of 53 standard vehicle spaces will be provided as part of this horizontal mixed-
use development. Per the MLDC Table 10.743-1, at a minimum, a total of 62 vehicular 
parking spaces will be required. Included in this number are 18 spaces that are 
required per current code for the existing dentist office.  

34



MLDC 10.744 allows the off-street requirements of two or more uses, structures, or 
parcels of land to be satisfied by the same parking spaces used jointly to the extent 
that it can be shown that the parking needs for the uses do not overlap. In their 
findings, the applicant explained that the proposal is nine spaces shy of the minimum, 
but, via a shared parking agreement, the development will provide sufficient parking. 

Per the applicant, the proposed parking arrangement allows for the maximum use of 
the property while still providing adequate parking for all uses. Through the shared 
parking arrangement, the applicant contends that the provided number of parking 
stalls will be sufficient to serve the three uses as each of the three uses will have 
different peak parking demands, as shown below:   

The restaurant will serve only lunch and dinner and will have peak parking demand 
in the afternoons, evenings and weekend. The dental office will be open only during 
weekday mornings and afternoons. Residential uses will have lower parking demands 
during the late morning and afternoon as more people are away from their homes 
during these times.  

Parking Table (MLDC 10.743-751) 

Residential Use Required Shown 

Vehicle Spaces 1.5 per dwelling unit 
18 spaces total 

57 total 

Bicycle Spaces 12 12 

Restaurant Use 
(2,904 sq. ft.) Required Shown 

Vehicle Spaces 9 spaces per 1,000 sq. ft. 
26.1 spaces total 

57 total 

Bicycle Spaces 5 5 

35



Dental Office Use 
(3,490 square feet 
plus two doctors) 

Required Shown 

Vehicle Spaces 
4.5 spaces per 1,000 square feet 

plus one space per doctor 
17.7 (18) spaces total 

57 total 

Bicycle Spaces 5 5 

The submitted site plan shows a total of 53 standard parking stalls, not meeting the 
minimum required of 62 as per MLDC 10.743(1). Also included on the site plan are 
four two-wheeled parking spaces and three ADA spaces. Per MLDC 10.743(5), 5% of 
the required parking can be two-wheeled parking which reduces the overall standard 
vehicle parking stall deficit to five spaces. As mentioned above, the applicant is 
requesting the Commission to approve findings regarding a shared parking 
arrangement stating that the proposed amount of parking stalls can satisfy all three 
uses.  

Bicycle parking is required at a rate of one space per dwelling unit and 10% of the 
required parking for the restaurant and dentist use. The site plan shows the location 
of five bike parking spaces near the front entrance of the restaurant and one lockable 
exterior storage room per dwelling unit.  

Block Length and Perimeter Length Standards 

The subject property is located along E Barnett Road between Ellendale Drive to the 
west and Crestbrook Road to the east; Lazy Creek runs along the northerly property 
boundary. Both the block length (1,245 feet) and perimeter length (3,635 feet) 
standards exceed the maximum of 660 feet and 2,100 feet, respectively per MLDC 
10.426(C)(1). However, per MLDC 10.426(C)(2), the approving authority can find that 
exceeding the maximum standards are acceptable when certain constraints exist. In 
this case, environmental constraints (Lazy Creek) prevent an additional route from 
Barnett Road to Crestbrook Road to the north. The same is true for a required public 
access way, in conformance with MLDC 10.464. MLDC 10.464(1)(c) & (d) allow relief 
from the requirement for a public accessway when the accessway would cross a 
natural area and would cross a flood hazard area, as is the case here. Therefore, an 
accessway will not have to be provided as part of this project. 

36



Architecture 

1 - Proposed New Restaurant 

2 - Proposed New Multi-Family Structure 

The applicant’s findings state that the proposed restaurant will be a single-story 
structure with an 8:12 pitched roof and will look similar to the dental office existing 
on TL 9900. The building will have windows on the street facing and parking lot facing 
sides and the materials are varied vertically to add dimension and visual interest. The 
materials on the exterior of the building will include vertical board and batten siding, 
aluminum storefront windows, horizontal Hardi lap siding with staggered reveal, 
cedar trim and Hardi shake siding.  

Colors will change across materials and will include Mountain Sage horizontal lap 
siding, Harris Cream shake siding, Timber Bark board and batten siding, Cobble Stone 
building, door and window trim, and Charcoal roof materials. 

37



Multi-Family Development Standards 

MLDC 10.717 through 
10.719 establish a series of 
clear and objective 
standards for multiple-
family dwellings. The 
proposed multi-family 
development does meet 
most of the standards as 
demonstrated in the 
applicant’s findings.
However, an Exception is 
required for the Vehicular 
Circulation and Parking 
section. MLDC10.717(F)(1) 
states that no parking shall 
be located within any 
required front yard area, 
and no automobile 
circulation or parking areas 
shall be located between 
the buildings and the street. 

As can be seen on the site plan, driveways and a total of 21 parking spaces are located 
between the public right-of-way and the two residential dwellings.  

Per the applicant, the multiple-family Special Development Standards regarding 
parking do not appear to contemplate mixed-use development occurring on 
commercial properties as it is generally appropriate to locate the commercial portion 
of a mixed-use development near the street (…). This orientation provides the benefit 
of better street exposure for the commercial development while also providing 
separation between the residential development and the street. (…) The required 
cross-access on these properties necessitates the location of at least some vehicular 
circulation between the street and any buildings that can be located on the property. 
(…) All of these, individually, are unique and unusual circumstances that apply to this 
site.  

Bufferyard 

A 6-foot masonry wall plus a 10-foot landscape buffer will be provided, as required 
along the north portion of the east property line of TL 9700 (see above) to buffer the 
proposed multi-family use from the existing single-family residential use.  

38



The Commission may find that the project does abut existing development where the 
adjacent uses are the same and compatible for the east boundary wall. Therefore, no 
buffer is required along this part of the property (MLDC 10.790(E)(6)(c). Additionally, 
a bufferyard along the north and northwest boundary would conflict with Lazy Creek 
and the riparian/flood zone. Consequently no buffer will be required along those 
property lines. (MLDC10.790[E][6][d]) 

Landscaping 

The applicant’s submitted landscape plan (Exhibit F) shows landscaping along the 
site’s frontage with E Barnett Road, meeting the minimum required number of trees 
and shrubs as per MLDC 10.797.   

Frontage Landscaping (MLDC 10.797) 

Table Rock Road Required Shown 

Trees 7 7 

Shrubs 44 44+ 

Riparian Area 

As can be seen on this aerial 
image, Lazy Creek runs along the 
north boundary of the subject 
properties and the riparian 
corridor extends into the 
development area. Usually, the 
riparian corridor extends 50 feet 
from the top of bank and 
development is restricted within 
this area. However, MLDC 10.927 
does allow for the reduction of the 
riparian corridor to 25 feet from 
the top of bank when it is 
determined that equal or better 
protection of the riparian area will 
be ensured through a plan for 
restoration, enhancement, or 

similar measures. The applicant did contact the Oregon Department of Fish & Wildlife 
with a plan for restoration and enhancement of the riparian corridor. ODFW 
recommended the plans submitted be approved (Exhibit Q). Per MLDC 10.927, the 
Planning Director has the authority to reduce the riparian corridor boundary 
provisions after ODFW commented on the plans.  

39



Committee Comments 

No comments were received from committees such as BPAC. 

No other issues were identified by staff.  

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1) The Site Plan and Architectural Commission, SPAC – Type III Review, shall approve 
a site plan and architectural review application for a commercial or industrial 
development, if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or can be made 
to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following criteria: 

(a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 
exist on adjacent land, and 

The Commission can find that there is sufficient evidence contained in the applicant’s 
findings and the Staff Report to determine that the proposal is compatible with the 
uses and development on adjacent land.  This criterion is satisfied.   

(b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all 
city ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved 
(an) exception(s) as provided in Section 10.186. 

The Commission can find that the proposal can be made to comply with the 
applicable provisions of the Code with the imposition of conditions of approval 
contained in Exhibit A and approval of the associated Exception application.   This 
criterion is satisfied.   

(2) The approving authority shall approve a site plan and architectural review 
application for a residential development if the proposed development complies with 
the applicable provisions of all city ordinances, or if the Site Plan and Architectural 
Commission has approved either of the following: 

(a) Any Exceptions, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.186, which resolve(s) 
any instances of non-compliance with those provisions. 

The Commission can find that the proposal can be made to comply with the 
applicable provisions of the Code with the imposition of conditions of approval 
contained in Exhibit A and approval of the associated Exception application.   This 
criterion is satisfied. 

40



(b) Any Adjustments or Exceptions from the Special Development Standards 
for Multiple-Family Dwellings, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.715A 
through 10.717. 

The Commission can find that the proposal can be made to comply with the 
applicable provisions of the Code with the imposition of conditions of approval 
contained in Exhibit A and approval of the associated Exception application.   This 
criterion is satisfied. 

(c) Any Adjustments or Exceptions from the Development Standards for a
Cottage Cluster Development, as provided for in MLDC Section 10.818A. 

Not applicable. 

Medford Municipal Code §10.186(B) – Criteria for Exception 

No exception, in the strict application of the provisions of this chapter, shall be 
granted by the approving authority having jurisdiction over the land use review unless 
it finds that all of the Chapter 10 Article II following criteria and standards are satisfied. 
The power to authorize an exception from the terms of this code shall be sparingly 
exercised. Findings must indicate that: 

(1) The granting of the exception shall be in harmony with the general purpose 
and intent of the regulations imposed by this code for the zoning district in 
which the exception request is located, and shall not be injurious to the 
general area or otherwise detrimental to the health, safety, and general 
welfare or adjacent natural resources. The approving authority shall have the 
authority to impose conditions to assure that this criterion is met. 
(2) The granting of an exception will not permit the establishment of a use 
which is not permitted in the zoning district within which the exception is 
located. 
(3) There are unique or unusual circumstances which apply to this site which 
do not typically apply elsewhere in the City, and that the strict application of 
the standard(s) for which an exception is being requested would result in 
peculiar, exceptional, and undue hardship on the owner. 
(4) The need for the exception is not the result of an illegal act nor can it be 
established on this basis by one who purchases the land or building with or 
without knowledge of the standards of this code. It must result from the 
application of this chapter, and it must be suffered directly by the property in 
question. It is not sufficient proof in granting an exception to show that greater 
profit would result. 

Staff finds that the approval of the exception request is in harmony with the general 
purpose and intent of the C-S/P and MFR-20 zoning district, and will not be injurious 

41



to the general area or otherwise detrimental to the health, safety, and general welfare 
or adjacent natural resources; will not permit the establishment of a use which is not 
permitted in the C-S/P zoning district; the Multi-Family Special Development 
Standards regarding parking do not contemplate mixed-use development occurring 
on commercial properties, the shape of Taxlot 9700, and the required cross-access 
across the front of TL9800 are unique or unusual circumstances which apply to this 
site which does not apply elsewhere in the City; and the need for the exception is not 
the result of an illegal act. 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s findings and conclusions (Exhibit I) and 
recommends the Commission adopt the findings as recommended by staff. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the final order 
for approval of AC-20-010 and E-20-011 per the staff report dated April 8, 2020, 
including: 

• Exhibits A through U
• Approval of the applicant’s request for an Exception in order to place vehicular 

parking and circulation areas between the street and the multiple family
structures

• Approval of the applicant’s request for partial relief from MLDC 10.790
bufferyard requirements

• Approval of the applicant’s request to relief from meeting the minimum
number of parking spaces via a shared parking arrangement

• Approval of a 25-foot riparian corridor reduction.
• Approval to the relief for Block Length and Perimeter Length standards and

Public Accessway standards

EXHIBITS 

A Conditions of Approval, drafted April 8, 2020.  
B Revised Site Plan, received April 7, 2020. 
C Drainage & Utilities Plan, received January 14, 2020 
D Roof Plans, received January 14, 2020 
E Floor Plans, received January 14, 2020 
F Landscape Plans, received January 14, 2020 
G Elevations, received January 14, 2020 
H Detail Plans, received January 14, 2020 

42



I Revised Findings, received March 25, 2020 
J Code Compliance, received January 14, 2020 
K Site Images, received January 14, 2020 
L Revised Public Works Report, received March 11, 2020 
M Fire Department Report, received February 18, 2020 
N Medford Water Commission Report, dated February 26, 2020 
O City Surveyor Memo, received February 19, 2020 
P Avista email, received February 21, 2020 
Q ODFW Letter re: Riparian reduction, received January 14, 2020 
R Legal Descriptions, received January 14, 2020 
S Property Line Adjustment Deed, received January 14, 2020 
T Aerial Images, received January 14, 2020 
U Density Calculations, dated February 25, 2020 

Vicinity map  

SPAC AGENDA APRIL 17, 2020 

43



EXHIBIT A 

Hong (Kevin) Wu 
AC-20-010 & E-20-011 

Conditions of Approval 
April 8, 2020 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction, the applicant shall: 

1. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Public Works Department (Exhibit L).
2. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit N).
3. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit M).
4. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Oregon Department of Fish & Wildlife

(Exhibit Q).

44



1
4

 
N

O
R

T
H

 
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

0
6

M
E

D
F

O
R

D
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N
 
9

7
5

0
1

F
A

X
 
(
5

4
1

)
-
7

7
9

-
0

4
8

3

P
H

.
 
(
5

4
1

)
-
7

7
2

-
3

0
0

0

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



 BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

 Staff Memo 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\ac20010-e20011.docx  
Page 1 of 2 

TO: Planning Department, City of Medford

FROM: Rodney Grehn P.E., Water Commission Staff Engineer

SUBJECT: AC-20-010 & E-20-011 

PARCEL ID: 371W29DC TL 9700 & 9800

PROJECT: Consideration of a proposal for the construction of an approximately 3,500 square 
foot restaurant and 12 multiple family dwelling units on two parcels totaling 0.98 
acres, located at 2217 & 2301 E Barnett Road within the C-S/P (Service 
Commercial & Professional Offices) and MFR-20 (Multiple Family Residential – 15 
to 20 dwelling units per gross acre) and including an Exception request to the 
parking standards for multiple family residential dwellings (371W29DC9700 & 
9800). Applicant, Hong (Kevin) Wu; Agent, Richard Stevens & Associates, Inc.; 
Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt.

DATE: February 26, 2020 

I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested.  Conditions for approval and 
comments are as follows: 

CONDITIONS 

1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the
Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and “Standards
For Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devices.”

2. All parcels/lots of proposed property divisions will be required to have metered water service
prior to recordation of final map, unless otherwise arranged with MWC.

3. There are two (2) existing ¾-inch water meters along the north side of E Barnett Road with
1-inch copper service lines from the existing 12-inch water main to each water meter. These
two water meters can be upsized to a “full” 1-inch water meter (Approx. $2600 each) which
could “potentially” serve each of the two (2) proposed 6-unit, two-story Multi-family units on
Tax Lot 9700 & 9800. (See attached Water Facility Map)

4. The proposed “New Commercial Building” requires the installation of a “new” water service.
Applicants owner/civil engineer shall coordinate with MWC Engineering staff for size and
location of this water meter. Water meters are required to be installed outside of existing or
proposed driveways.

5. Installation of an Oregon Health Authority approved backflow device is required for all
commercial, industrial, municipal, and multi-family developments. New backflow devices
shall be tested by an Oregon certified backflow assembly tester. See MWC website for list
of certified testers at the following web link http://www.medfordwater.org/Page.asp?NavID=35 .

Continued to Next Page 

103



 BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

 Staff Memo 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\ac20010-e20011.docx  
Page 2 of 2 

Continued from Previous Page 

COMMENTS

1. Off-site water line installation is not required.

2. On-site water facility construction is not required.

3. There is an existing fire hydrant located slightly east of the existing east property line.

4. Static water pressure at this site is approximately 74 psi.

5. MWC-metered water service does exist to this property. There are two (2) existing ¾-inch
water meters across the frontage of this property. (See Condition 3 above)

6. Access to MWC water lines is available. There is an existing 12-inch water line in E Barnett
Road, located in west bound travel lanes.

104



G

G

! (

! ( ! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

!R

!R

!R

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4 !4

!4!4

!4
!4

!4 !4 !4
!4

!4

!4

!4!4

!4

!4

!4

!4
!4

!4
!4

!4
!4

!4
!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4 G!.

G!.
G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

3/4M

2400
3/4M

2300
1 1/2M

2217
3/4M

2115-2121
1M

M

2300
1 1/2M

2300
1 1/2M

2201
3/4M

2109
3/4M

3/4M

2101
3/4M

2325
1M

820
3/4M

811
3/4M

812
3/4M

821
3/4M

831
3/4M

841
3/4M

830
3/4M

840
3/4M

851
3/4M

2240
3/4M

2250
3/4M

2212
3/4M

2206
3/4M

2176
3/4M

2180
3/4M 2184

3/4M

2190
3/4M

2198
3/4M

2172
3/4M

2200
3/4M

2160
3/4M

2160
3/4M

2160
3/4M

2160
3/4M

2160
3/4M

2160
3/4M

2200
1M

2200
1M

2200
1M

2200
1M

2200
1M

2200
1M

2200
1M

2200
1M

2200
1M

850
3/4M

3/4M

2160
3/4M

2196
3/4M

2301
3/4M

Gravity

1'' C

3/
4'
' C

3/
4'
' C

3/
4'
' C

3/
4'
' C

3/
4'
' C

3/
4'
' C

1'
' C

3/4'' C

3/4'' C

3/
4'
'C

3/4'' C

3/
4'
' C

3/
4'
' C

1'' C

3/4''C

1'
' C

3/4''C

1''C

8''DI2004WO40401

830

2200
219021802176

2184

850

841

851

2198

2400

2100

2325

2101

2200

2200

2200

2240

2160

831

2417

812

2212

2206

820

2172

2300

2300

2300

2300
2300

2300

2300
23002300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2121

2200

2409

2300

821

2300

2300

23002300 2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2200

2200

2217

2301

2200

2200

2109

2401

2160

840

2160

811

2160 2160

2300

2250

2300

2201

2200

2300

2115

2300

2300

2160

2300

23002300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300
2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2115

2115

2115

2115

2121 2121

2300

2325

232523252325
2325

2160

2300
6
'' 
C
I 
1
9
6
3

1
2
'' 
C
I 
1
9
5
6

8
''D

I
1
9
9
3

8
'' 
D
I 
2
0
0
5

8'' DI 2004

12''CI
1956

8
'' 
C
I 
1
9
5
8

H2088
Elev: 1417 ft

H2100
Elev: 1411 ft

H2101
Elev: 1415 ft

H2258
Elev: 1421 ft

H2273
Elev: 1414 ft

H4511
Elev: 1416 ft

8'' TV1302

8'' TV1308

8'' TV2271

6'' GV5394

6''GV5420

6'' GV5421

6'' GV5774

6'' GV5778

12'' GV5779

6'' GV5780

6'' GV5792

6'' GV10802

8'' Stub
10'
2005
-009180

1
0
'

2
0
0
5

-0
4
8
4
7
6

1
0
'

2
0
0
5
-0
5
1
3
1
3 1

0
'

1
9
9
3
-0
5
0
1
3

EBarnet
tRd

H
ill
d
al
e 
A
v

Crestb
ro
o
k
R
d

This map is based on a digital database compiled by  Medford Water Commission from a
varietyofsources.MedfordWaterCommissioncannotacceptresponsibilityforerrors,
omissions,orpositionalaccuracy.Therearenowarranties,expressedorimplied.

Legend

Water Mains:

Urban Growth Boundary

City Limits

Tax Lots

!RReservoir

"PPump Station

Control Station;̄C

Sample Station

Air Valve

³ Fire Service

Hydrant

Reducer#

Blow Off

Plugs-Caps

Abandoned Main

Active Main

S

!#A

T"B

G

G!.

Reservoir Drain Pipe

Pressure Zone Line

Boundaries:

MWC Facilities:

Butterfly Valve

Gate Valve

Tapping Valve

&É

! (

!R

Water Valves:

Water Meters:
Active Meter

On Well

Unknown

Vacant

!4

!4

!4

!4

±
Water Facility Map
City of Medford

Planning Application:
AC-20-020 E-20-011

(371W29DC9700, 9800)
Feb 26, 2020

Scale:
0 50 10025

Feet

1:1,200

Date: 2/13/2020
Path:\\medfordwater.org\public\File Shares\Departments\GIS\Mapping\Projects\LD Map Maker\LD
Map Maker.aprx105



106

JMProud
Text Box
Steffen, the attached description describes the 'subject area' depicted on vicinity map.  Thanks, Jon  2-28-20



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



1

Steffen K. Roennfeldt

From: McFadden, David <David.McFadden@avistacorp.com>
Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 3:59 PM
To: Steffen K. Roennfeldt
Cc: mike@csaplanning.net
Subject: AC 20-010        

<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**> 

Dear Mr. Roenfeldt and others whom it may concern: 

Avista has not received any documents about this proposal, other than City Planning cover sheet. 

The City of Medford’s Street Moratorium has lapsed as of 08‐17‐2019 which enables Avista to provide  
service within the City’s normal permit schedule.  

The State of Oregon allows Avista to cover the construction cost within the right of way, and for the 
first 40’ on the property, and Avista allows an additional 20’ for new customers.   However, a  
commercial restaurant also qualifies for additional construction allowances.   But even with the little  
information provide; you and the developer should know that Avista will be able to bring natural gas  
service off the street for restaurant use, and other uses on the property, at no cost to the developer.   

Sincerely Yours 

David McFadden 
Gas Facility Designer 

580 Business Park Drive 
Medford, OR. 97504 
Cell        541-941-4055 
Office    541-858-4740 
Fax        509-777-5584 

For Information on Programs, Incentives and Cash  
Rebates for your Home, Rental or Business, visit 
https://www.avistautilities.com/savings/rebates/Pages/default.aspx 

Or call Energy Trust of Oregon @ 1‐866‐368‐7878. 

Avista Fuel Cost Calculator 
https://www.avistautilities.com/savings/suite/Pages/fuelcalculator.aspx 

This email (including any attachments) may contain confidential and privileged information, and unauthorized disclosure or use is prohibited. 
If you are not an intended recipient, please notify the sender and delete this email from your system. Thank you 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The contents of this email message and any attachments are intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain 
confidential and/or privileged information and may be legally protected from disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient of this message or an agent 
of the intended recipient, or if this message has been addressed to you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply email and then delete this 
message and any attachments. 

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



City of Medford 411 W. 8th Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2380 cityofmedford.org 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III 

From: Liz Conner, Planner II, CFM    

Date: April 8, 2020 

Subject:  AC-20-020/E-20-011 2217 & 2301 E Barnett Road 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Consideration of a proposal for the construction of an approximately 3,500 square foot 

restaurant and 12 multiple family dwelling units on two parcels totaling 0.98 acres, located 

at 2217 & 2301 E Barnett Road within the C-S/P (Service Commercial & Professional Offices) 

and MFR-20 (Multiple Family Residential – 15 to 20 dwelling units per gross acre) and 

including an Exception request to the parking standards for multiple family residential 

dwellings (371W29DC9700 & 9800). 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS 

 Property zoned Commercial Service Professional (C-S/P)

 Lazy Creek located north of the northern property line

 Riparian Corridor located on the property

 Vacant lots

 Special Flood Hazard Area Zone AE with Base Flood Elevation

 FIRM Panel 41029C1979F (effective 05/03/2011)

FLOODPLAIN & RIPARIAN CORRIDOR REGULATIONS 

The property is currently within a mapped AE zone with Base Flood Elevations. The 

designated floodway is contained within the structure north of the property. Per the National 

Flood Insurance Program Regulations, any vertical structures and utilities shall comply with 

44 CFR 60.3(a),(b),(c), and (d) and MMC Section 9.706. 

The Medford Floodplain regulations are found in Sections 9.701-9.707 of the Municipal Code.  

The sections pertaining to areas of special flood hazard with Base Flood Elevations (BFE) need 

to be reviewed and adhered to specifically, along with other relevant sections.     

129



Projects: AC-20-020/E-20-011 

April 8, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 

A Floodplain Development Permit is required prior to development in the Special Flood 

Hazard Areas (SFHA).  Development is broadly defined and includes, but is not limited to, 

grading, filling, paving, and construction of buildings.   

The northern 50 feet of the property located within the Riparian Corridor.  It appears new 

encroachment into the Riparian Corridor will occur with the new multi-family structure which 

may require a Riparian Corridor Reduction or Deviation approval.   

FLOODPLAIN MANAGER COMMENTS 

Prior to any site development the applicant shall obtain approval of a Floodplain 

Development permit.  

Submit a floodplain development application and fee along with submittal requirements 

identified in Section 9.705 (C).  An Elevation Certificate (EC) is required with the submittal of 

building permits for new commercial structures located in the special flood hazard area (one 

at the time of building permit submittal, one during construction, and one prior to certificate 

of occupancy).  As well as any flood proofing certifications that may be required.    

Submit copies of all necessary permits from other governmental agencies from which 

approval is required prior to start of construction. 

Construction shall be in compliance with applicable building and fire codes and floodplain 

regulations. 

Expiration of Floodplain Permit 

A floodplain Development Permit shall become invalid unless work is started within 180 days 

after its issuance.  Extensions for periods of not more than 180 days each shall be requested 

in writing.   

130



USGS The National Map: Orthoimagery. Data refreshed April, 2019.

National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Ü

12
2°

50
'51

.32
"W

 42°19'12.05"N 

122°50'13.87"W

42°18'45.45"N 

SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREAS

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V, A99

With BFE or Depth Zone AE, AO, AH, VE, AR
Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mile  Zone X
Future Conditions 1% Annual
Chance Flood Hazard Zone X
Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes. Zone X
Area with Flood Risk due to Levee Zone D

NO SCREEN Area of Minimal Flood Hazard Zone X

Area of Undetermined Flood Hazard Zone D

Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer
Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
17.5 Water Surface Elevation

Coastal Transect

Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)

Effective LOMRs

Limit of Study
Jurisdiction Boundary

Digital Data Available
No Digital Data Available
Unmapped

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of 
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below. 
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap 
accuracy standards
The flood hazard information is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 2/28/2020 at 5:38:28 PM  and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.
This map image is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
regulatory purposes. 

Legend

OTHER AREAS OF
FLOOD HAZARD

OTHER AREAS

GENERAL
STRUCTURES

OTHER
FEATURES

MAP PANELS

8

1:6,000

B 20.2

The pin displayed on the map is an approximate 
point selected by the user and does not represent 
an authoritative property location.

131



 

 

STAFF REPORT  
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: Site Plan Review 

Project 1800 Knutson   

 Applicant: Nansen Investment Group; Agent: Todd Powell 

File no. AC-20-037 

To Site Plan & Architectural Commission for 04/17/ 2020 hearing 

From Liz Conner, CFM Planner II 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director  

Date April 8, 2020  

BACKGROUND 

Proposal 

Consideration of a proposal for the construction of a 33,600 square foot metal 

commercial storage and office facility on a single 2.04 acre parcel located at 1170 

Knutson Avenue in the I-G (General Industrial) zoning district (371W18BB TL 2600). 

Vicinity Map 

  

132



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 2 of 14 

 

Subject Site Characteristics 

GLUP GI General Industrial 

Zoning I-G General Industrial 

Overlay A-C Airport Area of Concern   

Use Vacant 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North Zone: I-L (Light Industrial)  

 Use: Office Use  

South Zone: I-G 

 Use: Auto Body/Paint Shop 

East  Zone: I-G 

 Use: Batting Cages/Office Park  

West Zone: I-G 

 Use: Door Hardware Manufacturing 

Related Projects 

Rogue Valley Industrial Park Subdivision -1976   

Applicable Criteria 

Medford Municipal Code §10.200(E). Site Plan and Architectural Review Approval 

Criteria 

(1)  The Site Plan and Architectural Commission, SPAC – Type III Review, shall approve 

a site plan and architectural review application for a commercial or industrial 

development, if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or can be 

made to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following criteria: 

  (a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 

exist on adjacent land, and 

(b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all 

city ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved 

(an) exception(s) as provided in Section 10.186. 

 

 

133



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 3 of 14 

 

Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. The Commission is the approving authority under 

MLDC 10.110(H).  

Corporate Names 

The Oregon Secretary of State website lists Robb Mayers as the registered agent for 

Nansen Investment Group and Outlier Construction, LLC.  

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Background 

The subject site is part of the Rogue Valley Industrial Park – Unit No. 2 subdivision that 

was platted in 1976. The site is vacant with one access to Knutson Avenue. There is 

an existing cross access easement in place that serves 1160 Knutson Avenue to the 

west.   

 
Figure 1 – Aerial Photo 

134



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 4 of 14 

 

The subject building will be located along the west property boundary. Parking will be 

located on the west side of the building. A 20-foot wide drive aisle circles the building 

and will employ the shared access easement.  

Development Standards 

The site development standards for industrial zoned land is found in MLDC Section 

10.721. The table below demonstrates that the site meets the minimum requirements 

for development. 

 

  

Figure 2 – Site Plan 

135



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 5 of 14 

 

Commercial – Industrial Site Development Table (MLDC 10.721) 

I-G Zone Allowed/Required Proposed 

Height 
85 feet (35 feet if located within 

150 feet of a residential zone) 
30 feet 

Lot Coverage 90% 38% 

Setback (front) 10 feet 50+ feet 

Setback  

(rear and side yards) 
5 feet 30 feet 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the proposed 

building identified on the submitted site plan meets the bulk standards for the I-G 

zoning district as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development Code. 

Parking 

Parking Table (MLDC 10.743-751) 

 Required Provided 

Vehicle Spaces 17 17 

Bicycle Spaces 4 4 

The project proposed to have 10 employees on the largest shift. The site meets the 

minimum requirements for off-street parking for industrial warehouse. The site plan 

(Exhibit B) identifies four bicycle parking spaces along the north side of the structure.  

Landscaping 

Frontage Landscaping (MLDC 10.797) 

Knutson Avenue       

(45 feet) 
Required Shown 

Trees 1 0 

Shrubs 7 0 

 

The site has approximately 45 feet of street frontage which requires a minimum of 

seven shrubs and one tree.  

 

136



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 6 of 14 

 

The landscape plan (Exhibit 

G) does not identify the 

required street frontage 

landscaping. A condition of 

approval has been included 

to install the required 

landscaping.  

 

 

The aerial photo shows the 

area where frontage land-

scaping is required. 

 

Pedestrian Access 

There are no sidewalks on either side of the subject property. The Public Works report 

(Exhibit I) states that a five foot sidewalk and planter strip is required along Knutson 

Avenue. A condition of approval has been included to comply with the Public Works 

report.  

Concealments 

Trash Enclosure (MLDC 10.781) 

The site plan (Exhibit B) identifies a trash enclosure on the east side of the structure. 

The site plan and the applicant’s findings (Exhibit H) do not address the construction 

time for the trash enclosure. A condition of approval has been included for the trash 

enclosure to meet the requirements for materials in accordance with MLDC 10.781.  

HVAC Equipment Concealment (MLDC 10.782) 

The applicant’s findings do not address the HVAC equipment. The elevations show a 

sloped roof, and it is undetermined whether the HVAC equipment is concealed. A 

Figure 4– Aerial Photo 

Landscape area 

Figure 3– Landscape Plan 

137



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 7 of 14 

 

condition of approval has been included to demonstrate how all HVAC equipment is 

concealed.   

Bufferyard 

The subject site zoned I-G has an abutting property that is zoned I-L. The MLDC 

Sections 10.790-10.797 require a Type A bufferyard as shown in the table below.  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A Type A bufferyard requires a 10 foot wide planted area with a six foot concrete or 

masonry wall.  

 

Figure 5– Zone to Zone 

Bufferyard Standards 

138



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 8 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The applicant’s site plan (Exhibit B) does not identify a Type A bufferyard along the 

north property line, but does identify an area that has slopes. The applicant’s findings 

and questionnaire (Exhibit H) states that the slopes prohibit a bufferyard to be 

planted.  

The approving authority has the discretion to make adjustments to the bufferyard 

requirements as stated in MLDC 10.790(E)(6).  

The street view image shows the steep bank between the subject property and the 

abutting property.  

Figure 6–Bufferyard location Figure 7–Zone Map excerpt 

Figure 8–Abutting Lot Slope 

139



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 9 of 14 

 

It is staff’s opinion that relief to the bufferyard requirements may be granted for three 

reasons.  

First, the abutting property has an established parking and maneuvering area along 

the area that would be buffered. The language in MLDC Section 10.790(E)(6)(b) 

specifies that buffers are not required between similar uses, such as parking lot to 

parking lot.  

The second reason is that the development at 2870 Nansen Drive has mature 

landscaping in place as shown in the image below.  

 

Finally, as depicted in the photo showing the slope above, a buffer on the subject site 

would be ineffective. The adjacent site appears to be approximately 10 feet above the 

grade of the subject site. A six foot wall at the toe of the slope would not provide any 

meaningful separation between the uses. 

 

 

Figure 9–Aerial View of abutting property 

140



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 10 of 14 

 

Architecture 

The applicant’s findings state: 

The proposed building is a modern pre-engineered metal building that has single 

sloping roofs. There will be a four foot CMU wainscot around the perimeter of the 

building. Above the CMU will be ribbed metal panel. There will be store front doors 

and windows at the front of the building where the offices are located and the main 

entrances.  

 Figure 10– West Elevation 

141



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 11 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Figure 11– East Elevation 

Figure 12– North & South Elevation 

142



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 12 of 14 

 

Department and Agency Comments (Exhibits I through N) 

Comments were received from the Public Works Department, Fire Department, the 

Building Safety Department, Medford Water Commission, Jackson County Roads, and 

Oregon Department of Aviation, Jackson County Airport Authority, Rogue Valley 

Sewer Services. Conditions for compliance have been included where applicable.  

Rogue Valley International – Medford Airport (Exhibit M) 

Rogue Valley International Airport requests an Avigation, Noise and Hazard Easement 

to be required as part of the permit process. In the 2010 LUBA decision on Michelle 

Barnes vs. City of Hillsboro and the Port of Portland, Nollan/Dolan findings are 

required to support the request (LUBA No. 2010-011). None were provided; therefore, 

a condition requiring compliance with the airport’s request for an Avigation, Noise 

and Hazard Easement has not been included. 

The email also notes that “the applicant needs to contact the FAA regarding filing a 

Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration”. As the requirement is to make 

contact, a condition of approval has not been included. The applicant has been 

advised of the FAA rule. 

Committee Comments  

No comments were received by committee, such as BPAC. 

No other issues were identified by staff.  

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

The applicant provided the required questionnaire as the basis for the Commission’s 

findings. Staff has prepared the following for the Commission’s consideration.  

Medford Municipal Code §10.200(E). Site Plan and Architectural Review Approval 

Criteria 

(1)  The Site Plan and Architectural Commission, SPAC – Type III Review, shall approve 

a site plan and architectural review application for a commercial or industrial 

development, if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or can be 

made to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following criteria: 

 (a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 

exist on adjacent land, and 

143



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 13 of 14 

 

The Commission can find that there is sufficient evidence contained in the applicant’s 

findings and the Staff Report to determine that the proposal is compatible with the 

uses and development on adjacent land.  This criterion is satisfied.   

 (b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all city 

ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved (an) 

exception(s) as provided in Section 10.186. 

The Commission can find that the proposal can be made to comply with the 

applicable provisions of the Code with the imposition of conditions of approval 

contained in Exhibit A.   This criterion is satisfied. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the final order 

for approval of AC-20-037 per the staff report dated April 8, 2020, including: 

 Exhibits A through N; 

 A finding that the site is exempt from the bufferyard requirement based on 

the existing parking and maneuvering area on the abutting property, the 

existing landscaping on the abutting property, and the difference in site 

elevations.  

 A condition requiring frontage landscaping on the frontage of Knutson Avenue 

in accordance with MLDC 10.797.  

 A condition to include a detail of the trash receptacle concealment in 

accordance with MLDC 10.781.  

 A condition to demonstrate compliance with the HVAC concealment 

requirement in accordance with MLDC 10.782 

EXHIBITS 

A Conditions of Approval dated April 8, 2020 

B Site, Drainage and Utility Plan received February 10, 2020 

C Topographic Survey received February 10, 2020 

D Exterior Elevations received February 10, 2020 

E Floor Plan received February 10, 2020 

F Landscape Plan received February 10, 2020 

G Applicant’s findings and conclusions received February 10, 2020 

H Public Works Report received March 25, 2020 

I Medford Building Department memo received March 25, 2020 

J Medford Water Commission memo received March 25, 2020 

K Jackson County Roads comments received March 16, 2020 

144



1800 Knutson Ave Staff Report 

AC-20-037 April 8, 2020 

Page 14 of 14 

 

L Oregon Department of Aviation email received March 19, 2020 

M Jackson County Airport received March 16, 2020 

N Rogue Valley Sewer Services received March 12, 2020 

Vicinity map  

SITE PLAN & ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION AGENDA: APRIL 17, 2020 
 

145



 
EXHIBIT A 

 

Knutson Avenue  

AC-20-037 

Conditions of Approval 

April 8, 2020 

 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction, the applicant shall: 

1. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Public Works Department (Exhibit H). 

2. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit J). 

3. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Oregon Department of Aviation (Exhibit 

L). 

4. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Rogue Valley Sewer Services (Exhibit N). 

5. Submit a landscape plan in accordance with MLDC 10.797 for the planter on 

Knutson Avenue along the street frontage.  

6. Submit a detail demonstrating compliance with MLDC 10.781, Concealment of 

Trash Receptacles. 

7. Submit revised elevations or details demonstrating compliance with MLDC 

10.782, Concealment of HVAC Equipment. 

 

146



1304.87' TOP

20" CONC. PIPE

CB w/OIL TRAP

1319.14' RIM

NO INVERT

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

S
I
D

E
W

A
L

K

A S P H A L T

C O N C R E T E

P A R K I N G

A R E A

A S P H A L T     C O N C R E T E

P A R K I N G     A R E A

A S P H A L T     C O N C R E T E

P A R K I N G     A R E A

CB w/OIL TRAP

1306.82' RIM

NO INVERT

S

D

S

D

SSMH

1319.64' RIM

NO INVERT

4' HIGH BARBED WIRE FENCE 4' HIGH BARBED WIRE FENCE

6' HIGH

CHAIN-LINKED

FENCE

R/R TIE

RETAINING WALL

SSMH

1307.75' RIM

1299.4' INV. 8" THRU (E-N)

12"Ø Pine

AREA DRAIN

1304.62' RIM

1303.75' TOP 8" PIPE

AREA DRAIN

1304.55' RIM

1303.91' TOP 8" PIPE

CONCRETE OUTFALL

1303.89' TOP 8" PIPE

T O P     O F     B A N K

T O P     O F     B A N K

T O P     O F     B A N K

T O P     O F     B A N K

E

E

2'Wx5.5'Lx2.5'H

ELECTRICAL

TRANSFORMER

VAULT

STREET

LIGHT

V

A

U

L

T

2" CONDUIT

CATCH BASIN

1304.12' RIM

1303.67' TOP 8" PIPE

STEEL

POSTS

AREA

LIGHT

AREA

LIGHT

A S P H A L T

C O N C R E T E

P A R K I N G

A R E A

A S P H A L T

D R I V E W A Y

L A W N

A R E A

K  N  U  T  S  O  N

A  V  E  N  U  E

O P E N     D I T C H

O P E N     D I T C H

WM

WM

WM

FH

WV

TPED

PB-T

TPED

C
 
O

 
N

 
C

 
R

 
E

 
T

 
E

 
 
 
 
 
V

 
A

 
L

 
L

 
E

 
Y

 
 
 
 
 
G

 
U

 
T

 
T

 
E

 
R

E
 
D

 
G

 
E

 
 
 
 
 
O

 
F

 
 
 
 
 
A

 
.
 
C

.
 
 
 
 
 
P

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 
 
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K

T

 
O

 
E

 
 
 
 
 
O

 
F

 
 
 
 
 
B

 
A

 
N

 
K

T

 

O

 

P

 

 

 

 

 

O

 

F

 

 

 

 

 

B

 

A

 

N

 

K

T

 

O

 

E

 

 

 

 

 

O

 

F

 

 

 

 

 

B

 

A

 

N

 

K

T

 

O

 

E

 

 

 

 

 

O

 

F

 

 

 

 

 

B

 

A

 

N

 

K

T

 
O

 
P

 
 
 
 
 
O

 
F

 
 
 
 
 
B

 
A

 
N

 
K

E
 
D

 
G

 
E

 
 
 
 
 
O

 
F

 
 
 
 
 
A

.
 
C

.
 
 
 
 
 
P

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

PB-T

TPED

SSMH

1304.03' RIM

1297.0' INV. 8" IN (N)

1297.0' INV. 6" IN (SE)

1297.0' INV. 6" IN (SE)

1296.9' INV. 8" OUT (W)

SSMH

1304.26' RIM

1333.1' INV. 8" THRU (N-S)

1333.3' INV. 8" IN (E)

42' WIDE

INGRESS, EGRESS AND UTILITIES

EASEMENT

PER INSTRUMENT NO. 89-04334

42' WIDE

INGRESS, EGRESS AND UTILITIES

EASEMENT

PER INSTRUMENT NO. 89-04334

INGRESS AND EGRESS

EASEMENT PER

INSTRUMENT NO. 89-04334

R=130.00'

=30°51'11"

L=70.00'

CB=N 34°59'04" E

LC=69.16'

SIGN

"WARNING

FIBER OPTIC"

INGRESS AND EGRESS

EASEMENT PER

INSTRUMENT NO. 01-16251

6
' H

IG
H

 C
H

A
IN

-L
IN

K
E

D
 F

E
N

C
E

10' P.U.E.

PER

F.S. 6492

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

SS SS SS SS

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

1

3

1

8

1

3

1

5

1

3

1

0

1

3

0

7

1

3

0

5

1

3

0

4

1
3
0
4

1

3

0

4

1

3

0

5

1305

1

3

0

6

1

3

0

7

1

3

0

5

1
3
0
6

1

3

0

5

1

3

2

1

1

3

1

0

1315

1

3

0

9

1

3

0

8

1

3

0

7

1
3
0
6

1
3
0
9

1305

1304

1
3
0
3

1
3
0
3

1

3

0

4

1
3
0
4

1
3
0
6

1
3
0
5

1305

1308

1307

1306

1

3

0

5

1

3

0

5

1

3

0

4

1

3

0

4

1
3
0
4

1

3

0

4

COPYRIGHT © 2020 Powell Engineering and Consulting, LLC.   This document, and the ideas and designs incorporated herein, as an instrument of professional service, shall remain the property of Powell Engineering and Consulting, and is not to be reproduced, published, or used in whole or in part, for any other project or purpose without the express written authorization of Powell Engineering and Consulting, LLC.

VERIFY SCALES

IF NOT ONE INCH ON THIS

SHEET, ADJUST SCALES

ACCORDINGLY

ORIGINAL DRAWING

BAR IS ONE INCH

NW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SEC.18, T.37S., R1W., W.M., CITY OF MEDFORD, JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
C

:
\
C

i
v
i
l
 
3
D

 
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
C

u
r
r
e
n
t
 
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
O

u
t
l
i
e
r
 
N

a
n
s
e
n
\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C

A
D

D
\
N

a
n
s
e
n
 
C

i
v
i
l
 
S

h
e
e
t
s
.
d
w

g
 
 
 
 
L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
:
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
2
3
,
 
2
0
2
0

 
4
:
3
7
 
P

M
 
 
 
 
P

l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
:
 
F

e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
6
,
 
2
0
2
0
 
1
1
:
4
0
 
A

M
 
 
 
 
B

y
:
 
T

o
d
d
 
P

o
w

e
l
l

N
A

N
S

E
N

 
I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 
G

R
O

U
P

221 N. Central Ave., PMB 221

Medford, OR 97501

541.613.0723  phone

www.powellengineeringconsulting.com

I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L
 
W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

M
A

P
 
3
7
-
1
W

-
1
8
-
B

B
,
 
T

A
X

 
L

O
T

 
2
6
0
0

N
A

N
S

E
N

 
D

R
I
V

E
,
 
M

E
D

F
O

R
D

,
 
O

R

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

APPROVED BY ORDINANCE NO.

REVIEWED BY CITY ENGINEER

REVIEWED BY CITY TRANSPORTATION MANAGER

APPROVED

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:  

PROJECT NO.

CITY OF MEDFORD - ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

BYDATEREVISIONNO.

SHEET NO.

REVISED AS CONSTRUCTED BY

below.

R

Know what's

Call before you dig.

PRELIMINARY

C3.0

SITE, DRAINAGE, AND

UTILITY PLAN

PLAN VIEW - CIVIL SITE PLAN

SCALE:  1" = 20' - 0"  (24x36)    1" = 40' - 0"  (11x17)

TOTAL PROPERTY AREA: 88,883 SF = 2.04 AC

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS AREA: 2,830 SF (ASPHALT)
EXISTING PERVIOUS AREA: 86,053 SF

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA: 33,600  SF  (ROOFTOPS)
38,135  SF  (ASPHALT)

PROPOSED LANDSCAPE AREA: 247  SF  (PLANTERS)
EXISTING OPEN SPACE TO REMAIN: 14,071 SF

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE: (2,830 + 33,600 + 38,135) / 88,883 = 84%
PROPOSED PERVIOUS COVERAGE: 16%

COVERAGE CALCULATIONS

EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ILLUSTRATED IN THESE PLANS ARE

APPROXIMATED BASED ON MAPS OBTAINED FROM THE CITY OF MEDFORD

PUBLIC WORKS, OR HAVE BEEN LOCATED BY A UTILITY LOCATE COMPANY.

LAYOUT INDICATED IS NOT TO BE RELIED ON AS BEING EXACT OR

COMPLETE.  ALL LINES WITHIN PROJECTED WORK ZONE SHALL BE FIELD

VERIFIED AS REQUIRED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

1. DEQ 1200-C PERMIT IS REQUIRED.

2. UNLESS DIRECTED OTHERWISE, REMOVE CLEARED AND GRUBBED

MATERIAL FROM THE SITE AND DISPOSE AT AN APPROVED LOCATION.

3. PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION, VERIFY GRADES AT

SAWCUT LOCATIONS AND MATCHING OF EXISTING GRADE

LOCATIONS.

4. MINIMIZE TRAFFIC ON SOIL AREAS DURING WET WEATHER.  IF THE

SITE SOILS ARE EXPOSED DURING WET WEATHER, THE USE OF

CRUSHED ROCK PLACED AS ENGINEERED FILL IN THE BOTTOM OF

THE EXCAVATIONS MAY BE NECESSARY TO PROTECT THE SUBGRADE.

TAKE ALL PRECAUTIONS TO LIMIT SURFACE DISTURBANCE AND

PROTECT THE SITE GRADING AREA FROM EROSION AND RUNOFF.

5. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, THE SAMPLING AND TESTING OF

MATERIALS FOR USE ON THE JOBSITE SHALL BE AT THE EXPENSE OF

THE CONTRACTOR. ALL TESTING OF MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP

SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A CERTIFIED TESTER. RESULTS OF THE

TESTS SHALL BE SENT DIRECTLY TO THE PROJECT ENGINEER AS

WELL AS THE CONTRACTOR, BY THE LABORATORY. LOCATION AND

FREQUENCY OF TESTS SHALL BE DESIGNATED BY THE GENERAL

CONTRACTOR.

6. ALL CUT AND FILL SLOPES SHALL BE MAXIMUM OF 2:1.

PRELIM. GRADING NOTES

UTILITY STATEMENT

NOTE:  A FULL STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REPORT WITH CALCULATIONS

AND O&M MANUAL SHALL BE SUBMITTED DURING PREPARATION OF THE

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS FOLLOWING PLANNING APPROVAL.

EX. DRAINAGE BASIN AREA: 1.6 ACRES

EXISTING CN: 80

EXISTING Tc: 26 MIN.

EXISTING RUNOFF (10 YR): 0.30 CFS

POST DEVELOPED BASIN AREA: 1.6 ACRES

POST DEVELOPED CN: 98

POST DEVELOPED Tc: 5 MIN

POST DEVELOPED RUNOFF: 1.12 CFS (UNDETAINED)

DETENTION:

STORAGE VOLUME REQUIRED: 4,800 CF

ORIFICE SIZE REQUIREMENT: 3.125"

PRELIMINARY PIPE SIZE: 385' ~ 48" ADS STORM PIPE

ALTERNATIVE VAULT SIZE: 10' x 120' x 4'

FINAL RELEASE RATE: 0.30 CFS

DETENTION CALCULATIONS

PROPOSED PROPRIETARY TREATMENT METHODS:

FOR ALL PROPOSED CB'S, A CATCH BASIN FILTER INSERT SHALL BE UTILIZED

FOR WATER QUALITY TREATMENT.

FILTER SPECIFICATION: MEDIUM SQUARE (24"x24") FLEXSTORM PURE 

PC+ FILTER WITH HYDROCARBON SKIMMER 

POUCH.

TREATMENT CALCULATIONS

1. SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR BUILDING ELEVATIONS, EXTERIOR

MATERIALS, AND EXTERIOR COLORS.

2. TOPOGRAPHIC LAND SURVEY WAS COMPLETED BY PARIANI LAND

SURVEYING.  SURVEY ELEMENTS SHOWN ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL

PURPOSES ONLY.  CONTACT JOHN PARIANI FOR A SIGNED SURVEY

MAP OR FOR QUESTIONS REGARDING EXISTING CONDITIONS.

GENERAL NOTES

THERE ARE NO EXISTING NATURAL RESOURCES OR NATURAL HAZARDS ON THE
SUBJECT PROPERTY, INCLUDING WETLANDS, STREAMS, RIPARIAN AREAS, FLOOD
PLAINS, OR FLOODWAYS.

NATURAL FEATURES

THERE ARE NO EXISTING TREES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.

EXISTING TREE CANOPY

THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS NEARLY FLAT WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE EXISTING 62%
CUT SLOPE LOCATED ALONG THE NORTHEASTERN PROPERTY LINE.  ADDITIONALLY,
THE AREA ALONG WITH EASTERN PROPERTY LINE SLOPES DOWN AT APPROXIMATELY
12%.  THE REMAINDER OF THE PROPERTY SLOPES NORTHWESTERLY AT LESS THAN 1%
TOWARDS THE KNUDSON AVENUE RIGHT OF WAY.

SLOPE HAZARD

NEW INDUSTRIAL WAREHOUSE

33,600 GROSS SF

FF ELEV ~ 1306

THERE ARE NO LOCALLY, OR FEDERALLY DESIGNATED HISTORIC AND/OR CULTURAL
RESOURCES ON THE SITE OR ON ADJACENT PARCELS AND LOTS.

CULTURAL RESOURCES

PUBLIC UTILITY SERVICES, INCLUDING WATER, SEWER, STORM DRAINAGE, POWER,
TELEPHONE, CABLE INTERNET, AND GAS ARE AVAILABLE TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.
SEE SHEET C2.0 FOR MORE INFORMATION.

PUBLIC SERVICES

KEYNOTES

PROPOSED FDC

PROPOSED CATCH BASIN WITH FILTER INSERT

2

PARKING CALCS

1 SPACE PER EMPLOYEE ON LARGEST SHIFT AND 0.2 SPACES PER 1000 SF OFF

STREET PARKING PER UNITS ARE REQUIRED.

REQUIRED OFF-STREET PARKING: 1 x 10 EMPLOYEES + 0.2 x 33.6 = 17 SPACES
PROPOSED OFF-STREET PARKING: = 17 SPACES

REQUIRED ADA PARKING SPACES: 1 VAN ACCESSIBLE SPACE
PROPOSED ADA PARKING SPACES: 1 VAN ACCESSIBLE SPACE

REQUIRED BICYCLE PARKING: 20% OF 17 VEHICLES SPACES = 4 SPACES
PROPOSED BICYCLE PARKING: = 4 SPACES

1

PROPOSED PVC 8" STORM DRAIN PIPE

3 REMOVE EXISTING STORM DRAIN INLET

4

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND STORM WATER

DETENTION FACILITY

5

PROPOSED STORM WATER CONTROL STRUCTURE

6

4" ROOF DRAIN PIPE

7

INDICATES NEW ASPHALT PAVING

WATER SERVICE LINE

10

PROPOSED WATER METER

11

12

PROPOSED FIRE SERVICE VAULT

13

INDICATES NEW LANDSCAPING

14

6" FIRE WATER LINE

8

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

9

PROPOSED SEWER SERVICE LATERAL

INDICATES EXISTING DRAINAGE DIRECTION

256.00'

80.00'

180.00'

100.00'

30'

20'

20.00'

20.00'

T

R

U

C

K

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

A

I

S

L

E

1

1

1

1

1

5

4

3

3

3

6

6

7

PROPOSED 4" PERFORATED FOOTING DRAIN

8

SEWER POINT OF

CONNECTION

IE = 1297.8

DAYLIGHT FOOTING

DRAIN.

8" OUTFALL TO DITCH

FROM DETENTION.

IE = 1303.0

EX. FH

WTR

P.O.C.

14

12

9

11

17

PARKING

COUNT

20.00'

9.00'

VAN STALL

& AISLE

TRUCK DRIVE AISLE

13

DOUBLE

SWING

DOOR

(TYP)

OVERHEAD

DOOR (TYP)

6

6

TRASH &

RECYCLE

ENCLOSURE

4 BIKE

PARKING

STALLS

147

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 84%%d46'40" W  140.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 72%%d58'37" W  94.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 84%%d46'40" W  97.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d12'00" E  313.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d54'40" W  239.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 11%%d56'30" E  201.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 36%%d56'30" W  178.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(BASIS OF BEARING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
56425PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: 12/31/20



1304.87' TOP

20" CONC. PIPE

CB w/OIL TRAP

1319.14' RIM

NO INVERT

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

S
I
D

E
W

A
L

K

A S P H A L T

C O N C R E T E

P A R K I N G

A R E A

A S P H A L T     C O N C R E T E

P A R K I N G     A R E A

A S P H A L T     C O N C R E T E

P A R K I N G     A R E A

CB w/OIL TRAP

1306.82' RIM

NO INVERT

SSMH

1319.64' RIM

NO INVERT

4' HIGH BARBED WIRE FENCE 4' HIGH BARBED WIRE FENCE

6' HIGH

CHAIN-LINKED

FENCE

R/R TIE

RETAINING WALL

SSMH

1307.75' RIM

1299.4' INV. 8" THRU (E-N)

12"Ø Pine

SSMH

1309.53' RIM

1298.7' IN 8" THRU (SW-NW))

AREA DRAIN

1304.62' RIM

1303.75' TOP 8" PIPE

AREA DRAIN

1304.55' RIM

1303.91' TOP 8" PIPE

CONCRETE OUTFALL

1303.89' TOP 8" PIPE

T O P     O F     B A N K

T O P     O F     B A N K

T O P     O F     B A N K

T O P     O F     B A N K

2'Wx5.5'Lx2.5'H

ELECTRICAL

TRANSFORMER

2'Wx7'Lx2.7'H

ELECTRICAL

TRANSFORMER

w/VAULT ON

CONCRETE PAD

TRANSFORMER

VAULT

STREET

LIGHT

V

A

U

L

T

2" CONDUIT

TOP

8" CONCRETE

BLOCK WALL

CATCH BASIN

1304.12' RIM

1303.67' TOP 8" PIPE

STEEL

POSTS

AREA

LIGHT

AREA

LIGHT

A S P H A L T

C O N C R E T E

P A R K I N G

A R E A

A S P H A L T

D R I V E W A Y

L A W N

A R E A

K  N  U  T  S  O  N

A  V  E  N  U  E
N

 
 
A

 
 
N

 
 
S

 
 
E

 
 
N

D
 
 
R

 
 
I
 
 
 
V

 
 
E

O P E N     D I T C H

O P E N     D I T C H

WM

WM

WM

FH

WV

TPED

PB-T

WM

TPED

C
 
O

 
N

 
C

 
R

 
E

 
T

 
E

 
 
 
 
 
V

 
A

 
L

 
L

 
E

 
Y

 
 
 
 
 
G

 
U

 
T

 
T

 
E

 
R

E
 
D

 
G

 
E

 
 
 
 
 
O

 
F

 
 
 
 
 
A

 
.
 
C

.
 
 
 
 
 
P

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 
 
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K

T

 
O

 
E

 
 
 
 
 
O

 
F

 
 
 
 
 
B

 
A

 
N

 
K

T

 

O

 

P

 

 

 

 

 

O

 

F

 

 

 

 

 

B

 

A

 

N

 

K

T

 

O

 

E

 

 

 

 

 

O

 

F

 

 

 

 

 

B

 

A

 

N

 

K

T

 

O

 

E

 

 

 

 

 

O

 

F

 

 

 

 

 

B

 

A

 

N

 

K

T

 
O

 
P

 
 
 
 
 
O

 
F

 
 
 
 
 
B

 
A

 
N

 
K

E
 
D

 
G

 
E

 
 
 
 
 
O

 
F

 
 
 
 
 
A

.
 
C

.
 
 
 
 
 
P

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

FR

PB-T

TPED

SSMH

1304.03' RIM

1297.0' INV. 8" IN (N)

1297.0' INV. 6" IN (SE)

1297.0' INV. 6" IN (SE)

1296.9' INV. 8" OUT (W)

SSMH

1304.26' RIM

1333.1' INV. 8" THRU (N-S)

1333.3' INV. 8" IN (E)

42' WIDE

INGRESS, EGRESS AND UTILITIES

EASEMENT

PER INSTRUMENT NO. 89-04334

42' WIDE

INGRESS, EGRESS AND UTILITIES

EASEMENT

PER INSTRUMENT NO. 89-04334

INGRESS AND EGRESS

EASEMENT PER

INSTRUMENT NO. 89-04334

R=130.00'

=30°51'11"

L=70.00'

CB=N 34°59'04" E

LC=69.16'

SIGN

"WARNING

FIBER OPTIC"

INGRESS AND EGRESS

EASEMENT PER

INSTRUMENT NO. 01-16251

6
' H

IG
H

 C
H

A
IN

-L
IN

K
E

D
 F

E
N

C
E

10' P.U.E.

PER

F.S. 6492

10' P.U.E.

PER

F.S. 6492

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

SS SS

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

1304.80

1303.83

1304.07

1304.24

1309.00

1319.11

1309.62

1309.45

1309.46

1304.54

1308.94

1309.02

1305.15

1304.24

1304.09

1304.20

1304.41

1304.40

1304.60

1304.86

1304.91

1305.09

1305.58

1305.48
1304.96

1304.72

1304.63

1304.53

1304.40
1303.93

1303.74

1304.48

1308.811308.86

1308.39

1302.62

1302.85

1302.90

1303.05

1303.03

1302.94

1302.86

1303.00

1302.94

1303.04

1303.03

1302.95

1303.20
1303.35

1303.36

1303.42

1303.22

1303.18

1303.03

1303.12

1303.06
1303.11

1302.74

1302.92

1302.94

1302.89

1303.07

1302.87

1305.29

1305.32

1306.05

1306.00

1306.26

1304.57

1305.39

1305.21

1305.00

1305.11

1305.46

1305.08

1303.95

1304.00

1304.40

1304.70

1305.46

1305.73

1305.74

1304.87

1306.17

1305.22

1305.281305.56

1305.42
1305.46

1305.08

1313.08

1313.24

1313.48

1313.73

1313.94

1314.35

1314.76

1315.21

1315.63

1315.92

1316.03

1316.29

1316.46
1316.75

1317.04
1317.16

1317.48
1317.68

1317.44

1318.51

1317.90

1319.36

1319.64

1322.08

1321.46

1322.00

1321.50

1321.52

1321.53

1321.15

1318.83

1318.73

1318.65

1318.35

1318.08

1318.04

1317.60

1316.25

1315.50

1316.63

1306.10

1306.16

1306.52

1306.56

1306.55

1306.73

1307.27

1307.48

1307.77

1307.44

1306.07

1306.08

1307.18

1307.76

1307.74

1307.69

1307.80

1310.68

1310.22

1314.88

1314.05

1312.41

1312.22

1312.02

1311.94

1312.00

1312.14

1312.18

1312.19

1310.59

1310.60

1310.61

1310.63

1310.65

1310.36

1309.35

1307.91

1318.34

1319.21

1319.24

1319.14

1321.53

1321.75

1321.84

1321.77

1322.08

1322.14

1322.24

1321.67

1319.59

1319.32

1319.34

1319.38

1319.36

1320.25

1320.20

1320.18

1320.18

1320.15

1320.10

1319.53

1319.41

1319.27

1319.18
1319.42

1319.66

1319.10

1319.17

1319.17

1319.13

1319.64

1309.30
1309.04

1308.88

1308.18

1307.25

1307.35

1307.50

1307.66

1307.80

1307.77

1307.60

1306.83

1306.84

1306.80

1306.81

1307.75

1307.65

1307.46

1307.16

1307.66

1307.53

1307.10

1308.66

1309.27

1309.24

1309.81

1309.63

1309.53

1309.37

1310.38

1309.68

1309.85

1310.11

1309.90

1309.65

1309.17

1305.66

1306.48

1306.96

1307.67

1307.80

1307.60

1307.73

1308.42

1306.84

1305.80

1305.42

1304.86

1304.98

1305.26

1305.10

1305.41

1305.47

1305.48

1306.14

1305.14

1305.24

1305.29

1305.42

1305.38

1305.02

1305.09

1306.32

1307.16

1306.07

1305.21

1305.30

1305.42

1305.32

1305.32

1305.42

1305.37

1305.32

1305.48

1305.18

1305.41

1305.69

1305.53

1305.44

1305.41

1305.21

1305.69

1307.10

1303.75

1304.62

1304.55
1303.91

1306.35

1305.12

1305.15

1305.53

1305.51

1305.42

1305.47

1305.07

1305.63

1305.59

1305.79

1305.82

1305.32

1305.34

1305.56

1305.41

1305.36

1305.14

1305.12

1305.21

1304.95

1304.96

1304.93

1305.03

1305.60

1304.99

1304.80

1305.07

1305.39

1305.33

1305.48

1305.15

1305.76

1305.87

1305.89

1306.33

1306.02

1305.36

1304.58

1305.05

1305.30

1305.07

1304.72

1304.63

1305.15

1306.57

1306.29

1304.71

1304.13

1304.19

1304.52

1304.77

1304.86

1304.72

1304.93

1305.86

1306.24

1306.66

1307.30

1306.34

1305.29

1304.85

1304.52

1304.50

1304.50

1304.35

1304.13

1303.73

1303.96

1304.07

1304.90

1305.98

1306.23

1305.33

1304.09

1304.10

1303.72

1303.87

1304.20

1304.55

1304.35

1304.45

1305.15

1305.30

1305.27

1306.46

1305.73

1304.70

1304.26

1304.12

1304.02

1304.04

1304.15

1304.34

1304.37

1304.18

1304.26

1303.75

1303.99

1303.99

1304.10

1304.35

1305.24

1306.32

1306.07

1305.04

1303.98

1303.91

1304.04

1303.99

1304.22

1304.81

1305.15

1305.56

1304.64

1304.44

1303.94

1310.74

1310.46

1309.36

1309.81

1309.38

1309.44

1309.26

1304.01

1303.94

1303.89

1303.72

1303.88

1304.05

1304.18

1304.25

1303.81

1303.96

1303.74

1303.88

1303.60

1303.73

1303.44

1303.60

1303.31

1303.47

1303.73

1303.68

1303.47

1303.47

1303.58

1303.81

1303.80

1303.95

1303.98

1303.94

1303.69

1303.70

1303.75

1304.12

1303.70

1303.90

1304.28

1304.33

1303.91

1304.04

1303.85

1303.98

1303.68

1303.82

1303.60

1303.72

1303.53

1303.67

1303.53

1303.72

1303.39

1303.57

1303.38

1303.52

1303.29

1303.44

1304.08

1304.16

1304.31

1304.44

1304.55

1304.55

1304.56
1304.55

1304.26

1304.17

1304.03

1304.24

1304.58

1303.95

1304.05

1304.07

1303.72

1303.86

1303.75

1304.00

1303.95

1303.73

1304.12

1304.07

1303.89

1304.13

1304.60

1304.26

1304.61

1304.58

1304.54

1304.13

1303.98

1303.67

1303.97

1304.34

1304.27

1304.47

1304.30

1303.97

1303.90

1304.04

1304.28

1303.94

1303.83

1303.81

1303.76

1303.81

1303.82

1303.79

1303.75

1303.88

1303.69

1303.93

1304.26

1303.89

1304.19

1304.30

1304.44

1304.26

1304.40

1305.28

1304.33

1303.96

1303.96

1303.96

1303.96

1303.95

1303.95

1303.98

1303.95

1303.95

1303.95

1303.93

1304.18

1304.46

1304.44

1304.42

1304.07

1303.88

1303.77

1303.87

1303.86

1303.82

1304.04

1305.20

1305.49

1305.44

1305.49

1305.54

1305.04

1304.98

1305.10

1305.13

1305.53

1305.49

1305.46

1305.49

1304.83

1304.09

1304.02

1303.96

1304.39

1305.56

1304.66

1304.00

1304.10

1304.08

1304.14

1304.30

1311.98

1309.77

1312.00

1311.45

1312.03

1311.35

1311.991311.37

1304.68

1305.46

1305.25

1303.55

1304.91

1305.32

1305.65

1305.45

1305.58

1305.70

1306.12

1306.48

1305.96

1305.86

1305.30

1305.37

1305.11

1304.60

1304.59

1304.47

1304.08

1303.98

1303.85

1304.12

1304.09

1304.07

1304.02

1303.95

1303.94

1304.65

1304.98

1305.24

1305.39

1305.74

1305.73

1305.40

1305.30

1303.95

1303.88

1304.62

1304.08

1305.32

1304.78

1305.87

1305.40

1306.41

1305.86

1306.40

1306.19

1305.93

1305.84

1305.67

1305.45

1305.73

1305.21

1305.641305.11

1305.66
1305.28

1305.65

1305.14

1305.93

1305.77

1305.53

1305.83

1305.54

1305.42

1305.59

1305.69

1305.14

1304.79

1305.54

1305.02

1304.70

1305.45

1304.91

1304.18

1305.34
1304.80

1304.22

1305.20
1304.72

1304.18

1304.50

1304.37

1304.14

1304.09

1304.24

1304.38

1304.38

1304.46

1304.35
1304.32

1304.37

1304.28
1304.26

1304.25

1304.20
1304.161304.20

1304.13
1304.09

1304.03

1304.12

1303.67

1304.29

1304.31

1304.50
1304.45

1304.50

1304.58

1304.42
1304.58

1304.56

1304.51
1304.54

1304.68
1304.66

1304.71 1304.84
1304.76

1305.44

1305.29

1305.90
1305.72

1305.95

1305.83

1305.99

1304.36

1304.32

1304.22

1304.80

1304.63

1304.70

1304.93

1305.04

1304.87

1304.85

1305.11

1305.63

1305.79

1305.44

1304.72

1304.30

1304.08

1304.31

1304.75

1305.30

1306.00

1304.65

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

Pariani Land Surveying

P.O. Box 551

Shady Cove, OR 97539

541-890-1131

Date: Scale: Job No.: Sheet:

Feb. 15, 2019 1" = 20' 1 of 12019-427

Nansen Investment Group Site Survey

 SURVEY FOR:

Outlier Construction

2594 E. Barnett Road

Medford, OR 97504

 SURVEY BY:

Pariani Land Surveying

P.O. Box 551

Shady Cove, Oregon 97539

Topographic Survey

Located at:

the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 18,

Township 37 South, Range 1 West, Willamette Meridian,

City of Medford, Jackson County, Oregon

 NOTES:

1. The boundary shown hereon is from record data only and does not represent a field boundary resolution.

2. Underground utilities shown hereon are from field locations marked by others, physical features at ground

level and record information from others.

 BENCHMARK:

City of Medford brass disc (A-208) in north curb of Knutson Avenue at the northeast return of Nansen Drive.

Elevation: 1303.83 feet NGVD 1929.

 LEGEND:

CB CATCH BASIN

FH FIRE HYDRANT

FR FIRE RISER

PB - T PULLBOX - TELECOMMUNICATION

SDMH STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

SSMH SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

T PED TELECOMMUNICATION PEDESTAL

WM WATER METER

E UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL

G GAS

SD STORM DRAIN

SS SANITARY SEWER

T UNDERGROUND TELECOMMUNICATION

W WATER

SCALE: 1" = 20'

0' 20' 40' 60'

37 1W 18BB TAX LOT 2600

 TITLE REPORT:

The following encumbrances noted in Ticor Title Company of Oregon, Public Record Report, Date Prepared

February 11, 2019, Order No. 470319061226, either does not affect the subject property or is ambiguous in

nature as to accurately draft on this plat.

Item 1: City Liens,if any, in favor of the City of Medford.

Item 2: Regulations, levies, liens, assessments, rights of way and easements for Rogue Valley Sewer

Service District.

Item 3: Regulations, including levies, liens, assessments, water and irrigation rights and easements for

ditches and canals of the Rogue River Irrigation District.

Item 4: Easement(s) for transmission and distribution of electricity, and for other purposes -

Volume 309, Page 200.

Item 5: Easement(s) for transmission and distribution of electricity, and for other purposes -

Volume 384, Page 296.

Item 6: Easement(s) for transmission and distribution of electricity, and for other purposes -

Instrument No. 71-08832.

Item 8: Covenants, conditions, restrictions and easements -

Instrument No. 76-16849.

Amendment(s)/Modification(s) of said covenants, conditions and restrictions -

Instrument No. 76-22625.

Item 9: Easement(s) for transmission and distribution of electricity, and for other purposes -

Instrument No. 78-27048.

 BASIS OF BEARINGS:

The Basis of Bearing for this survey is the Northeast monumented line of Adjusted Tax Lot 2600, having a

record bearing of South 36°56'30" East, as shown on that Filed Survey 16724 with the Jackson County

Surveyor's Office.

148

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 84%%d46'40" W  140.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 72%%d58'37" W  94.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 84%%d46'40" W  97.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d12'00" E  313.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d54'40" W  239.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 11%%d56'30" E  201.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 36%%d56'30" W  178.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(BASIS OF BEARING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

tpowe
Text Box
C2.0

tpowe
Rectangle

tpowe
Rectangle



SCALE:

NORTH ELEVATION
1 1/8" - 1'-0"

SCALE:

SOUTH ELEVATION
2 1/8" - 1'-0"

1A
A3.1

1B
A3.1

1
A3.2

1
A3.2

SHEET

OF              SHEETS

JO
B 

N
O

.
IS

SU
E 

D
A

TE
D

RA
W

N
C

H
EC

K
ED

FI
LE

 N
A

M
E

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

T
h

i
s
 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t
,
 
a

n
d

 
t
h

e
 
d

e
s
i
g

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
i
d

e
a

s
 
i
n

c
l
u

d
e

d
 
h

e
r
e

i
n

,
 
a

s
 
a

n
 
i
n

s
t
r
u

m
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
p

r
o

f
e

s
s
i
o

n
a

l
 
s
e

r
v
i
c
e

,
 
i
s
 
t
h

e
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
t
y
 
o

f
 
S

t
r
u

c
t
u

r
a

l
 
S

o
l
u

t
i
o

n
s
,
 
I
n

c
.
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
n

o
t
 
b

e
 
u

s
e

d
 
i
n

 
a

n
y
 
f
o

r
m

 
f
o

r
 
a

n
y
 
o

t
h

e
r
 
p

r
o

j
e

c
t
 
w

i
t
h

o
u

t
 
t
h

e
 
w

r
i
t
t
e

n
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
S

t
r
u

c
t
u

r
a

l
 
S

o
l
u

t
i
o

n
s
,
 
I
n

c

P:
 5

41
-6

08
-8

11
7

M
ed

fo
rd

, O
re

go
n 

97
50

4
w

w
w

.S
tr

uc
tu

ra
lS

ol
ut

io
ns

In
c.

ne
t

35
59

 N
at

io
na

l D
ri

ve
, S

te
 1

03

N
A

N
SE

N
 IN

V
ES

TM
EN

T 
G

RO
U

P

26
00

 N
A

N
SE

N
  D

R
M

ED
FO

RD
, O

RE
G

O
N

 9
75

04

29
6-

19
03

-1
8-

20
M

SS
JN

P

14

N
EW

 W
A

RE
H

O
U

SE
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
EX

TE
RI

O
R 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

S

A
-M

A
IN

A2.1

149

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL SIDING PER MTL BLDG MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLER COMMERCIAL DOOR PER MFR (SEE DOOR SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW PER MFR (SEE WINDOW SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLER COMMERCIAL DOOR PER MFR (SEE DOOR SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW PER MFR (SEE WINDOW SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL SIDING PER MTL BLDG MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CMU WAINSCOT SEE STRUCTURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CMU WAINSCOT SEE STRUCTURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1":12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED GUTTER PER BUILDING MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED GUTTER PER BUILDING MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR ELEV. +0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR ELEV. +0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER EAVE ELEV. +20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER EAVE ELEV. +30'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER EAVE ELEV. +20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER EAVE ELEV. +30'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4":12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4":12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1":12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  SEE G0.1 FOR GENERAL NOTES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
   CONSTRUCTION OR FABRICATION.



SCALE:

PARTIAL EAST ELEVATION
3B 1/8" - 1'-0"

2
A3.2

SCALE:

PARTIAL EAST ELEVATION
3A 1/8" - 1'-0"

3
A3.2

SHEET

OF              SHEETS

JO
B 

N
O

.
IS

SU
E 

D
A

TE
D

RA
W

N
C

H
EC

K
ED

FI
LE

 N
A

M
E

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

T
h

i
s
 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t
,
 
a

n
d

 
t
h

e
 
d

e
s
i
g

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
i
d

e
a

s
 
i
n

c
l
u

d
e

d
 
h

e
r
e

i
n

,
 
a

s
 
a

n
 
i
n

s
t
r
u

m
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
p

r
o

f
e

s
s
i
o

n
a

l
 
s
e

r
v
i
c
e

,
 
i
s
 
t
h

e
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
t
y
 
o

f
 
S

t
r
u

c
t
u

r
a

l
 
S

o
l
u

t
i
o

n
s
,
 
I
n

c
.
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
n

o
t
 
b

e
 
u

s
e

d
 
i
n

 
a

n
y
 
f
o

r
m

 
f
o

r
 
a

n
y
 
o

t
h

e
r
 
p

r
o

j
e

c
t
 
w

i
t
h

o
u

t
 
t
h

e
 
w

r
i
t
t
e

n
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
S

t
r
u

c
t
u

r
a

l
 
S

o
l
u

t
i
o

n
s
,
 
I
n

c

P:
 5

41
-6

08
-8

11
7

M
ed

fo
rd

, O
re

go
n 

97
50

4
w

w
w

.S
tr

uc
tu

ra
lS

ol
ut

io
ns

In
c.

ne
t

35
59

 N
at

io
na

l D
ri

ve
, S

te
 1

03

N
A

N
SE

N
 IN

V
ES

TM
EN

T 
G

RO
U

P

26
00

 N
A

N
SE

N
  D

R
M

ED
FO

RD
, O

RE
G

O
N

 9
75

04

29
6-

19
03

-1
8-

20
M

SS
JN

P

14

N
EW

 W
A

RE
H

O
U

SE
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
EX

TE
RI

O
R 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

S

A
-M

A
IN

A2.2

150

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL SIDING PER MTL BLDG MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLER COMMERCIAL DOOR PER MFR (SEE DOOR SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CMU WAINSCOT SEE STRUCTURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED GUTTER PER BUILDING MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR ELEV. +0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER EAVE ELEV. +20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER EAVE ELEV. +30'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE A4 FOR LEFT HALF OF EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL SIDING PER MTL BLDG MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MTL ROOFING PER MTL BLDG MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CMU WAINSCOT SEE STRUCTURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED GUTTER PER BUILDING MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR ELEV. +0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER EAVE ELEV. +20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER EAVE ELEV. +30'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE A5 FOR RIGHT HALF OF EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  SEE G0.1 FOR GENERAL NOTES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
   CONSTRUCTION OR FABRICATION.



SCALE:

PARTIAL WEST ELEVATION
4A 1/8" - 1'-0"

SCALE:

PARTIAL WEST ELEVATION
4B 1/8" - 1'-0"

3
A3.2

2
A3.2

SHEET

OF              SHEETS

JO
B 

N
O

.
IS

SU
E 

D
A

TE
D

RA
W

N
C

H
EC

K
ED

FI
LE

 N
A

M
E

RE
V

IS
IO

N
S

T
h

i
s
 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t
,
 
a

n
d

 
t
h

e
 
d

e
s
i
g

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
i
d

e
a

s
 
i
n

c
l
u

d
e

d
 
h

e
r
e

i
n

,
 
a

s
 
a

n
 
i
n

s
t
r
u

m
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
p

r
o

f
e

s
s
i
o

n
a

l
 
s
e

r
v
i
c
e

,
 
i
s
 
t
h

e
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
t
y
 
o

f
 
S

t
r
u

c
t
u

r
a

l
 
S

o
l
u

t
i
o

n
s
,
 
I
n

c
.
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
y
 
n

o
t
 
b

e
 
u

s
e

d
 
i
n

 
a

n
y
 
f
o

r
m

 
f
o

r
 
a

n
y
 
o

t
h

e
r
 
p

r
o

j
e

c
t
 
w

i
t
h

o
u

t
 
t
h

e
 
w

r
i
t
t
e

n
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
S

t
r
u

c
t
u

r
a

l
 
S

o
l
u

t
i
o

n
s
,
 
I
n

c

P:
 5

41
-6

08
-8

11
7

M
ed

fo
rd

, O
re

go
n 

97
50

4
w

w
w

.S
tr

uc
tu

ra
lS

ol
ut

io
ns

In
c.

ne
t

35
59

 N
at

io
na

l D
ri

ve
, S

te
 1

03

N
A

N
SE

N
 IN

V
ES

TM
EN

T 
G

RO
U

P

26
00

 N
A

N
SE

N
  D

R
M

ED
FO

RD
, O

RE
G

O
N

 9
75

04

29
6-

19
03

-1
8-

20
M

SS
JN

P

14

N
EW

 W
A

RE
H

O
U

SE
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
EX

TE
RI

O
R 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

S

A
-M

A
IN

A2.3

151

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL SIDING PER MTL BLDG MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MTL ROOFING PER MTL BLDG MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE ENTRANCE PER MFR (SEE WINDOW SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW PER MFR (SEE WINDOW SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW PER MFR (SEE WINDOW SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE ENTRANCE PER MFR (SEE WINDOW SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLER COMMERCIAL DOOR PER MFR (SEE DOOR SCHED FOR SIZING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL CORRUGATED METAL SIDING PER MTL BLDG MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MTL ROOFING PER MTL BLDG MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CMU WAINSCOT SEE STRUCTURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CMU WAINSCOT SEE STRUCTURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED GUTTER PER BUILDING MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED GUTTER PER BUILDING MFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR ELEV. +0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR ELEV. +0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER EAVE ELEV. +20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER EAVE ELEV. +30'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER EAVE ELEV. +20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER EAVE ELEV. +30'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  SEE G0.1 FOR GENERAL NOTES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
   CONSTRUCTION OR FABRICATION.

eaconner
Stamp



152



COPYRIGHT © 2020 Powell Engineering and Consulting, LLC.   This document, and the ideas and designs incorporated herein, as an instrument of professional service, shall remain the property of Powell Engineering and Consulting, and is not to be reproduced, published, or used in whole or in part, for any other project or purpose without the express written authorization of Powell Engineering and Consulting, LLC.

VERIFY SCALES

IF NOT ONE INCH ON THIS

SHEET, ADJUST SCALES

ACCORDINGLY

ORIGINAL DRAWING

BAR IS ONE INCH

NW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SEC.18, T.37S., R1W., W.M., CITY OF MEDFORD, JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
C

:
\
C

i
v
i
l
 
3
D

 
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
C

u
r
r
e
n
t
 
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
O

u
t
l
i
e
r
 
N

a
n
s
e
n
\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
C

A
D

D
\
N

a
n
s
e
n
 
C

i
v
i
l
 
S

h
e
e
t
s
.
d
w

g
 
 
 
 
L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
:
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
2
3
,
 
2
0
2
0

 
4
:
3
7
 
P

M
 
 
 
 
P

l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
:
 
F

e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
6
,
 
2
0
2
0
 
1
1
:
4
0
 
A

M
 
 
 
 
B

y
:
 
T

o
d
d
 
P

o
w

e
l
l

N
A

N
S

E
N

 
I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 
G

R
O

U
P

221 N. Central Ave., PMB 221

Medford, OR 97501

541.613.0723  phone

www.powellengineeringconsulting.com

I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L
 
W

A
R

E
H

O
U

S
E

M
A

P
 
3
7
-
1
W

-
1
8
-
B

B
,
 
T

A
X

 
L

O
T

 
2
6
0
0

N
A

N
S

E
N

 
D

R
I
V

E
,
 
M

E
D

F
O

R
D

,
 
O

R

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

APPROVED BY ORDINANCE NO.

REVIEWED BY CITY ENGINEER

REVIEWED BY CITY TRANSPORTATION MANAGER

APPROVED

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:  

PROJECT NO.

CITY OF MEDFORD - ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

BYDATEREVISIONNO.

SHEET NO.

REVISED AS CONSTRUCTED BY

below.

R

Know what's

Call before you dig.

PRELIMINARY

L1.0

PRELIMINARY

LANDSCAPE PLAN

PLAN VIEW - LANDSCAPE PLAN

SCALE:  1" = 20' - 0"  (24x36)    1" = 40' - 0"  (11x17)

NEW INDUSTRIAL WAREHOUSE

33,600 GROSS SF

LANDSCAPE CALCULATIONS

PER 10.746 INDUSTRAL ZONES REQUIRE 2 TREES AND 4 SHRUBS AND 325 SF

OF GROUND COVER PER 24 SPACES.

TOTAL NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES = 17

17 SPACES / 24 SPACES = 0.71 RATIO

REQUIRED TREES = 0.71 x 2 = 2 TREEs

REQUIRED SHRUBS = 0.71 x 4 = 3 SHRUBS

REQUIRED GND COVER = 0.71 x 325 = 231 SF

PROPOSED TREES = 2 TREE

PROPOSED SHRUBS = 3 SHRUBS

PROPOSED GROUND COVER = 247 SF

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

LANDSCAPE PLANTING NOTES

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TOPSOIL, SOIL AMENDMENTS, AND COMPOST IN

REQUIRED QUANTITIES TO CREATE THE PLANTING SOIL.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE LOCATIONS OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

WITHIN THE PLANTING AREA PRIOR TO BEGINNING EXCAVATION.

3. IF PLANT MATERIAL CONFLICTS WITH NEW OR EXISTING UTILITIES TO REMAIN, THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST THE PLANT LOCATIONS IN COORDINATION WITH THE

OWNER.

4. PROVIDE 3" UNSETTLED BARK MULCH OR SIMILAR PERVIOUS NONLIVING MATERIAL

AROUND PLANTINGS.  NOTE:  NO MULCH SHALL BE PLACED WITHIN THE BIOSWALE /

STORMWATER DETENTION BASIN.

5. MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPING SHALL INCLUDE THE REMOVAL OF NOXIOUS

WEEDS AND REPLACEMENT OF DEAD PLANTS WITH HEALTHY VEGETATION.

6. THE APPROVED LANDSCAPE PLAN MAY NOT BE ALTERED WITHOUT PRIOR CITY

APPROVAL.

7. THE PROPERTY OWNER SHALL CONTACT THE PLANNING DIVISION TO REQUEST AN

INSPECTION TO VERIFY COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPROVED LANDSCAPE PLAN AND

SURVIVAL OF PLANTED MATERIALS AFTER THE FIRST YEAR OF OPERATION.

8. PROTECT AND MAINTAIN PLANT MATERIAL UNTIL PLANTED.

9. PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE SOUND, HEALTHY VIGOROUS, FREE FROM PLANT

DISEASE, INSECT PESTS OR THEIR EGGS, NOXIOUS WEEDS AND WEED SEEDS, AND

HAVE HEALTHY, NORMAL ROOT SYSTEM. CONTAINER STOCK SHALL BE WELL

ESTABLISHED AND FREE OF EXCESSIVE ROOT-BOUND CONDITIONS.

10. DO NOT PRUNE PLANTS OR LOP TREES PRIOR TO DELIVERY.

11. PLANTING BACKFILL MIX SHALL BE COMPOSED OF TWO PARTS APPROVED TOPSOIL,

ONE PART COMPOST.

12. PLANTING TABLETS SHALL BE  SLOW-RELEASE 21 GRAM TABLETS BY AGRIFORM OR

APPROVED EQUAL. ADD PLANTING TABLETS IN PLANT PIT: 1 GAL. - 1 TAB, 5 GAL. - 3

TABS, TREES- 5 TABS.

13. DEEPLY ROUGHEN SIDES OR PLANT PITS TO ELIMINATE GLAZING AND ENCOURAGE

ROOT GROWTH INTO NATIVE SOILS.

14. SETTLE BY FIRMING AND WATERING TO BRING ROOTBALL CROWN DOWN TO

PROPER LEVEL, TWO INCHES HIGHER THAN SURROUNDING SOIL. RAISE ANY

PLANTS THAT SETTLE BELOW CORRECT LEVEL.

15. MULCH PLANTING AREA WITH A 3 INCH DEEP LAYER OF TOP DRESSING MULCH.

HOLD MULCH AWAY FROM STEMS OF PLANT MATERIAL AT LEASE 3 INCHES.

Shrubs shall be slightly

higher in relation to

finished grade

Mulch, Hold mulch

away from stem

Prune damaged or

desiccated roots.

Gently compacted

topsoil mixture.

Scarify pit bottom

(6") Min.

J
u

s
t
 
b

e
l
o

w

f
i
r
s
t
 
b

r
a

n
c
h

e
s

1x4 Bracing

Secure ties use

rubber hose at bark

2" wood stakes (3)

Set root crown 2" above finish grade

Mulch: Keep away from trunk

Soil Saucer: use prepared siol mix 4", not to be

maintained over time.

Ropes at top of ball shall be cut. Remove top

1/3 of burlap. non-biodegradeable material shall

be totally removed.

Backfill, See notes

Undisturbed native soil

Note: Stake trees only if needed and remove after

2 years maximum

2 x Ball Dia. Min.

2.5 x Ball Dia. Min.

SYMBOL QUANTITY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE

2  Ginkgo biloba AUTUMN GOLD 2" CALIPER

2 Rosmarinus officinalis 'prostratus' PROSTRATE ROSEMARY 5 GAL

1 Mahonia aquifolium OREGON GRAPE 5 GAL

Festuca Idahoensis  IDAHO FESCUE  1 GAL @  2' O.C.

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

SCALE:  N.T.S.

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

SCALE:  N.T.S.

SOIL PREPARATION NOTES

1. REQUIRED ORGANIC CONTENT:

1.1. MATURE COMPOST, AS DEFINED HEREIN, SHALL BE ADDED TO THE SOIL OF LANDSCAPING

AREAS AT A RATE OF THREE CUBIC YARDS OF COMPOST PER 1,000 SQUARE FEET OF

LANDSCAPING AREA TO BE PLANTED. THIS REQUIREMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE IN THE

FOLLOWING CIRCUMSTANCES:

1.2. IN AREAS FULLY SECURED BY FENCING FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROTECTING UNDISTURBED

SOIL FROM DAMAGE AND COMPACTION DURING CONSTRUCTION.

1.3.  IN STORMWATER QUALITY AND DETENTION FACILITIES CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH THE CURRENT ADOPTED VERSION OF THE ROGUE VALLEY STORMWATER QUALITY

DESIGN MANUAL.

1.4. IN LANDSCAPED AREAS WHERE A SOIL TEST DEMONSTRATES AN ORGANIC CONTENT OF AT

LEAST THREE PERCENT BASED UPON CORE SAMPLES TAKEN AT ONE TEST PER 20,000

SQUARE FEET, WITH A MINIMUM OF THREE SAMPLES PER TEST. SAMPLES SHALL BE TAKEN

AT LEAST 40 FEET APART TO A DEPTH OF SIX (6) INCHES FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF

ROUGH GRADING.

2. REQUIRED SOIL PREPARATION PROCEDURES:

2.1. ASSURE THAT SOIL IS SUITABLY DRY DRY BEFORE BEGINNING.

2.2. SPREAD DESIRED TOPSOIL.

2.3. OPEN/RIP SOIL TO A DEPTH OF EIGHT (8) INCHES.

2.4. ASSURE ORGANIC CONTENT AS REQUIRED.

2.5. CULTIVATE SOIL AND AMENDMENT(S) TO A DEPTH OF FOUR (4) TO SIX (6) INCHES.

1 NEW TREE

2 NEW SHRUB

114 SF GROUND COVER

(SEE LEGEND)

1 NEW TREE

1 NEW SHRUB

133 SF GROUND COVER

(SEE LEGEND)

153

AutoCAD SHX Text
56425PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: 12/31/20



154



155



LD DATE: 3/25/2020 

File Number: AC-20-037 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 

1170 Knutson Avenue (TL 2600) 
New Commercial Office/Storage Building (Nansen Investment Group) 

Project: Consideration of a proposal for the construction of a 33,600 square foot 

metal commercial storage and office facility on a single 2.04 acre parcel. 

Location: Located at 1170 Knutson Avenue in the I-G (General Industrial) zoning district 

(371W18BB TL 2600). 

Applicant:  Applicant, Nansen Investment Group; Agent, Todd Powell; Planner, Liz 

Conner. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NOTE: The items listed here shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective 

issuances of permits and certificates: 

Prior to issue of the first building permit, the following items shall be completed and 

accepted: 

 Submittal and approval of plans for site grading and drainage, and detention, if

applicable.

 Completion of all public improvements, if required.  The Applicant may provide

security for 120% of the improvements prior to issuance of building permits.

Construction plans for the improvements shall be approved by the Public

Works Engineering Division prior to acceptance of security.

 Items A – D, unless noted otherwise.

Prior to issue of Certificate-of-Occupancy for completed structures, the following items 

shall be completed and accepted: 

 Paving of all on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas

 Verification by the design Engineer that the stormwater quality and detention

system was constructed per the approved plan, if applicable.

 Completion of all public improvements, if applicable.

156



A. STREETS

1. Dedications

Knutson Avenue is considered Legacy Streets per Medford Land Development Code 

(MLDC) 10.427(D).  Proposed conditions of approval for land use actions which contain 

legacy streets shall be subject to review and recommendation by the City Engineer. The 

applicant shall be required to have a conference with the City Engineer prior to submitting 

land use applications containing legacy streets; the City Engineer shall produce a 

memorandum summarizing the meeting and legacy street standards that would apply to 

the land use application and this memorandum shall be submitted as an exhibit with the 

land use application. If a deviation from the City Engineer’s recommendation is requested 

by the applicant, the applicant shall provide written findings (see criteria under MLDC 

10.427(D)(1)(a-e). 

Knutson Avenue is classified as a Commercial streets within the MLDC 10.430.  The 

Developer shall dedicate for public right-of-way, sufficient width of land along the frontage 

to comply with the half width of right-of-way, which is 31.5-feet, unless otherwise 

recommended through the Legacy Street Memorandum.  The Developer’s surveyor shall 

verify the amount of additional right-of-way required. 

In accordance with MLDC 10.471, the property owner shall dedicate a 10-foot wide public 

utility easement (PUE) adjacent to the right-of-way line along this Developments frontage to 

Knutson Street. 

The right-of-way and easement dedications shall be submitted directly to the Engineering 

Division of the Public Works Department.  The submittal shall include: the right-of-way and 

easement dedication, including an exhibit map; a copy of a current Lot Book Report, 

Preliminary Title Report, or Title Policy; a mathematical closure report (if applicable), and 

the Planning Department File Number; for review and City Engineer acceptance signature 

prior to recordation by the applicant. Releases of interest shall be obtained by holders of 

trust deeds or mortgages on the right-of-way and PUE area. 

2. Public Improvements

a. Public Streets

Knutson Avenue – All street section improvements have been completed including 

pavement, curb and gutter and street lights. No additional public improvements are 

required, aside from 5-foot sidewalk with planter strip. 

b. Street Lights and Signing

No additional street lights or signs are required. 

157



The Developer shall be responsible for the preservation and re-installation of all signs 

removed during demolition and site preparation work.  The Developer’s contractor shall 

coordinate with the City of Medford Public Works, Maintenance and Operations Division to 

remove any existing signs and place new signs provided by Medford Public Works 

Department and paid for by Developer.

c. Pavement Moratoriums

There is no pavement cutting moratorium currently in effect along this developments 

frontage to Knutson Avenue. 

3. Section 10.668 Analysis

To support a condition of development that an Applicant dedicate land for public use or 

provide a public improvement, the Medford Code requires a nexus and rough 

proportionality analysis which is essentially a codification of the constitutional provisions in 

Nollan and Dolan cases.  

10.668 Limitation of Exactions 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Chapter 10, an Applicant for a development 

permit shall not be required, as a condition of granting the application, to dedicate land for 

public use or provide public improvements unless: 

(1) the record shows that there is an essential nexus between the exaction and a legitimate 

government purpose and that there is a rough proportionality between the burden of the 

exaction on the Developer and the burden of the development on public facilities and 

services so that the exaction will not result in a taking of private property for public use, or 

(2) a mechanism exists and funds are available to fairly compensate the Applicant for the 

excess burden of the exaction to the extent that it would be a taking. 

1. Nexus to a legitimate government purpose

The purposes for these dedications and improvements are found throughout the

Medford Code, the Medford Transportation System Plan, and the Statewide Planning

Rule, and supported by sound public policy.  Those purposes and policies include, but

are not limited to: development of a balanced transportation system addressing all

modes of travel, including motor vehicles, transit, bicycles, emergency services and

pedestrians.  Further, these rights-of-way are used to provide essential services such as

sanitary sewer, domestic water and storm drains to serve the developed parcels.  It can

be found that the listed right-of-way dedications and improvements have a nexus to

these purposes and policies.

2. Rough proportionality between the dedications and improvements, and the

impacts of development.

158



No mathematical formula is required to support the rough proportionality analysis.  

Furthermore, benefits to the development resulting from the dedication and 

improvements when determining “rough proportionality” have been considered, 

including but not limited to: increased property values, intensification of use, as well as 

connections to municipal services and the transportation network. 

As set forth below, the dedications and improvements recommended herein can be found 

to be roughly proportional to the impacts reasonably anticipated to be imposed by this 

development. 

Knutson Avenue: 

The additional right-of-way will provide a planter strip and sidewalk on Knutson Avenue.  The 

planter strip moves pedestrians a safe distance from the edge of the roadway. Knutson 

Avenue is a 25 mile per hour facility.  Knutson Avenue will be the primary routes for 

pedestrians traveling to and from this development.  The development shall construct 

approximately 40 linear feet of sidewalk along the frontage of the property along Knutson 

Avenue.  All developments in Medford are required to construct their frontage sidewalk and 

therefore this is roughly proportional. 

Local street right-of-way dedication and construction requirements identified by the Public 

Works Department and required by the City are the minimum required to protect the public 

interest and are necessary for additional or densification of development in the City without 

detracting from the common good enjoyed by existing properties.  Developments are 

required to provide all internal local streets and half-street improvements to abutting 

streets, including associated right-of-way dedications, to ensure that new development and 

density intensification provides the current level of urban services and adequate street 

circulation is maintained. 

Dedication of the Public Utility Easement (PUE) will benefit development by providing public 

utility services, which are out of the roadway and more readily available to each lot or 

building  being served.  The additional traffic of all modes of travel generated by this 

proposed development supports the dedication and improvements for all modes of travel 

and utilities.  As indicated above, the area required to be dedicated for this development is 

necessary and roughly proportional to that required in similar developments to provide a 

transportation system that meets the needs for urban level services. 

B. SANITARY SEWERS

This site lies within the Rogue Valley Sewer Service (RVSS) area.  The Developer shall 

contact RVSS for conditions of connection to the sanitary sewer collection system.  The 

Developer shall provide one separate individual service lateral to each tax lot or ensure 

that each tax lot is served by an individual service lateral. 

159



C. STORM DRAINAGE

1. Drainage Plan

For any site work, a comprehensive drainage plan showing the entire project site with 

sufficient spot elevations to determine direction of runoff to the proposed drainage 

system, and also showing elevations on the proposed drainage system, shall be submitted 

with the first building permit application for approval. 

The Developer shall provide copies of either a Joint Use Maintenance Agreement or a 

private stormdrain easement for any stormwater draining onto or from adjacent private 

property. 

A Site/Utility Plan shall be submitted with the building permit application to show the 

location of existing or proposed stormdrain lateral/s for the site. 

All private stormdrain lines shall be located outside of the public right-of-way and/or any 

public utility easements (PUE). 

2. Grading

For any site work, a comprehensive grading plan showing the relationship between 

adjacent property and the proposed development will be submitted with the improvement 

plans for approval. Grading on this development shall not block drainage from an adjacent 

property or concentrate drainage onto an adjacent property without an easement. The 

Developer shall be responsible that the final grading of the development shall be in 

compliance with the approved grading plan. 

3. Detention and Water Quality

Stormwater quality and detention facilities shall be required in accordance with MLDC 

Section 10.481 and 10.729. 

4. Verification

Upon completion of the project, and prior to certificate of occupancy of the building, the 

Developer’s design Engineer shall verify that the construction of the stormwater quality and 

detention system was constructed per plan.  Verification shall be in writing and submitted 

to the Engineering Division of Public Works.  Reference Rogue Valley Stormwater Quality 

Design Manual, Appendix I, Technical Requirements. 

5. Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control

All development that disturbs 5,000 square feet or greater shall require an Erosion 

Prevention and Sediment Control Plan.  Developments that disturb one acre and greater 

160



shall require a 1200C permit from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).  Erosion 

Prevention and Sediment Control Plans shall be submitted to the Building Department with 

the project plans for development.  All disturbed areas shall be covered with vegetation or 

properly stabilized prior to certificate of occupancy.  

D. GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. Construction and Inspection

The Developer or Developer’s contractor shall obtain appropriate right-of-way permits 

from the Department of Public Works prior to commencing any work within the public 

right-of-way.   

Contractors proposing to do work on public streets (including street lights), sewers, or 

stormdrain shall ‘prequalify’ with the Engineering Division prior to starting work.   

2. Site Improvements

All on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas related to this development shall be 

paved in accordance with MLDC, Section 10.746, prior to issuance of certificate of 

occupancy for any structures on the site.  Curbs shall be constructed around the perimeter 

of all parking and maneuvering areas that are adjacent to landscaping or unpaved areas 

related to this site.  Curbs may be deleted or curb cuts provided wherever pavement drains 

to a water quality facility. 

3. System Development Charges (SDC)

Buildings in this development are subject to system development charges (SDCs).  All SDC 

fees shall be paid at the time individual building permits are issued. 

Prepared by: Jodi K Cope 

Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs

161



SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1170 Knutson Avenue (TL 2600) 
New Commercial Office/Storage Building (Nansen Investment Group) AC-20-037

A. Streets

1. Street Dedications to the Public:

 Knutson Avenue – Dedicate additional right-of-way unless otherwise recommended through the

Legacy Street Memorandum.

 Dedicate 10-foot Public Utility Easement (PUE) along the respective frontage.

2. Improvements:

Public Streets

 Knutson Avenue – 5-foot sidewalk with planter strip.

Lighting and Signing 

 No additional street lights are required.

Other 

 No pavement moratorium currently in effect along this frontages to Knutson Avenue.

B. Sanitary Sewer:

 The site is situated within the RVSS area.

C. Storm Drainage:

 Provide a comprehensive grading and drainage plan if site work is to be done.

 Provide water quality and detention facilities, calculations and O&M Manual.

 Provide engineers verification of stormwater facility construction.

 Provide copy of an approved Erosion Control Permit (1200C) from DEQ for this project.

 = City Code Requirement

o = Discretionary recommendations/comments

The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way.  If there is any discrepancy 

between the above list and the full report, the full report shall govern.  Refer to the full report for details on each item as well as 

miscellaneous requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans (Construction Plans), design 

requirements, phasing, draft and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, pavement moratoriums and 

construction inspection. 

162



City of Medford 200 South Ivy, Medford, OR 97501 541-774-2350 cityofmedford.org 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Liz Conner, Planning Department  

From: Chad Wiltrout, Building Department (541) 774-2363 

CC: Nansen Investment Group, Agent LLC; Agent, Calvin Martin 

Date:  3/25/2020 

Subject: AC-20-037 

Please Note:  

This is not a plan review. Unless noted specifically as Conditions of Approval, general 

comments are provided below based on the general information provided; these 

comments are based on the 2019 Oregon Structural Specialty Code (OSSC) unless noted 

otherwise. Plans need to be submitted and will be reviewed by a commercial plans 

examiner, and there may be additional comments.  

Fees are based on valuation.  Please contact Building Department front counter for 

estimated fees at (541) 774-2350 or building@cityofmedford.org. 

For questions related to the Conditions or Comments, please contact me, Chad Wiltrout, 

directly at (541) 774-2363 or chad.wiltrout@cityofmedford.org. 

General Comments: 

1. For list of applicable Building Codes, please visit the City of Medford website:

www.ci.medford.or.us  Click on “City Departments” at top of screen; click on

“Building”; click on “Design Criteria” on left side of screen and select the appropriate

design criteria.

2. All plans are to be submitted electronically. Information on the website:

www.ci.medford.or.us      Click on “City Departments” at top of screen; click on

“Building”; click on “Electronic Plan Review (ePlans)” for information.

163

mailto:building@cityofmedford.org
mailto:chad.wiltrout@cityofmedford.org
http://www.ci.medford.or.us/
http://www.ci.medford.or.us/


City of Medford 200 South Ivy, Medford, OR 97501 541-774-2350 cityofmedford.org 

3. A site excavation and grading permit will be required if more than 50 cubic yards

is disturbed.

4. A separate demolition permit will be required for demolition of any structures not

shown on the plot plan.

Comments: 

5. An Oregon licensed design professional in responsible charge shall be named for

this project at time of application submittal. This individual shall be responsible for

the coordination of all construction documents for the project including deferred

submittals, shop drawings, reports, analyses and other pertinent documentation.

6. A code analysis to address the minimum requirements for FLS, structural,

plumbing fixtures, handicap accessibility, fire protection systems etc. shall be

provided by Oregon licensed design professionals.

7. All building and building appurtenance construction documents shall be sealed by

an Oregon licensed design professional in accordance with OAR 671.020 and OAR

672.020.

8. A geo-technical report per 1803.5.11- 1803.6 OSSC shall be provided for the

proposed construction.

9. Special inspections shall be performed in accordance with chapter 17 OSSC.

10. If conditioning the building, Oregon Building Codes Division provides 2 options for

meeting energy code requirements for new construction. There are several forms,

and detailing requirements needed to show compliance depending on which

code path you choose. Please visit the Oregon BCD website for

details/requirements.

11. A detailed site plan showing accessibility requirements for each facility along with

connecting routes shall be submitted for review. See also facility accessibility

requirements per 1108.3 OSSC

164



 BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

 Staff Memo 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\ac20037.docx  
Page 1 of 2 

TO: Planning Department, City of Medford

FROM: Rodney Grehn P.E., Water Commission Staff Engineer

SUBJECT: AC-20-037 

PARCEL ID: 371W18BB TL 2600

PROJECT: Consideration of a proposal for the construction of a 33,600 square foot metal 
commercial storage and office facility on a single 2.04 acre parcel located at 1170 
Knutson Avenue in the I-G (General Industrial) zoning district (371W18BB TL 600). 
Applicant, Nansen Investment Group; Agent, Todd Powell; Planner, Liz Conner

DATE: March 25, 2020

I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested.  Conditions for approval and 
comments are as follows: 

CONDITIONS 

1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the
Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and “Standards
For Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devices.”

2. All parcels/lots of proposed property divisions will be required to have metered water service
prior to recordation of final map, unless otherwise arranged with MWC.

3. Installation of a “looped” 8-inch water line is required around the proposed building to provide
fire protection water via 4 (four) required fire hydrants per Medford Fire Department. Water Line
shall be located in proposed on-site paved travel lanes, and not under proposed parking
spaces.

4. The proposed Fire Service Vault and Fire Department Connection (FDC) are required to be
located near the site entrance.

5. Dedication of a 10-foot wide (minimum) access and maintenance easement to MWC over all
water facilities located outside of public right-of-way is required.  Easement shall be submitted
to MWC for review and recordation prior to construction.

6. Static water pressure is expected to be 85 psi. See attached document from the City of
Medford Building Department on “Policy on Installation of Pressure Reducing Valves”.

7. If a well is located on this parcel it will be required to be abandoned per State of Oregon water
Resources Department regulations per Oregon Water Resources Department Chapter 690
Division 220.

Continued to Next Page 

165



 BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

 Staff Memo 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\ac20037.docx  
Page 2 of 2 

Continued from Previous Page 

8. Installation of an Oregon Health Authority approved backflow device is required for all
commercial, industrial, municipal, and multi-family developments. New backflow devices
shall be tested by an Oregon certified backflow assembly tester. See MWC website for list
of certified testers at the following web link http://www.medfordwater.org/Page.asp?NavID=35 .

9. A “Summer” Fire Hydrant flow test is required for the design of the proposed fire sprinkler
system for this project. Fire Hydrant Flow Testing to be performed during our “Summer”
operating season which extends from mid-July to the end of September.

COMMENTS

1. Off-site water line installation is not required.

2. On-site water facility construction is required. (See Condition 3 above)

3. Static water pressure is approximately 85 psi. (See Condition 6 above)

4. Access to MWC water lines is available. There is an existing 8-inch water line in Knutson Avenue.

166



³F

#

!#A

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

!R

!R

!R

!R

!4

!4
!4!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

2933
1M

1160
1M1150

1M1150
3/4M

2811-2831
3/4M

2870
1M

2677
1M

2677
3/4M

2700-2722
1 1/2M

1150
1 1/2M

1163
1M

2685
3/4M

Reduced

1 1/2'' C

4'' FS
861853

2825
2933

2677

2821

2870

1160

2811

2831

1163

1150

1150

1150

11501150 1150
1150

1170

1150 1150

1150

1150

1150
1150

1150

8'' DI 1990

1
0
'' 
D
I 
1
9
8
1

6
'' 
D
I 
1
9
7
8

8'
' D
I 1
97
6

H3901
Elev: 1308 ft

H4037
Elev: 1306 ft

H4039
Elev: 1325 ft

H4048
Elev: 1304 ft 8'' TV2080

8'' TV2083

6'' TV2084

6'' GV9578

4'' GV9852

10'' GV9855

6'' GV9857

6'' GV9875

6'' GV9877

1" AV1033

' 1991
-02134

B
u
llo

ck
R
d

N
an

se
n
D
r

Knutson
Av

This map is based on a digital database compiled by  Medford Water Commission from a
variety of sources. Medford Water Commission cannot accept responsibility for errors,
omissions, or positional accuracy. There are no warranties, expressed or implied.

Legend

Water Mains:

Urban Growth Boundary

City Limits

Tax Lots

!RReservoir

"PPump Station

Control Station;̄C

Sample Station

Air Valve

³ Fire Service

Hydrant

Reducer#

Blow Off

Plugs-Caps

Abandoned Main

Active Main

S

!#A

T"B

G

G!.

Reservoir Drain Pipe

Pressure Zone Line

Boundaries:

MWC Facilities:

Butterfly Valve

Gate Valve

Tapping Valve

&É

! (

!R

Water Valves:

Water Meters:
Active Meter

On Well

Unknown

Vacant

!4

!4

!4

!4

±
Water Facility Map
City of Medford

Planning Application:
AC-20-037

(371W18BB2600)
Mar 25, 2020

Scale:
0 50 10025

Feet

1:1,200

Date: 3/12/2020
Path: \\medfordwater.org\public\File Shares\Departments\GIS\Mapping\Projects\LD Map Maker\LD
Map Maker.aprx167

eaconner
Stamp



From: David I. Searcy
To: Liz A. Conner
Subject: AC-20-037
Date: Friday, March 27, 2020 1:37:47 PM

Hi Liz-
Happy Friday! Rodney got me the landscape plan for the project. Since there is less
than 1,500 square feet of landscape, I guess they don’t have to follow the code. That
said, I would recommend for the long term benefit of the site that they put root barrier
on the three sides of the trees that abut to paving, since they aren’t going to put in
structural soil. It will save what are likely to be concrete curbing. The root barrier only
needs to be 12” or 18” deep and none on the building side to allow the roots to
spread. Let me know if you have any questions or comments.
David Searcy
Conservation Coordinator
Medford Water Commission
200 S. Ivy St. Room 177
Medford OR 97501
Cell 541.292.0755
Desk 541.774.2435
http://www.medfordwater.org/
https://www.facebook.com/medfordwater/

“The past is behind, learn from it.”
“The future is ahead, prepare for it.”
“The present is here, live it.”
Thomas S. Monsoon

ALWAYS erase e-mail addresses included in messages before you forward them to
your friends...Also, use the Bcc format (blind carbon copy) when you send out
messages to multiple addressees ...Stomp out SPAM! Thank you. If you wish to be
dropped from my email list, please inform me.

168

mailto:david.searcy@medfordwater.org
mailto:Elizabeth.Conner@cityofmedford.org
http://www.medfordwater.org/
https://www.facebook.com/medfordwater/
eaconner
Stamp



169



From: THOMPSON Seth
To: Liz A. Conner
Cc: todd@powellengineeringconsulting.com
Subject: ODA Comment: AC-20-037
Date: Thursday, March 19, 2020 12:33:57 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
FAA_Form_7460-1.pdf

Thank you for providing the opportunity for the Oregon Department of Aviation (ODA) to comment
on File Number: AC-20-037.
The ODA has determined that a FAA FORM 7460-1 will need to be completed by the applicant for
the proposed construction.
The completed FAA FORM 7460-1 must be submitted to the ODA.
I have attached a FAA FORM 7460-1 for reference.
Please let me know if you have any questions.
Best regards,

Seth Thompson
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF AVIATION
AVIATION PLANNER

OFFICE 503-378-2529 CELL 503-507-6965
EMAIL seth.thompson@aviation.state.or.us

3040 25TH STREET SE, SALEM, OR 97302
WWW.OREGON.GOV/AVIATION

170

mailto:Seth.THOMPSON@aviation.state.or.us
mailto:Elizabeth.Conner@cityofmedford.org
mailto:todd@powellengineeringconsulting.com
https://facebook.com/oraviation
https://twitter.com/oraviation
https://instagram.com/oraviation
mailto:seth.thompson@aviation.state.or.us
http://www.oregon.gov/AVIATION






NOTICE OF PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OR ALTERATION 
§ 77.7   Form and time of notice.
(a) If you are required to file notice under §77.9,
you must submit to the FAA a completed FAA
Form 7460–1, Notice of Proposed Construction
or Alteration. FAA Form 7460–1 is available at
FAA regional offices and on the Internet.


(b) You must submit this form at least 45 days
before the start date of the proposed construction
or alteration or the date an application for a
construction permit is filed, whichever is earliest.


(c) If you propose construction or alteration that is
also subject to the licensing requirements of the
Federal Communications Commission (FCC),
you must submit notice to the FAA on or before
the date that the application is filed with the FCC.


(d) If you propose construction or alteration to an
existing structure that exceeds 2,000 ft. in height
above ground level (AGL), the FAA presumes it
to be a hazard to air navigation that results in an
inefficient use of airspace. You must include
details explaining both why the proposal would
not constitute a hazard to air navigation and why
it would not cause an inefficient use of airspace.


(e) The 45-day advance notice requirement is
waived if immediate construction or alteration is
required because of an emergency involving
essential public services, public health, or public
safety. You may provide notice to the FAA by any
available, expeditious means. You must file a
completed FAA Form 7460–1 within 5 days of the
initial notice to the FAA. Outside normal business
hours, the nearest flight service station will
accept emergency notices.


§ 77.9   Construction or alteration requiring
notice.


If requested by the FAA, or if you propose any of 
the following types of construction or alteration, 
you must file notice with the FAA of: 


(a) Any construction or alteration that is more
than 200 ft. AGL at its site.


(b) Any construction or alteration that exceeds an
imaginary surface extending outward and upward
at any of the following slopes:


(1) 100 to 1 for a horizontal distance of
20,000 ft. from the nearest point of the nearest 
runway of each airport described in paragraph (d) 
of this section with its longest runway more than 
3,200 ft. in actual length, excluding heliports. 


(2) 50 to 1 for a horizontal distance of
10,000 ft. from the nearest point of the nearest 
runway of each airport described in paragraph (d) 
of this section with its longest runway no more 
than 3,200 ft. in actual length, excluding heliports. 


(3) 25 to 1 for a horizontal distance of
5,000 ft. from the nearest point of the nearest 
landing and takeoff area of each heliport 
described in paragraph (d) of this section. 


(c) Any highway, railroad, or other traverse way
for mobile objects, of a height which, if adjusted
upward 17 feet for an Interstate Highway that is
part of the National System of Military and
Interstate Highways where overcrossings are
designed for a minimum of 17 feet vertical
distance, 15 feet for any other public roadway, 10
feet or the height of the highest mobile object that
would normally traverse the road, whichever is
greater, for a private road, 23 feet for a railroad,
and for a waterway or any other traverse way not
previously mentioned, an amount equal to the
height of the highest mobile object that would
normally traverse it, would exceed a standard of
paragraph (a) or (b) of this section.


(d) Any construction or alteration on any of the
following airports and heliports:


(1) A public use airport listed in the
Airport/Facility Directory, Alaska Supplement, or 
Pacific Chart Supplement of the U.S. 
Government Flight Information Publications; 


(2) A military airport under construction,
or an airport under construction that will be 
available for public use; 


(3) An airport operated by a Federal
agency or the DOD. 


(4) An airport or heliport with at least
one FAA-approved instrument approach 
procedure. 


(e) You do not need to file notice for construction
or alteration of:


(1) Any object that will be shielded by
existing structures of a permanent and 
substantial nature or by natural terrain or 
topographic features of equal or greater height, 
and will be located in the congested area of a 
city, town, or settlement where the shielded 
structure will not adversely affect safety in air 
navigation; 


(2) Any air navigation facility, airport
visual approach or landing aid, aircraft arresting 
device, or meteorological device meeting FAA-
approved siting criteria or an appropriate military 
service siting criteria on military airports, the 
location and height of which are fixed by its 
functional purpose; 


(3) Any construction or alteration for
which notice is required by any other FAA 
regulation. 


(4) Any antenna structure of 20 feet or less in
height, except one that would increase the height
of another antenna structure.


Mail Processing Center 


Federal Aviation Administration 
Southwest Regional Office 


Obstruction Evaluation Group  
10101 Hillwood Parkway     
Fort Worth, TX 76177
Fax: (817) 222-5920


Website: https://oeaaa.faa.gov 







PLEASE TYPE or PRINT 


INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING FAA FORM 7460-1 


ITEM #1.  Please include the name, address and phone number of a personal contact point as well as the company name. 


ITEM #2.  Please include the name, address and phone number of a personal contact point as well as the company name. 


ITEM #3. New Construction would be a structure that has not yet been built. 


Alteration is a change to an existing structure such as the addition of a side mounted antenna, a change to the marking and lighting, a 
change to power and/or frequency, or a change to the height.   The nature of the alteration shall be included in ITEM #21 “Complete 
Description of Proposal”. 


Existing would be a correction to the latitude and/or longitude, a correction to the height, or if filing on an existing structure which has never 
been studied by the FAA. The reason for the notice shall be included in ITEM #21 “Complete Description of Proposal”. 


ITEM #4.  If Permanent, so indicate.  If Temporary, such as a crane or drilling derrick, enters the estimated length of time the temporary 
structure will be up. 


ITEM #5. Enter the date that construction is expected to start and the date that construction should be completed. 


ITEM #6. Please indicate the type of structure. DO NOT LEAVE BLANK. 


ITEM #7.  In the event that obstruction marking and lighting is required, please indicate type desired.  If no preference, check “other” and 
indicate “no preference”  DO NOT LEAVE BLANK.   NOTE:    High Intensity lighting shall be used only for structures over 500’ AGL.  In the 
absence of high intensity lighting for structures over 500’ AGL, marking is also required. 


ITEM #8. If this is an existing tower that has been registered with the FCC, enter the FCC Antenna Structure Registration number here. 


ITEM #9 and #10.    Latitude and longitude must be geographic coordinates, accurate to within the nearest second or to the nearest 
hundredth of a second if known.   Latitude and longitude derived solely from a hand-held G P S  instrument   is NOT acceptable.     A 
hand-held GPS is only accurate to within 100 meters (328 feet) 95 percent of the time.   This data, when plotted, should match the site 
depiction submitted under ITEM #20. 


ITEM #11.  NAD 83 is preferred; however, latitude and longitude may be submitted in NAD 27.  Also, in some geographic areas where NAD 
27 and NAD 83 are not available other datum may be used. It is important to know which datum is used. DO NOT LEAVE BLANK. 
ITEM #12. Enter the name of the nearest city and state to the site. If the structure is or will be in a city, enter the name of that city and state. 


ITEM #13. Enter the full name of the nearest public-use (not private-use) airport or heliport or military airport or heliport to the site. 


ITEM #14. Enter the distance from the airport or heliport listed in #13 to the structure. 


ITEM #15. Enter the direction from the airport or heliport listed in #13 to the structure. 


ITEM #16.  Enter the site elevation above mean sea level and expressed in whole feet rounded to the nearest foot (e.g. 17’3” rounds to 17’, 
17’6” rounds to 18’). This data should match the ground contour elevations for site depiction submitted under ITEM #20. 
ITEM #17.  Enter the total structure height above ground l e v e l  in whole feet rounded to the next highest f o o t  (e.g. 17’3” rounds to 18’). 
The total structure height  shall  include  anything  mounted  on top of the structure,  such  as antennas,  obstruction lights,  lightning 
rods, etc. 


ITEM #18. Enter the overall height above mean sea level and expressed in whole feet.  This will be the total of ITEM #16 + ITEM #17. 


ITEM #19. If an FAA aeronautical study was previously conducted, enter the previous study number. 


ITEM #20.   Enter the relationship of the structure to roads, airports, prominent terrain, existing structures, etc.   Attach an 8-1/2” x 11” 
non-reduced copy of the appropriate 7.5 minute U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) Quadrangle Map MARKED WITH A PRECISE INDICATION 
OF THE SITE LOCATION.   To obtain maps, contact USGS at 1-888-275-8747 or via internet at “http://store.usgs.gov”.  If available, 
attach a copy of a documented site survey with the surveyor’s certification stating the amount of vertical and horizontal accuracy in feet. 


ITEM #21. 


• For transmitting stations, include maximum effective radiated power (ERP) and all frequencies.


• For antennas, include the type of antenna and center of radiation (Attach the antenna pattern, if available).


• For microwave, include azimuth relative to true north.


• For overhead wires or transmission lines, include size and configuration of wires and their supporting structures (Attach depiction).


• For each pole/support, include coordinates, site elevation, and structure height above ground level or water.


• For buildings, include site orientation, coordinates of each corner, dimensions, and construction materials.


• For alterations, explain the alteration thoroughly.


• For existing structures, thoroughly explain the reason for notifying the FAA (e.g. corrections, no record or previous study, etc.).


Filing this information with the FAA does not relieve the sponsor of this construction or alteration from complying with any other 
federal, state or local rules or regulations.  If you are not sure what other rules or regulations apply to your proposal, contact 
local/state aviation’s and zoning authorities. 


Paperwork Reduction Work Act Statement:  A federal agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with a collection of information subject to the 
requirements of the Paperwork Reduction Act unless that collection displays a currently valid OMB Control Number. The OMB control number for this information collection is 2120-0001. Public reporting for this collection of information is 
estimated to be approximately 19 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, completing and reviewing the collection of information. 
All responses to this collection of information are mandatory for anyone proposing construction or alteration that meets the criteria contained in 14 CFR 77. This information is collected to evaluate the effect of proposed construction or 
alteration on air navigation and is not confidential. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to: Information Collection Clearance Officer, 
Federal Aviation Administration, 10101 Hillwood Parkway, Fort Worth, TX 76177-1524. 


Form 7460-1 (02/20) Superseded Previous Edition  Electronic Version (Adobe)   NSN:  0052-00-012-0009 



file:///E:/





Please Type or Print on This Form
Form Approved OMB No.2120-0001


Expiration Date: 02/29/2020


      Failure To Provide All Requested Information May Delay Processing of Your Notice


U.S. Department of Transportation Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration
Federal Aviation Administration 


FOR FAA USE ONLY


Aeronautical Study Number


1. Sponsor (person, company, etc. proposing this action):


Attn. of


Name:


Address:


City: State: Zip: 


Telephone: Fax: 


9. Latitude:
0 


. " 
0


10. Longitude:
.  


11. Datum:    NAD 83   NAD 27   Other 


12. Nearest:  City:  State 


13. Nearest Public-use (not private-use) or Military Airport or Heliport:


14. Distance from #13. to Structure:


15. Direction from #13. to Structure:


16. Site Elevation (AMSL):   ft. 


17. Total Structure Height (AGL):   ft. 


18. Overall Height (#16 + #17) (AMSL):   ft. 


19. Previous FAA Aeronautical Study Number (if applicable):


-OE


20. Description of Location: (Attach a USGS 7.5 minute Quadrangle Map with the 


precise site marked and any certified survey)


2. Sponsor's Representative (if other than #1):


Attn. of


Name:


Address:


City: State:  Zip:_______________ 


Telephone: Fax: 


3. Notice of:   New Construction   Alteration   Existing 


4. Duration:   Permanent   Temporary (     months,  days) 


5. Work Schedule: Beginning End  


6. Type:  Antenna Tower    Crane   Building   Power Line 
   Landfill   Water Tank   Other 


7. Marking/Painting and/or Lighting Preferred:


  Red Lights and Paint    Dual - Red and Medium Intensity   
White-Medium Intensity    Dual - Red and high Intensity       
White -High Intensity    Other 


8. FCC Antenna Structure Registration Number (if applicable):


21. Complete Description of Proposal:
Frequency/Power (kW) 


Notice is required by 14 Code of Federal Regulations, part 77 pursuant to 49 U.S.C., Section 44718.  Persons who knowingly and willingly violate the notice 
requirements of part 77 are subject to a civil penalty of $1,000 per day until the notice is received, pursuant to 49 U.S.C., Section 46301(a) 


I hereby certify that all of the above statements made by me are true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge.  In addition, I agree to mark and/or light the 
structure in accordance with established marking & lighting standards as necessary.


Date Typed or Printed Name and Title of Person Filing Notice Signature 


FAA Form 7460-1 (02/20) Supersedes Previous Edition NSN:  0052-00-012-0009 


Privacy Act Statement (5 U.S.C. § 552a, as amended): AUTHORITY: The FAA is responsible for issuing a determination based on extensive analysis completed in accordance with 49 United States Code (USC) Sections 44718. Title 14 of the Code of 
Federal Regulations (14 CFR), part 77 authorizes FAA to collect this information. PURPOSE(S): FAA will use the information provided to administer the Aeronautical Study Process. ROUTINE USE(S): In accordance with DOT's system of records notice, 
DOT/ALL 16 Mailing Management System and DOT/FAA 826 Petitions for Exemption, Other than Medical Exemption-Public Dockets, the information provided may be disclosed to officials within the Federal government and the public in general. 


"





		Aeronautical Study Number: 

		9 Latitude: 

		0: 

		New Construction: Off

		Alteration: Off

		Existing: Off

		Permanent: Off

		Temporary: Off

		Antenna Tower: Off

		Crane: Off

		Building: Off

		Power Line: Off

		Landfill: Off

		Water Tank: Off

		Other: Off

		Red Lights and Paint: Off

		WhiteMedium Intensity: Off

		White High Intensity: Off

		Dual Red and Medium Intensity: Off

		Dual Red and high Intensity: Off

		Other_2: Off

		9 Latitude 0    0 10 Longitude   11 Datum NAD 83 NAD 27 Other 12 Nearest City State 13 Nearest Publicuse not privateuse or Military Airport or Heliport 14 Distance from 13 to Structure 15 Direction from 13 to Structure 16 Site Elevation AMSL ft 17 Total Structure Height AGL ft 18 Overall Height 16  17 AMSL ft 19 Previous FAA Aeronautical Study Number if applicable OE 20 Description of Location Attach a USGS 75 minute Quadrangle Map with the precise site marked and any certified survey: 

		10 Longitude: 

		0_2: 

		1: 

		2: 

		Name: 

		Address: 

		undefined_2: 

		12 Nearest City: 

		State: 

		City: 

		State_2: 

		Zip: 

		13 Nearest Publicuse not privateuse or Military Airport or Heliport: 

		Telephone: 

		Fax: 

		14 Distance from 13 to Structure: 

		15 Direction from 13 to Structure: 

		Name_2: 

		ft: 

		ft_2: 

		Address 1: 

		Address 2: 

		ft_3: 

		City_2: 

		State_3: 

		Zip_2: 

		OE: 

		Telephone_2: 

		Fax_2: 

		5 Work Schedule Beginning: 

		End: 

		8 FCC Antenna Structure Registration Number if applicable: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_2: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_3: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_4: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_5: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_6: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_7: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_8: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_9: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_10: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_11: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_12: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_13: 

		21 Complete Description of Proposal_14: 

		Date: 

		Typed or Printed Name and Title of Person Filing Notice: 

		Signature: 

		Complete Description: 

		Text3: 

		Text4: 

		Text5: 

		Text6: 

		Text7: 

		Text8: 

		Text9: 

		Text10: 

		Text11: 

		Text12: 

		Text13: 

		Text14: 

		Text15: 

		Text16: 

		Check Box17: Off

		Check Box18: Off

		Check Box19: Off

		undefined: 

		days: 

		months: 

		undefined_3: 

		undefined_4: 







From: Amber Judd
To: Liz A. Conner
Subject: File No. AC-20-037 Project Name: Office Space, Storage, & 6 Dwelling Units
Date: Monday, March 16, 2020 11:51:25 AM

<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**>

Elizabeth,

The Airport requests an Avigation, Noise and Hazard Easement be a requirement of this project.  In
addition, due to the proximity to the Airport, the applicant needs to contact the FAA regarding filing
a 7460-1 Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration.  The FAA contact is: Paul Holmquist, phone
(206) 231-2990.

I have inserted some information below from the FAA’s website:

The requirements for filing with the Federal Aviation Administration for proposed structures vary based on a
number of factors: height, proximity to an airport, location, and frequencies emitted from the structure, etc. For
more details, please reference CFR Title 14 Part 77.9.

You must file with the FAA at least 45 days prior to construction if:

Your structure will exceed 200 ft above ground level

Your structure will be in proximity to an airport and will exceed the slope ratio

Your structure involves construction of a traverseway (i.e. highway, railroad, waterway, etc…) and once

adjusted upward with the appropriate vertical distance would exceed a standard of 77.9(a) or (b)

Your structure will emit frequencies, and does not meet the conditions of the FAA Co-location Policy

Your structure will be in an instrument approach area and might exceed part 77 Subpart C

Your proposed structure will be in proximity to a navigation facility and may impact the assurance of

navigation signal reception

Your structure will be on an airport or heliport

Filing has been requested by the FAA

If you require additional information regarding the filing requirements for your structure, please identify and
contact the appropriate FAA representative using the Air Traffic Areas of Responsibility map for Off Airport
construction, or contact the FAA Airport Region/District Office for On Airport construction.

Results

You exceed the following Notice Criteria:

Your proposed structure is in proximity to a navigation facility and may impact the assurance of navigation signal
reception. The FAA, in accordance with 77.9, requests that you file.

The FAA requests that you file.

171

mailto:JuddAJ@jacksoncounty.org
mailto:Elizabeth.Conner@cityofmedford.org


Thank you,

Amber Judd
Director of Finance and Administration
Rogue Valley International-Medford Airport (MFR)

1000 Terminal Loop Parkway, Suite 201
Medford, Oregon 97504
541-776-7222

172



K:\DATA\AGENCIES\MEDFORD\PLANNG\ARCH COMM\2020\AC-20-037_OFFICE, STORAGE, & DWELING UNITS.DOC 

ROGUE VALLEY SEWER SERVICES 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
 

  Location: 138 West Vilas Road, Central Point, OR - Mailing Address: P.O. Box 3130, Central Point, OR 97502-0005 
Tel. (541) 664-6300, Fax (541) 664-7171    www.RVSS.us 

March 12, 2020 

City of Medford Planning Department 
200 S. Ivy Street 
Medford, Oregon   97501 

Re: Office, Storage, 6 Dwelling Units  (Map 371W18B, TL 2600) 

ATTN:  Liz, 

The subject property is within the RVSS service area. There is an 8 inch sewer main on 
the adjacent property along the east and north property boundary as shown on the 
submitted site plan. Sewer service for proposed development can be had by a new 
sewer tap as generally shown no the site plan. Tap permits are issued by RVSS and 
sewer connection permit will be issued by the City of Medford. Sewer System 
Development Charges will be owed to RVSS. 

Rogue Valley Sewer Services requests that approval of this application be subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. All development must be designed and constructed per RVSS standards.
2. The applicant must submit architectural drawings to RVSS for the calculation of

System Development Charges.
3. The applicant must obtain a sewer tap permit from RVSS and pay related

development fees prior to the issuance of building permits.

Please feel free contact me with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Nicholas R. Bakke, P.E. 
District Engineer 

173



Office Space, Storage,
& 6 Dwelling Units

2/12/2020

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

¬«62

N Fred

Meyer Dr

Hilton Rd

MedcoRd

Hilton Ct

Midway
Rd

No
rth

cre
st

Ci
r

Old Biddle

Ramp

Na
ns

en
 D

r

Fisher Ave

Knutson Ave

Bu llock Rd
Poplar Dr

Bi
dd

le 
Rd

Hilton Rd

4

3

2

1

AC-20-037
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 510255 Feet

Legend
Subject Area
Tax Lots s371W18BB TL 2600

1800 Knutson Avenue

174



STAFF REPORT 
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: Site Plan and Architectural Review 

Project Braun Brush  
Applicant and Agent: JB Steel, Inc. 

File no. AC-20-038 

To Site Plan and Architectural Review Commission for 04/17/2020 hearing 

From Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date April 8, 2020 

BACKGROUND 

Proposal 

Consideration of a proposal to construct an approximately 7,500 square foot single-
story warehouse on a 6.54 acre parcel located at 1525 N Central Avenue in the 
General Industrial (I-G) zoning district (372W24701).  

Vicinity Map 

175



Subject Site Characteristics 

GLUP HI Heavy Industrial 
Zoning I-G General Industrial 
Overlay AC Airport Area of Concern 

I-00 Limited Industrial 
Use Vacant 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North Zone: I-G & I-L (Light Industrial)
Use: Vacant 

South Zone: I-H (Heavy Industrial)
Use: Timber Products

East  Zone: C-R (Regional Commercial)
Use: Northgate Commercial development

West Zone: GI (Jackson County General Industrial Zoning) 
Use: Timber Products 

Related Projects 

LDP-08-025 2-lot Partition
ZC-08-026 Zone Change from County Zoning to General Industrial

Applicable Criteria 

Medford Municipal Code §10. 200(E)(1) – Site Plan & Architectural Review Criteria 

(E) Site Plan and Architectural Review Approval Criteria (Type II & III). 

(1) The Site Plan and Architectural Commission, SPAC – Type III Review, shall approve 
a site plan and architectural review application for a commercial or industrial 
development, if it can find that the proposed development conforms, or can be made 
to conform through the imposition of conditions, with the following criteria: 

(a) The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 
exist on adjacent land, and 

(b) The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all 
city ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved 
(an) exception(s) as provided in Section 10.186. 

176



Approval Authority 

This is a Type III land use decision. The Site Plan & Architectural Commission is the 
approving authority under MLDC 10.108(1).  

Corporate Names 

Scott Stritenberg is listed as the Registered Agent for JB Steel, Inc. according to the 
Oregon Secretary of State Business Registry. Robert Batzer is listed as the President 
and Richard Batzer is listed as the Secretary. 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Background 

A consolidated application for a two-lot land division and zone change from Jackson 
County zoning to the City’s General Industrial (I-G) zone was approved in April of 2008. 
Also established as part of the zone change was a Limited Industrial (I-00) zoning 
overlay which does prohibit certain uses in industrial zones. However, the proposed 
uses are permitted on the subject site. 

Current Proposal 

Lot Line Adjustment 

The subject site is approximately 6.5 acres in size. It is the applicant’s intention to 
further partition the subject site in the future in order to create a 37,196 square foot 
parcel for the purpose of this development. At the time this staff report was prepared, 
a Partition application has not yet been received. However, as the proposed 
development does meet all applicable site development standards within the existing 

177



parcel, the completion of a Partition application is not necessary and, therefore, was 
not included as a condition of approval.  

Proposed Building 

The proposed development consists of a 
7,568 square foot, single-story warehouse. 
The development will include an office 
area, break room, conference room, 
bathrooms and a light-duty manufacturing 
warehouse, as well as a 1,400 square foot, 
second-story mezzanine.  

Included in the development are two 
loading docks along the east side; one at 
grade level as well as a 4-foot depressed 
loading area for larger trucks. 

The site is served by a 24-foot wide private 
road extending to the subject site from North Central Avenue. 

Development Standards 

Site Development Table  

I-G Allowed/Required Proposed 

Height 85 feet 22 feet 

Lot Coverage 90% 20.3% (proposed partition) 

Setback (front) 10 feet  77 feet 

Setback  
(rear and side 

yards) 
1 foot 

19’-11” (west – proposed partition) 
35’-3” (east – proposed partition) 

79’-2” (south) 

Minimum Lot Area 10,000 square feet 37,196 (proposed) 

Minimum Lot 
Width 

70 feet 149’-10” (proposed) 

Minimum Lot 
Depth 

100 feet 248’-3” (proposed) 

Minimum Lot 
Frontage 70 feet 149’-10” (proposed) 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the proposed 
building identified on the submitted site plan, meets the bulk standards for the I-G 

178



zoning district as found in Article V of the Medford Land Development Code for the 
existing parcel dimensions, as well as the proposed parcel. 

Parking 

Parking Table (MLDC 10.743-751) 

Required Provided 

Vehicle Spaces 22 22 

Bicycle Spaces 5 5 

The submitted site plan shows a total of 22 parking stalls, meeting the minimum 
required as per MLDC 10.743(1). The site plan also shows the requisite number of 
handicap spaces and bicycle spaces, as per MLDC 10.746(8)(a) and 10.748, 
respectively. 

Landscaping 

Frontage Landscaping (MLDC 10.797) 

Required Shown 

Trees 4 4 

Shrubs 22 ? 

The applicant’s submitted landscape plan (Exhibit G) shows landscaping along the 
site’s frontage with the existing private street, meeting the minimum required 
number of trees. The amount of shrubs is not identified on the plans. It will be a 
condition of approval to submit a revised landscape plan showing the required 
number of trees and shrubs, meeting all requirements of MLDC 10.780 including the 
following:  

- Structural soil for the two island planter trees,
- the “ground cover” is not named, and
- the plant botanical names are missing.

Pedestrian Access (MLDC 10.772-776) 

The site plan shows the proposed structure directly adjacent to the abutting street. A 
six-foot sidewalk in front of the structure will serve as the required pedestrian 
connection which is consistent with the standards found in MLDC 10.772-776. 

179



Concealments 

Trash Enclosure (MLDC 10.781) 

The applicant’s site plan shows a trash enclosure located at the northwest corner of 
the building, and the submitted findings state that a CMU wall is proposed to screen 
trash dumpster. 

Proposal meets Code requirements, as per MLDC 10.781. 

Architecture 

Per the applicant’s findings, the architectural composition of the proposed building 
mass has been articulated in a manner intended to mitigate the perceived mass of 
the structure and yet retain an industrial character. A variety of architectural elements 
and exterior finish materials are intended to soften the presence of the structure and 
to contribute appropriately to the surrounding architectural context. 

The proposed building is a pre-engineered steel structure with traditional pre-
finished metal siding on the sides and rear of the building. The front of the building 
will be dedicated to waiting areas, office spaces, and related support activities. The 
front of the building is galvalume panels above 12 feet and colored metal panels 
below 12 feet that gives the proposed building a clean appearance and is in keeping 
with the structures across North Central Ave. Entries and feature windows have been 
articulated with human scale elements. 

Other Agency Comments 

Rogue Valley Sewer Services (RVSS) (Exhibit O) 

The subject property is within RVSS service area. As a condition of approval, the 
applicant will be required to comply with the conditions of RVSS. 

180



Jackson County Roads (Exhibit N) 

Jackson County Roads had no comments and deferred to ODOT. No comments were 
received from ODOT at the time this staff report was prepared. 

Oregon Department of State Lands (DSL) (Exhibit R) 

The DSL responded to a Wetlands Land Use Notification (WLUN) by staff with a WLUN 
Response form. The response states that there may be wetlands or other features on 
the property that are subject to the State Removal-Fill Law. An onsite inspection by a 
qualified wetland consultant is recommended prior to site development to determine 
if the site has wetlands or other waters that may be regulated. As a condition of 
approval, the applicant will be required to comply with the conditions by DSL.  

Rogue Valley International – Medford Airport (Exhibit Q) 

Rogue Valley International Airport requests an Avigation, Noise and Hazard Easement 
to be required as part of the permit process. In the 2010 LUBA decision on Michelle 
Barnes vs. City of Hillsboro and the Port of Portland, Nollan/Dolan findings are 
required to support the request (LUBA No. 2010-011). None were provided; therefore, 
a condition requiring compliance with the airport’s request for an Avigation, Noise 
and Hazard Easement has not been included. 

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from committees such as BPAC. 

No other issues were identified by staff.  

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The proposed development is compatible with uses and development that 
exist on adjacent land; 

The Commission can find that there is sufficient evidence contained in the applicant’s 
findings and the Staff Report to determine that the proposal is compatible with the 
uses and development on adjacent land.  This criterion is satisfied.   

2. The proposed development complies with the applicable provisions of all city 
ordinances or the Site Plan and Architectural Commission has approved (an) 
exception(s) as provided in MLDC § 10.253. 

The Commission can find that the proposal can be made to comply with the 
applicable provisions of the Code with the imposition of conditions of approval 
contained in Exhibit A.   This criterion is satisfied.  

181



FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s findings and conclusions (Exhibit H) and 
recommends the Commission adopt the findings as recommended by staff.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the final order 
for approval of AC-20-038 per the staff report dated April 8, 2020, including Exhibits 
A through S. 

EXHIBITS 

A Conditions of Approval, dated April 8, 2020 
B Site Plan, received February 11, 2020 
C Floor Plan, received February 11, 2020 
D Roof Plan, received February 11, 2020 
E Elevations, received February 11, 2020 
F Details, received February 11, 2020 
G Landscape Plan, received February 11, 2020 
H Applicant’s Findings and Conclusions, received February 11, 2020 
I Public Works Report, dated March 25, 2020 
J Building Department Memo, dated March 23, 2020 
K Medford Water Commission Memo, dated March 25, 2020 
L Fire Department Memo, dated March 20, 2020 
M City Surveyor Memo, dated March 12, 2020 
N Jackson County Roads Memo, dated March 16, 2020 
O RVSS Memo, dated March 13, 2020 
P Email from Oregon Department of Aviation, received March 19, 2020 
Q Email from Medford Airport, received March 16, 2020 
R WLUN Response from DSL, dated March 25, 2020 
S Property Deed, received March 18, 2020 

Vicinity map  

SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMISSION AGENDA: APRIL 17, 2020 

182



EXHIBIT A 

Braun Brush 
AC-20-038 

Conditions of Approval 
April 8, 2020 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit for vertical construction, the applicant shall: 

1. Submit a revised landscape plan meeting all requirements of MLDC 10.780 including
the following corrections:

a. Identify the number of shrubs,
b. Structural soil for the two island planter trees
c. Name of the ‘ground cover’, and
d. Identify the plant botanical names.

2. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Public Works Department (Exhibit I).

3. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit K).

4. Comply with all requirements of the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit L).

5. Comply with all requirements of RVSS (Exhibit O).

6. Comply with all requirements by the Department of State Lands (Exhibit R).

183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



LD DATE: 3/25/2020 

File Number: AC-20-038 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 

1525 North Central Avenue (TL 701) 
New Warehouse Building (Braun Brush) 

Project: Consideration  of  a  proposal  for  an  approximately  7,500  square  foot  single 

story warehouse on a 6.54 acre parcel. 

Location: Located at 1525 N Central Avenue in the General Industrial (I-G) zoning district 

(372W24701). 

Applicant: Applicant & Agent, JB Steel Inc.; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NOTE: The items listed here shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective issuances of 

permits and certificates: 

Prior to issue of the first building permit, the following items shall be completed and 

accepted: 

 Submittal and approval of plans for site grading and drainage, and detention, if

applicable.

 Completion of all public improvements, if required.  The Applicant may provide

security for 120% of the improvements prior to issuance of building permits.

Construction plans for the improvements shall be approved by the Public Works

Engineering Division prior to acceptance of security.

 Items A – D, unless noted otherwise.

Prior to issue of Certificate-of-Occupancy for completed structures, the following items 

shall be completed and accepted: 

 Paving of all on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas

 Verification by the design Engineer that the stormwater quality and detention system

was constructed per the approved plan, if applicable.

 Completion of all public improvements, if applicable.

A. STREETS

1. Dedications

North Central Avenue classified as a Minor Arterial street within the Medford Land 

Development Code (MLDC), Section 10.428.   No additional right-of-way will be required. 

206



Railroad is under the jurisdiction of the Central Oregon and Pacific Railroad (CORP).  The 

Developer shall contact CORP to see if additional right-of-way is required.  

A 15-foot wide public utility easement (PUE) adjacent to the right-of-way line has already 

been dedicated along this developments frontage as part of Partition Plat P-11-2009. 

2. Public Improvements

a. Public Streets

North Central Avenue – All street section improvements have been completed including 

pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalks and street lights. No additional street improvements 

are required. 

Railroad is under the jurisdiction of the CORP.  The Developer shall contact CORP to see if 

any additional improvements are required. 

NOTE: All projects subject to Site Plan and Architectural Review shall be required per MLDC 

10.501 (6), as a condition of approval, to repair all frontage sidewalks as determined by the 

Engineering Division. When attached as a condition of approval of a Site Plan and 

Architectural.  Review application the sidewalk maintenance procedures set forth in 

Chapter 3, Section 3.025, Notice on Hearing of City Repair of Sidewalks, through 3.035, 

Notice of Sidewalk Repair, are hereby superseded. 

b. Street Lights and Signing

No additional street lights or signs are required. 

The Developer shall be responsible for the preservation and re-installation of all signs 

removed during demolition and site preparation work.  The Developer’s contractor shall 

coordinate with the City of Medford Public Works, Maintenance and Operations Division to 

remove any existing signs and place new signs provided by Medford Public Works 

Department and paid for by Developer.

c. Pavement Moratoriums

There is no pavement cutting moratorium currently in effect along this developments 

frontage to North Central Avenue.  

B. SANITARY SEWERS

This site lies within the Rogue Valley Sewer Service (RVSS) area.  The Developer shall 

contact RVSS for conditions of connection to the sanitary sewer collection system.  The 

Developer shall provide one separate individual service lateral to each tax lot or ensure 

that each tax lot is served by an individual service lateral. 

207



C. STORM DRAINAGE

1. Drainage Plan

A comprehensive drainage plan showing the entire project site with sufficient spot 

elevations to determine direction of runoff to the proposed drainage system, and also 

showing elevations on the proposed drainage system, shall be submitted with the first 

building permit application for approval. 

The Developer shall provide copies of either a Joint Use Maintenance Agreement or a 

private stormdrain easement for any stormwater draining onto or from adjacent private 

property. 

A Site/Utility Plan shall be submitted with the building permit application to show the 

location of existing or proposed stormdrain lateral/s for the site. 

All private storm drain lines shall be located outside of the public right-of-way and/or any 

public utility easements (PUE). 

2. Grading

A comprehensive grading plan showing the relationship between adjacent property and 

the proposed development will be submitted with the improvement plans for approval. 

Grading on this development shall not block drainage from an adjacent property or 

concentrate drainage onto an adjacent property without an easement. The Developer shall 

be responsible that the final grading of the development shall be in compliance with the 

approved grading plan. 

3. Detention and Water Quality

Stormwater quality and detention facilities shall be required in accordance with MLDC 

Section 10.481 and 10.729. 

4. Verification

Upon completion of the project, and prior to certificate of occupancy of the building, the 

Developer’s design Engineer shall verify that the construction of the stormwater quality and 

detention system was constructed per plan.  Verification shall be in writing and submitted 

to the Engineering Division of Public Works.  Reference Rogue Valley Stormwater Quality 

Design Manual, Appendix I, Technical Requirements. 

5. Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control

All development that disturbs 5,000 square feet or greater shall require an Erosion 

Prevention and Sediment Control Plan.  Developments that disturb one acre and greater 

208



shall require a 1200C permit from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).  Erosion 

Prevention and Sediment Control Plans shall be submitted to the Building Department with 

the project plans for development.  All disturbed areas shall be covered with vegetation or 

properly stabilized prior to certificate of occupancy.  

D. GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. Construction and Inspection

The Developer or Developer’s contractor shall obtain appropriate right-of-way permits 

from the Department of Public Works prior to commencing any work within the public 

right-of-way that is not included within the scope of work described within approved public 

improvement plans.   

Contractors proposing to do work on public streets (including street lights), sewers, or 

storm drains shall ‘prequalify’ with the Engineering Division prior to starting work.  

Contractors shall work off a set of public improvement drawings that have been approved 

by the City of Medford Engineering Division. 

For City of Medford facilities, the Public Works Maintenance Division requires that public 

sanitary sewer and storm drain mains be inspected by video camera prior to acceptance of 

these systems by the City. 

Where applicable, the Developer shall bear all expenses resulting from the adjustment of 

manholes to finish grades as a result of changes in the finish street grade. 

2. Site Improvements

All on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas related to this development shall be 

paved in accordance with MLDC, Section 10.746, prior to issuance of certificate of 

occupancy for any structures on the site.  Curbs shall be constructed around the perimeter 

of all parking and maneuvering areas that are adjacent to landscaping or unpaved areas 

related to this site.  Curbs may be deleted or curb cuts provided wherever pavement drains 

to a water quality facility. 

3. System Development Charges (SDC)

Buildings in this development are subject to system development charges (SDCs).  All SDC 

fees shall be paid at the time individual building permits are issued. 

Prepared by: Jodi K Cope 

Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs

209



SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
1525 North Central Avenue (TL 701) 
New Warehouse Building (Braun Brush) AC-20-038 

A. Streets

1. Street Dedications to the Public:

 No addition right-of-way or Public Utility Easement (PUE) dedications are required with this

application.

2. Improvements:

Public Streets

 No additional improvements are required with this application.

Lighting and Signing 

 No additional street lights are required with this application.

Other 

 No pavement moratorium currently in effect along this frontage to North Central Avenue.

B. Sanitary Sewer:

 The site is situated within the RVSS area.

C. Storm Drainage:
 Provide a comprehensive grading and drainage plan.

 Provide water quality and detention facilities, calculations and O&M Manual.

 Provide engineers verification of stormwater facility construction.

 Provide copy of an approved Erosion Control Permit (1200C) from DEQ for this project.

 = City Code Requirement

o = Discretionary recommendations/comments

The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way.  If there is any discrepancy 

between the above list and the full report, the full report shall govern.  Refer to the full report for details on each item as well as 

miscellaneous requirements for the project, including requirements for public improvement plans (Construction Plans), design 

requirements, phasing, draft and final plat processes, permits, system development charges, pavement moratoriums and 

construction inspection. 

210



MEMORANDUM 

To: Steffen Roennfeldt, Planning Department  

From: Chad Wiltrout, Building Department (541) 774-2363 

CC: JB Steel, Inc., Applicant and Agent  

Date: March 23, 2020 

Subject: AC-20-038_Braun Brush_1525 N. Central Ave. 

Please Note:  

This is not a plan review. Unless noted specifically as Conditions of Approval, general 
comments are provided below based on the general information provided; these 
comments are based on the 2019 Oregon Structural Specialty Code (OSSC) unless 
noted otherwise. Plans need to be submitted and will be reviewed by a commercial 
plans examiner, and there may be additional comments.  

Fees are based on valuation.  Please contact Building Department front counter for 
estimated fees at (541) 774-2350 or building@cityofmedford.org. 

For questions related to the Conditions or Comments, please contact me, Chad 
Wiltrout, directly at (541) 774-2363 or chad.wiltrout@cityofmedford.org. 

General Comments: 

1. For list of applicable Building Codes, please visit the City of Medford website:
www.ci.medford.or.us  Click on “City Departments” at top of screen; click on
“Building”; click on “Design Criteria” on left side of screen and select the appropriate 
design criteria.

2. All plans are to be submitted electronically. Information on the website:
www.ci.medford.or.us      Click on “City Departments” at top of screen; click on
“Building”; click on “Electronic Plan Review (ePlans)” for information.

3. A site excavation and grading permit will be required if more than 50 cubic yards
is disturbed.

211

mailto:building@cityofmedford.org
mailto:chad.wiltrout@cityofmedford.org
http://www.ci.medford.or.us/
http://www.ci.medford.or.us/


4. A separate demolition permit will be required for demolition of any structures not
shown on the plot plan.

Comments: 

1. Per application this would be a mixed use occupancy B and S-1. There is not
required separation, however, type of construction is per Table 506.2. Will need to
identify at time of submittal occupancy type.

2. Per Section 903.2.9 and fire department building may require to be sprinkled.

3. The building and building appurtenances shall be designed by an Oregon licensed
design professional in accordance with 107.1 OSSC. A design professional of
responsible charge shall be required to oversee this project in accordance with
107.3.4 OSSC.

4. ADA accessibility for the site and the building shall be addressed in detail to show
compliance with Chapter 11 OSSC and 2009 ANSI A117.1

5. A code analysis providing occupant load, means of egress plan, type of
construction, use/occupancy classification, occupant load, fire protection systems,
mixed occupancies, plumbing fixtures, etc. . . . . . will be required. 

6. Special inspections are required for this project in accordance with Chapter 17
OSSC.

7. Oregon Building Cods Division provides 2 options for meeting energy code
requirements for new construction. There are several forms and detailing
requirements needed to show compliance depending on which code path you
choose. Please visit the Oregon BCD website for details/requirements.

8. A geotechnical analysis is required for this project in accordance with 1803.5
OSSC.

9. Proposed construction in proximity to fire separation distance line shall comply
with Table 602 and code section 705 of the OSSC.

212



 BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

 Staff Memo 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\ac20038.docx  
Page 1 of 2 

TO: Planning Department, City of Medford

FROM: Rodney Grehn P.E., Water Commission Staff Engineer

SUBJECT: AC-20-038

PARCEL ID: 372W24 TL 701

PROJECT: Consideration of a proposal for an approximately 7,500 square foot single story 
warehouse on a 6.54 acre parcel located at 1525 N Central Avenue in the General 
Industrial (I-G) zoning district (372W24701); Applicant & Agent, JB Steel Inc.; 
Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt.

DATE: March 25, 2020

I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested.  Conditions for approval and 
comments are as follows: 

CONDITIONS 

1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the
Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and “Standards
For Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devices.”

2. Installation of a new domestic water service is required for this proposed development. The
proposed water meter is required to be installed near the existing fire hydrant at the west
end of the 8-inch water line. (This is the 2nd fire hydrant from the site entrance.)

3. Dedication of a 10 foot wide (minimum) access and maintenance easement to MWC over
all water facilities located outside of public right-of-way is required.  Easement shall be
submitted to MWC for review and recordation prior to construction.

4. Installation of an Oregon Health Authority approved backflow device is required for all
commercial, industrial, municipal, and multi-family developments. New backflow devices
shall be tested by an Oregon certified backflow assembly tester. See MWC website for list
of certified testers at the following web link http://www.medfordwater.org/Page.asp?NavID=35 .

5. Static water pressure is expected to be near 105 psi. Installation of Pressure Reducing
Valve (PRV) is required per Uniform Plumbing Code. See attached document from the City
of Medford Building Department on “Policy on Installation of Pressure Reducing Valves”.

6. Applicant and/or their Civil Engineer shall coordinate with MWC engineering staff for Fire
Hydrant flow testing for design of potential fire sprinkler system for this building.

Continued to Next Page 

213



 BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

 Staff Memo 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\ac20038.docx  
Page 2 of 2 

Continued from Previous Page 

COMMENTS

1. Off-site water line installation is not required.

2. On-site water facility construction is not required.

3. MWC-metered water service does NOT exist to this property. (See Condition 2 above)

4. Approximate static water pressure is 105 psi. (See Condition 5 above)

5. Access to MWC water lines is available. There is an existing 12-inch waterline located in the
public right-of-way of N Central Avenue, with 8-inch water lines that extend across the
“onsite” paved access drive to the “future” sites.

6. There is a total five (5) 8-inch water line stubs with existing fire hydrants installed at the west
end of each Fire Hydrant lateral.

214



G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

³³

³
³

³

³

³

³

!#A

!#A

!#A

!#A

!#A

!#A

!#A

!#A

&É

&É

&É

&É

&É

&É

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! ( ! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (! (

! (

! ( ! ( ! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

! (

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

!4!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

!4

13
70

13
60

1370

1360

1350

1340

135
0

137
0

134
0

1350

13
50

13
50

13
50

13
50

135
0

1340

13
50

1350

1350

135
0

1350

1340

181

279

171

191

191

171

263

181

191

293

171

191

271

171

181

181

181

1525

1585

8''
DI

20
08

8'' DI 2008

8''D
I20

08

8''
DI

200
8

8''D
I20

16

1
2
'' 
D
I

2
0
1
6

8''
DI

20
08

8
'' 
D
I 
2
0
1
6

1
2
''D

I
2
0
1
6

1
2
'' 
D
I 
2
0
1
6

8''DI2016

12''
DI2

016

12''D
I
2008

12''D
I
2008

H4943
Elev: 1348 ft

H4944
Elev: 1347 ft

H4945
Elev: 1346 ft

H4946
Elev: 1347 ft

H4947
Elev: 1346 ft

H5322
Elev: 1347 ft

H5312
Elev:1346ft

H5313
Elev: 1342 ft

H5314
Elev: 1338 ft

H5315
Elev: 1339 ft

H5317
Elev: 1339 ft

H5319
Elev: 1344 ft

H5321
Elev: 1348 ft

H5318
Elev: 1345 ft

H5316
Elev: 1342 ft

263
2M

271
2M

293
2M

1 1/2M

165
2M

171
2M

191
2M

Ro
ss
an
ley

Dr

Ro
ss
an
ley

Dr

N
C
entralA

ve

±

!R
"P
;̄C

This map is based on a digital database compiled by  Medford Water Commission from a
varietyofsources.MedfordWaterCommissioncannotacceptresponsibilityforerrors,
omissions,orpositionalaccuracy.Therearenowarrantees,expressedorimplied.

Legend

Water Mains:

Urban Growth Boundary

City Limits

Tax Lots

!RReservoir

"PPump Station

Control Station;̄C

Sample Station

Air Valve

³ Fire Service

Hydrant

Reducer#

Blow Off

Plugs-Caps

Abandoned Main

Active Main

S

!#A

T"B

G

G!.

Reservoir Drain Pipe

Pressure Zone Line

Boundaries:

MWC Facilities:

Butterfly Valve

Gate Valve

Tapping Valve

&É

! (

!R

Water Valves:

Water Meters:
Active Meter

On Well

Unknown

Vacant

!4

!4

!4

!4

Path: R:\Departments\GIS\MXDs\Rods MXDs\Rods ArcGIS Pro - Multi-Layout - 3-13-20.aprx

Date: 3/24/2020

0 100 20050
Feet

±
Scale: 1"= 200'

Water Facility Map
  for

      AC-20-038
  (Braun Brush)

215



Reviewed By: Kleinberg, Greg Review Date: 3/20/2020
Meeting Date: 3/25/2020

LD File #: AC20038

Planner: Steffen Roennfeldt

Applicant: Applicant & Agent, JB Steel Inc.

Site Name: N/A

Project Location: 1525 N Central Avenue

ProjectDescription: 7,500 square foot single story warehouse on a 6.54 acre parcel

Conditions
Reference Comments Description

OFC
508.5

The one fire hydrant
at the southeast
corner of the building
is required and will
have to be relocated
near that location.

When fire hydrants are required, the approved water supply for fire protection
(hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when combustible material
arrives at the site. In addition, blue reflective fire hydrant markers are required to be
installed on the road surface to identify fire hydrant locations at night. 

Plans and specifications for fire hydrant system shall be submitted to Medford Fire-
Rescue for review and approval prior to construction. Submittal shall include a copy
of this review (OFC 501.3).

Medford Fire-Rescue Land Development Report

Review/Project Information

Specific Development Requirements for Access & Water Supply

Page 1 of 2          

216



OFC
503.4

Parking shall be
marked/posted as
prohibited along the
fire lanes.

Fire apparatus access roads 20-26' wide shall be posted on both sides as a fire lane.
Fire apparatus access roads more than 26' to 32' wide shall be posted on one side as
a fire lane (OFC D103.6.1).

Where parking is prohibited for fire department vehicle access purposes, NO
PARKING-FIRE LANE signs shall be spaced at minimum 50' intervals along the fire lane
(minimum 75' intervals in 1 & 2 family residential areas) and at fire department
designated turn-around's. The signs shall have red letters on a white background
stating "NO PARKING-FIRE LANE" (See handout). 

For privately owned properties, posting/marking of fire lanes may be accomplished by
any of the following alternatives to the above requirement (consult with the Fire
Department for the best option): 

Alternative #1:
Curbs shall be painted red along the entire distance of the fire department access.
Minimum 4" white letters stating "NO PARKING-FIRE LANE" shall be stenciled on the
curb at 25-foot intervals.

Alternative #2:
Asphalt shall be striped yellow or red along the entire distance of the fire department
access. The stripes shall be at least 6" wide, be a minimum 24" apart, be placed at a
minimum 30-60 degree angle to the perimeter stripes, and run parallel to each other.
Letters stating "NO PARKING-FIRE LANE" shall be stenciled on the asphalt at 25-foot
intervals. 

Fire apparatus access roads shall not be obstructed in any manner, including the
parking of vehicles. The minimum widths (20' wide) and clearances (13' 6" vertical)
shall be maintained at all times (OFC 503.4; ORS 98.810-12).

This restriction shall be recorded on the property deed as a requirement for future
construction. 

A brochure is available on our website at:

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Files/Fire%20Lane%20Brochure.pdf

OFC 3201 High-piled storage
requirements.

A maximum of 500 sq. ft. of high-piled combustible storage area is allowed without
additional requirements. High-piled storage constitutes storage heights over 12' for
normal combustibles or storage heights over 6' for certain high-hazard commodities.
If the threshold is exceeded, the additional requirements of Oregon Fire Code
Chapter 32 must be met (Additional fire protection and building design features for
high piled storage).

Development shall comply with access and water supply requirements in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code in affect at
the time of development submittal. Fire apparatus access roads are required to be installed prior to the time of construction.
The approved water supply for fire protection (fire hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when
combustible material arrives at the site.

Specific fire protection systems may be required in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code.
This plan review shall not prevent the correction of errors or violations that are found to exist during construction. This plan
review is based on information provided only.

Design and installation shall meet the Oregon requirements of the International Fire, Building, Mechanicial Codes and
applicable NFPA Standards.

Construction General Information/Requirements

Medford Fire-Rescue, 200 S Ivy St. Rm 180, Medford OR 97501 541-774-2300

www.medfordfirerescue.org

Page 2 of 2          

217



218

JMProud
Text Box
Steffen, The attached deed and description (copy is reduced and missing information but is retrievable from JC clerks office as document JCOR 2003-07958) is a description of the property before it was partitioned by partition map P-11-2009, LDS-08-025 survey number  20345.  The subject area shown on the attached vicinity map is parcel 1 of said partition map, not the entire area described in the attached description.Thanks, Jon 4-3-20 



219



220



221



222



223



K:\DATA\AGENCIES\MEDFORD\PLANNG\ARCH COMM\2020\AC-20-038_BRAUN BRUSH.DOC 

ROGUE VALLEY SEWER SERVICES 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
 

  Location: 138 West Vilas Road, Central Point, OR - Mailing Address: P.O. Box 3130, Central Point, OR 97502-0005 
Tel. (541) 664-6300, Fax (541) 664-7171    www.RVSS.us 

March 13, 2020 

City of Medford Planning Department 
200 S. Ivy Street 
Medford, Oregon   97501 

Re: Braun Brush (Map 372W24, TL 701) 

ATTN:  Liz, 

The subject property is within the RVSS service area. There is an 8 inch sewer main 
adjacent to the property along Central Avenue and six 4 inch services stubbed to lot. 
Sewer service for proposed development can be had by connecting to the existing 
service fronting the proposed development. The sewer connection permit will be issued 
by the City of Medford. However, Sewer System Development Charges will be owed to 
RVSS. 

Rogue Valley Sewer Services requests that approval of this application be subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. All development must be designed and constructed per RVSS standards.
2. The applicant must submit architectural drawings to RVSS for the calculation of

System Development Charges.
3. The applicant must pay related development fees prior to the issuance of building

permits.

Please feel free contact me with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Nicholas R. Bakke, P.E. 
District Engineer 

224



From: THOMPSON Seth
To: Steffen K. Roennfeldt
Subject: ODA Comment: AC-20-038
Date: Thursday, March 19, 2020 1:53:49 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png

<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**>

Good afternoon,

Thank you for allowing the ODA to comment on AC-20-038.

The ODA has no comment.

Best regards,

Seth Thompson
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF AVIATION
AVIATION PLANNER

OFFICE 503-378-2529 CELL 503-507-6965

EMAIL seth.thompson@aviation.state.or.us 

3040 25TH STREET SE,  SALEM, OR  97302

WWW.OREGON.GOV/AVIATION

225



From: Amber Judd
To: Steffen K. Roennfeldt
Subject: File No. AC-20-087 Project Name: Braun Brush
Date: Monday, March 16, 2020 11:52:39 AM

<EXTERNAL EMAIL **Click Responsibly!**>

Steffen,

The Airport requests an Avigation, Noise and Hazard Easement be a requirement of this project.  In
addition, due to the proximity to the Airport, the applicant needs to contact the FAA regarding filing
a 7460-1 Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration.  The FAA contact is: Paul Holmquist, phone
(206) 231-2990.

I have inserted some information below from the FAA’s website:

The requirements for filing with the Federal Aviation Administration for proposed structures vary based on a
number of factors: height, proximity to an airport, location, and frequencies emitted from the structure, etc. For
more details, please reference CFR Title 14 Part 77.9.

You must file with the FAA at least 45 days prior to construction if:

Your structure will exceed 200 ft above ground level

Your structure will be in proximity to an airport and will exceed the slope ratio

Your structure involves construction of a traverseway (i.e. highway, railroad, waterway, etc…) and once

adjusted upward with the appropriate vertical distance would exceed a standard of 77.9(a) or (b)

Your structure will emit frequencies, and does not meet the conditions of the FAA Co-location Policy

Your structure will be in an instrument approach area and might exceed part 77 Subpart C

Your proposed structure will be in proximity to a navigation facility and may impact the assurance of

navigation signal reception

Your structure will be on an airport or heliport

Filing has been requested by the FAA

If you require additional information regarding the filing requirements for your structure, please identify and
contact the appropriate FAA representative using the Air Traffic Areas of Responsibility map for Off Airport
construction, or contact the FAA Airport Region/District Office for On Airport construction.

Results

You exceed the following Notice Criteria:

Your proposed structure is in proximity to a navigation facility and may impact the assurance of navigation signal
reception. The FAA, in accordance with 77.9, requests that you file.

The FAA requests that you file.

226



Thank you,

Amber Judd
Director of Finance and Administration
Rogue Valley International-Medford Airport (MFR)

1000 Terminal Loop Parkway, Suite 201
Medford, Oregon 97504

541-776-7222

227



228



229



230



231



232



Braun Brush
Warehouse

2/12/2020

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

¬«99

¬«238
Northgate

Entrance

NorthgateEntrance

Posse Ln

Rogue Va lley Mall

Bo
ar

dm
an

 St

Manzanita St

Liberty St

Ohio St

Kennet St

Madrona
St

Walnut
St

Bo
a r

d m
an

S t

OakSt

Parsons Dr

Old Mcandrews

Off Ram
p

Be
att

y S
t

Old
Mcan

drew
s R

d N Central Ave

E Mcandrews Rd

W Mcan
dre

ws R
d

Co
ur

t S
t

N Riverside Ave

Sage Rd

4

3

2

1

AC-20-038
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 760380 Feet

Legend
Subject Area
Tax Lots s372W24 TL 701

1525 N Central Avenue

233


	Cover Sheet (page 1) 
	Agenda (pages 2-3)
	20.1 Final Order for AC-20-012 DAR USA (page 4)
	Commission Report (pages 5-20)

	30.1 Minutes from the April 3, 2020, meeting (pages 21-25) 
	50.1 Continuance Request for AC-20-021 SOMLS - Applicant has asked that the item be continued to April 17 (page 26) 
	Exhibit A Applicant's request to continue (page 27)
	Vicinity map (page 28)

	50.2 Staff Report for AC-20-010 & E-20-011 Hong (Kevin) Wu (pages 29-43)
	Exhibit A Conditions of Approval (page 44)
	Exhibit B Revised Site Plan (page 45)
	Exhibit C Drainage & Utilities Plan (page 46) 
	Exhibit D Roof Plans (pages 47-48)
	Exhibit E Floor Plans (pages 49-51) 
	Exhibit F Landscape Plans (pages 52-55)
	Exhibit G Elevations (pages 56-59)
	Exhibit H Detail Plans (page 60)
	Exhibit I Revised Findings (pages 61-83)
	Exhibit J Code Compliance (pages 84-85)
	Exhibit K Site Images (pages 86-89) 
	Exhibit L Revised Public Works Report (pages 90-99)
	Exhibit M Fire Dept Report (pages 100-102)
	Exhibit N Medford Water Commission Report (pages 103-105)
	Exhibit O City Surveyor Memo (pages 106-115)
	Exhibit P Avista email (page 116)
	Exhibit Q ODFW Letter re: Riparian reduction (page 117)
	Exhibit R Legal Descriptions (pages 118-
	Exhibit S Property Line Adjustment Deed (pages 123-125)
	Exhibit T Aerial Images (page 126)
	Exhibit U Density Calculations (pages 127-128) 
	Exhibit V Report from the Flood Plain Manager (pages 129-131) 
	RECOMMENDED ACTION (page 42)

	50.3 Staff Report for AC-20-037 1800 Knutson (pages 132-145) 
	Exhibit A Conditions of Approval (page 146)
	Exhibit B Site, Drainage & Utility Plan (page 147
	Exhibit C Topographic Survey (page 148) 
	Exhibit D Exterior Elevations (pages 149-151)
	Exhibit E Floor Plan (page 152)
	Exhibit F Landscape Plan (page 153
	Exhibit G Applicant's Findings & Conclusions (pages 154-155)
	Exhibit H Public Works Report (pages 156-162)
	Exhibit I Building Dept Memo (pages 163-164)
	Exhibit J Medford Water Commission Memo (pages 165-168) 
	Exhibit K Jackson County Roads Comments (page 169)
	Exhibit L Oregon Dept of Aviation (page 170)
	Exhibit M Jackson County Airport email (pages 171-172) 
	Exhibit N Rogue Valley Sewer Services (page 173) 
	Vicinity Map (page 174) 
	RECOMMENDED ACTION (page 144)

	50.4 Staff Report for AC-20-038 Braun Brush (pages 175-182)
	Exhibit A Conditions of Approval (page 183)
	Exhibit B Site Plan (page 184)
	Exhibit C Floor Plan (page 185)
	Exhibit D Roof Plan (page 186)
	Exhibit E Elevations (pages 187-188)
	Exhibit F Details (page 189)
	Exhibit G Landscape Plan (page 190)
	Exhibit H Applicant's Findings & Conclusions (pages 191-205)
	Exhibit I Public Works Report (pages 206-210)
	Exhibit J Building Dept Memo (pages 211-212)
	Exhibit K Medford Water Commission Memo (pages 213-215)
	Exhibit L Fire Dept Memo (pages 216-217) 
	Exhibit M City Surveyor Memo (pages 218-222)
	Exhibit N Jackson County Roads Memo (page 223)
	Exhibit O Rogue Valley Sewer Services Memo (page 224)
	Exhibit P Oregon Dept of Aviation (page 225)
	Exhibit Q Medford Airport email (pages 226-227) 
	Exhibit R WLUN response from DSL (pages 228-229)
	Exhibit S Property Deed (pages 230-232)
	Vicinity Map (page 233)
	RECOMMENDED ACTION (page 182)




